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A‘\ First Abacus Financial Holdings Corp.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

TO:  ALL STOCKHOLDERS

Please take notice that the annual meeting of the stockholders of First Abacus Financial Holdings
Corporatlon (the "Caorporation”) for 2013 shall be held on Thursday, 10 October 2013, at 8:00 o'clock in
the morning, at the Sky Lounge Tower 1, 2™ Floor, The Linden Suites, 37 San Miguel Avenue,

Ortigas Center, Pasig City, to consider the followmg
AGENDA

Call to Order

Certification of Notice and Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders
President’s Report and Presentation of Audited Financial Statements
Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditors

Other Matters

Adjournment

LN AW~

The Corporation has, in accordance with the By-Laws, fixed the close of business on 13
September 2013 as the record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and to

vote at such meeting and any adjournment thereof,

Registration for those who are personally attending the meeting will start at 7:00 a.m. and end
promptly at 8:00 a.m. All stockholders who will not, are unable, or do not expect to attend the meeting in
person are encouraged to fill out, date, sign and send a proxy to the Corporation's Corporate Secretary at
2704 East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, 1605 Pasig
City. All proxies should be received by the Corporate Secretary on or before 7 October 2013, Proxies
submitted shall be validated by a Committee of inspectors on 8 October 2013 at 10 o'clock in the morming
at the aforementioned address. For corporate stockholders, the proxies should be accompanied by a
Secretary’s Certification on the appointment of the corporation’s authorized signatory.

To avoid inconvenience in regisiering your attendance at the meeting, you or your proxy are
requested to bring identification paper(s) containing a photograph and signature, e.g. passport, driver's
license, or credit card.

City of Pasig, Metro Manila, 18 September 2013,

Very truly yours, - 2

. BAYANI K. TAN
rporate Secretary
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMISSION
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Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Information Statement

Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
CORP.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: METRO MANILA

SEC Identification Number : AS094-001420

BIR Tax Identification No: 043-003-507-219

Address of Principal Office : Unit 2901A East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Pasig City

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 634-51-04

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:

Date - 10 October 2013

Time - 8:00 AM

Place - Sky Lounge Tower 1
2" Floor, The Linden Suites, 37 San Miguel Avenue
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: September 19, 2013

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code

Number of Shares of Common Stock

Title of Each Ciass Qutstanding and Amount of Debt Qutsianding
Common stock, #1.00 par value 1,193,200,000 as of August 30,2013

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a stock exchange

Yes (X)) No ()

If yes, disclose the name of such stock exchange and the class of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange = Common Stock

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.




GENERAL INFORMATION

Date, time and place of meeting of security holders:

A, Date and Day : 10 October 2013, Thursday
Time : 8:.00 AM
Place : Sky Lounge Tower 1

2" Floor, The Linden Suites, 37 San Miguel Avenue
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

B. The approximate date on which this Information Statement will be sent or given to
security holders is on September 19, 2013.

The complete mailing address of First Abacus Financial Holdings, Corp. (referred to herein
alternatively as the “Registrant”, the “Company” or the “Corporation”) is Unit E-2901A East
Tower, PSE Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Complex, Pasig City.

Dissenters’ Appraisal Right

The Corporation Code of the Philippines, specifically Sections 42 and 81 thereof, gives to a
dissenting stockholder who votes against certain corporate actions specified by law, the right to
demand payment of the fair market value of their shares, commonly referred to as Appraisal

Right. :

The following are the instances provided by law when dissenting stockholders can exercise their
Appraisal Right:

1. In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing
or restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing
preferences in any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of
extending or shortening the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, morigage, pledge or other disposition of
all or substantially ali of the corporate property and assets as provided in the
Corporation Code;

3. In case the Company decides to invest its Funds in another corporation or
business outside of its primary purpose; and

4, In case of merger or consolidation.

Under Section 82 of the Corporation Code, the appraisal right may be exercised by any
stockholder who shall have voted against the proposed corporate action, by making a written
demand on the Company within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for
payment of the fair value of his shares. However, failure to make the demand within such period
shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented
or effected, the Company shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate or
certificates of stock representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on



which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such
corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3} disinterested persons, one of whom shall
be named by the stockholder, another by the Company, and the third by the two thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the
Company within thirty (3) days after such award is made, provided that no payment shall be
made to any dissenting stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained earnings in its
books to cover such payment, and that upon payment by the Company of the agreed or awarded
price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the Company.

There is no matter or item to be submitted to a vote or acted upon in the annual stockholders'
meeting of the Company which falls under the instances provided by law when dissenting
stockholders can exercise their Appraisal Right.

Interest of Certain Persons in or Oppesition to Matters to be Acted Upon

None of the present directors and officers, nominees for election as director of the Company and
any associates thereof has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any matter to be acted
upon, other than their election as director for the year 2013-2014.

None of the directors of the Company has informed the Company in writing that he intends to

oppose any action to be taken by the Company at the meeting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

A. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

Number of Shares Outstanding

The Company has 1,193,200,000 outstanding common shares as of August 31, 2013. A total
of 1,137,592,000 common shares were issued to Filipino stockholders and 55,608,000
common shares were issued to Foreign stockholders.

Each common share shall be entitled to one vote with respect to all matters to be taken up
during the annual stockholders’ meeting.

Record Date

The record date fixed for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote
during the annual stockholiders' meeting is on 13 September 2013,



Voting Rights

During the annual stockholders® meeting, stockholders shall be entitled to elect seven (7)
directors. In accordance with Section 24 of the Corporation Code, each stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many as seven (7) persons he or she may choose to be elected
from the list of nominees, or he or she may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the number of his or her shares multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he or she
may distribute his or her votes on the same principle among as many candidates as he or she
shall see fit, provided that the total number of votes cast shall not exceed the number of
shares owned by him or her multiplied by seven (7).

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

1. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

As of August 31, 2013, the Company knows of no one who beneficially owns more than 5%
of its common stock except as set forth in the table below:

Securities and Principal Holders

CLASS NAME & ADDRESS OF NAME & ADDRESS OF CITIZENSHIP NUMBER Y%
RECORD OWNER AND BENEFICIAL OWNER OF HELD
RELATIONSHIP WITH ISSUER AND RELATIONSHIP SHARES
WITH RECORD OWNER
PCD Nominee Corp.(Filipino)*
Common | 2™ Floor Makati Stock Exchange, Filiping 817,782,000 | £8.54
Ayala Avenue, Makati City; :
stockholder
Pauline 8. Soo {same as record owner)
Chairman and President of Issuer Filipino 133,000,000 1115
Comimon
26" Floor East Tower, PSE Center,
Exchange Road, Pasig City;

*PCD Nominee Corporation (“PCDNC”} is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central
Depository Inc. (“PCD”). The beneficial owners of such shares registered under the name of PCDNC are
PCD’s participants, who hold the shares in their behalf or on behalf of their clients.

No individual or group owner reported under PCD Nominee Corporation has more than 5%
ownership of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation.

2. Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

The following table shows the shares beneficially owned by the directors and executive officers
of the Company as of 31 August 2013:




TITLE OF AMOUNT AND % OF
CLASS NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL NATURE OF CITIZENSHIP CLASS
OWNER BENEFICIAL
OWNERSHIP
Irecord (r)or
beneficial (b)]
Paulino S. Soo
Common 29™ Floor East Tower, PSE Center, Exchange 133,000,000 | /b Filipino 11,18
Road, Pasig City
Jack T, Huang
Common 29™ Floor East Tower, PSE Center, Exchange 500,000 t/b Filipino 0.04
Road, Pasig City
Jimmy S. Soo
Common 5% Floor Sage House
V.A. Rufino St., Legaspi Village, Makati City 10,010,000 | r/b Filipino 0.84
Vicente Co Chien, Jr.
Commeon 555 Muello de Binondo, Manila 6,130,000 | b Filipino 0.51
A.  Bayani K. Tan
Common Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Offices
27" Floor East Tower, PSE Center, Pasig City 100,000 | r/b Filipino 0.00
Common Ma. Theresa G. Santes
29" Floor East Tower, PSE Center, Exchange 10,000 | b Filipino 0.00
Road, Pasig City
Common Jimmy Chua Alabanza
29" Fioor East Tower, PSE Center, Exchange 10,600 | /b Filipino 0.00
Road, Pasig City
Commeon All directors and executive officers as group 149,760,000 | /b Filipino 12.55

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of any party holding any voting trust or similar arrangement for 5% or
more of the Company’s voting securities.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangements that may result in a change of control of the

Company. There have been no changes in control since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

B. Directors and Executive Officers

Director, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons

The following are the incumbent directors and executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Office Period of Service Citizenship
Paulino S. Soo 62 | Chairman /CEO 1994 to present Filipino
Jack T. Huang 59 | President/ 1995 to present Filipino
Director
Vicente Co Chien, Jr. 58 | Treasurer/ 1995 to present Filipino
Director
A, Bayani K. Tan 58 | Corporate Director 1995 to Filipino
Secretary/ present
Director Corp. Sec. 1994 to
present




| Jimmy 8. Soo 55 | Director 1995 to present Filipino
Ma. Theresa G. Santos 56 | Independent 2006 to present Filipino
Director
Independent 2008 to present Filipino
Jimmy Chua Alabanza 68 | Director

Upon recommendation of the Company’s Nomination Committee as required by the Company’s
Manual of Corporate Governance, the foregoing incumbent members of the Board of Directors
are nominated for election to the positions above-stated for the year 2013-2014, to hold office as
such for one year or until their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified.

Board of Directors

The present members of the Board of Directors (“BOD”) were elected during the annual
stockholders’ meeting held on 27 September 2012. The term of the current members of the BOD
shall be until the next stockholders’ meeting on 10 October 2013. The following are the
incumbent members of the BOD of the Company who are nominated for re-election as members
of the Board during the shareholders” meeting. Their respective backgrounds indicating their
business experiences over the past five years are likewise provided below:

Mr. Paulino S. Soo

Mr. Soo holds a Master in Business Administration degree from the University of Pittsburgh
Graduate School of Business and Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Management
Engineering from the De La Salle College. He is also the President of Philippine Gaming
Management Corporation (2002~ present) and Berjaya Pizza Philippines Inc. (2010~ present). He
is Chairman of Abacus Securities Corp. & Abacus Capital & Investment Corporation (1994 —

present),

Mr. Jack T. Huang

Mr. Huang is the incumbent President of the Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from the Ateneo de Manila University. He is concurrently a director of Abacus
Capital & Investment Corporation (1995-present) and Abacus Securities Corporation (1995-
present). He is a director and the President of First Abacus Financial Holdings Corporation
(1995-present) and Cebu Business Continuous Forms (1991-present).

My, Vicente Co Chien, Jv.

Mr. Co Chien is the Treasurer of the Corporation. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Economics from Hongkong Shue Yan College. He is the President of the Boston Clinics and
Diagnostics Services (1994-present) and Providence HealthCare Consultants (1999-present). He
is also a director of First Abacus Financial Holdings Corporation (1995-present), Abacus
Securities Corp.(1995-present), Abacus Capital & Investment Corporation(1995-present), Vista
Holdings Corporation (1995-present), Rokett Realty Co., Inc. (1995-present), South Sea Realty
Development Corporation (2004-present), Loumont Trading Corp. (1993-present), and Loumont

Construction & Development Corp.(1993-present).




Atty. Jimmy S. Soo

Atty. Soo is a Director of the Corporation. He obtained his Bachelor of Science and Bachelor of
Law Degrees from the University of the Philippines. He is the Managing Partner of Soo Gutierez
Leogardo and Lee Law Offices (1992-present). He is currently the Corporate Secretary of Abacus
Capital & Investment Corporation (1995- present) and a Director of First Abacus Financial
Holdings Corporation (1995-present). He is the Chairman of Music Corporation, a publicly listed
company (2002-present). He is also a Director and/or Corporate Secretary of various companies.

Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan

Mr. Tan has been a Director and the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation since May 1994, He
is currently a Director, Corporate Secretary or both of the following reporting and/or listed
companies: Belle Corporation (May 1994-present), Coal Asia Holdings, Inc. (July 2012-present),
Destiny Financial Plans, Inc. (2003-present), I-Remit, Inc. (May 2007-present), Pacific Online
Systems Corporation (May 2007-present), Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present),
Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc. (March 1999-present), Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed
Income Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity Fund, Inc. (June 1997-present), Philequity
Peso Bond Fund, Inc. (June 2000-present), Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (February 1999-
present), Philequity Resources Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity Strategic Growth
Fund, Inc. (April 2008-present), Sinophil Corporation (December 1993-present), Tagaytay
Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. (November 1993-present), Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club,
Inc. (June 1997-present), The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (August 1995-present),
The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (December 1999-present), TKC Steel
Corporation (February 2007-present), Vantage Equities, Inc. (January 1993-present) and Yehey!
Corporation (June 2004-present). Mr, Tan is also the Corporate Secretary and a Director of
Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. since December 2006. He is also a Director, Corporate Secretary, or
both for the following private companies: Destiny LendFund, Inc. (December 2005-present),
Discovery World, Inc. (March 2013 as Director, July 2003 —present as Corporate Secretary),
Monte Oro Resources & Energy, Inc. (March 2005-present) Palm Concepcion Power Corporation
(January 2013-present), and Pharex HealthCorp. (March 2012-present), among others. Atty. Tan
is Managing Partner of the law offices of Tan Venturanza Valdez (1988 to present), Managing
Director/President of Shamrock Development Corporation (May 1988-present), President of
Catarman Chamber Elementary School Foundation, Inc. (August 2012-present), Managing
Trustee of SCTan Foundation, Inc. (1986-present) and Trustee and Corporate Secretary of St.
Scholastica’s Hospital (February 2011-present). He is currently the legal counsel of Xavier

Sphool, Inc.

Atty, Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New York University USA (Class of 1988) and
earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1980) where
he was a member of the Order of the Purple Feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society) and
ranked ninth in his class. Atty. Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where he placed sixth.
He has a Bachelor of Arts major in Political Science degree from the San Beda College (Class of
1976) from where he graduated Class Valedictorian and was awarded the medal for Academic

Excellence.



Independent Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38 of the SRC, the Company’s Board of Directors and
stockholders approved the amendment of the Company’s By-Laws adopting the requirement on
the nomination and election of independent directors. In line with this, Ms. Ma. Therese G.
Santos and Mr. Jimmy Chua Alabanza were elected as the Company’s independent directors.

In compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Guidelines on the Nomination and Election of Independent Directors
(SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, Series of 2002), the Nomination Committee (composed of
Messrs. Paulino S, Soo [Chairman], Jimmy S. Soo, and Jack T. Huang) constituted by the Board
of Directors, in a meeting held on 4 August 2012, endorsed the respective nominations given in
favor of Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos (by Mr. Vicente Co Chien, Jr.) and Mr. Jimmy Chua
Alabanza (by Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan). None of the nominees for independent directors are
related to any member of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Ms. Ma Therese G. Santos

Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos is an incumbent independent director of the Company. She is also the
Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee and Compensation and Remuneration
Committee of Music Semiconductors Corporation (2003-present). Ms. Santos has been an
independent Management Consultant by profession since 1997. She was the former Vice
President for Treasury and Administration of Music Corporation {1995-1996). Ms. Santos was
the Director of Finance for United Development Corporation (1991-1993). Ms. Santos received a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of the Philippines, an
MBA from the same school where she graduated in the top 10 of her class and was on the dean’s

list.
Mr. Jimmy Chua Alabanza

Mr. Jimmy Chua Alabanza, is an incombent independent director of the Corporation. He is
currently the Chairman of Insular Construction and Supply Co. (1967-present) and a Consultant
of Seaboard Insurance Company (1990-present). He received a Bachelor of Science Degree in

Management from the Atenco de Manila University in 1967.
Significant Employees

The Company has no significant employees.

Family Relationships

Paulino S. Soo and Jimmy S. Soo are brothers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

As a result of the delay in the delivery of the facilities of the Universal Leisure Club, Inc. (ULC),
some of its members have initiated legal actions against ULC, the Universal Rightfield Property
Holdings, Inc. (URPHI) and the Universal Leisure Corp. (ULCorp), as well as their respective
incumbent and former officers and directors, including their former Corporate Secretary, A.

Bayani K. Tan. The cases filed include:



i. A Complaint for Estafa (docketed as I.S. No. 08-K-19713) filed before the City
Prosecutor of Manila. A Counter-Affidavit has already been filed before the City
Prosecutor seeking to dismiss the Complaint for lack of cause of action.

Except as provided above, the Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein any
of its directors, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or control person

were involved during the past five (5) years up to the latest date:

(a) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which any of the above
persons was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy

or within two years prior to that time;

(b) any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the
above persons in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities;

and,

(c) any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action),
the SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic of foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or sell regulatory organization, that any of the above persons has
violated a securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed,

suspended or vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The significant transactions of the Company in the normal course of business with related parties
are described below:

4. Management Fees

The Company earns management fees from Philippine Gaming Management Corporation
{PGMC) by virtue of the Management Service Agreement between the Company and
PGMC. A key management personnel of the Company is a director of PGMC.

Management fees amounted tom 68,181,486, P39,673,908, and P64,781,024 in 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively, and are presented as Management Fees in the consolidated
statements of income ( Please see Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements).

b. Advances from Related Parties

The Company obtained non-interest bearing advances from an officer and certain related
parties. These advances presented as due to an officer and due to related parties under
Accounts payable and Other Payable and Other Liabilities in the consolidated statements

of financial position.
¢. Advances to subsidiaries

In the normal course of operations, affiliated companies like parent and its subsidiaries
are borrowing/lending funds/resources to support the group’s daily fund activities. These
advances earn interest at rates to the weighted average of the interest rates of the



outstanding loans payable to the banks. The related parties are the wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, Abacus Securities Corporation, Abacus Capital and
Investment Corporation and Vista Holdings Corporation.

Aside from the above, there are no other material related party transactions that will significantly
affect the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

There are no transactions with any promoter nor are there any assets to be acquired from a
promoter. Company has no parent.

Disagreement with Director

None of the Company’s directors has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the board of
directors since the last annual stockholders’ meeting of the security holders because of a
disagreement with the Company or any matter relating to the Company’s operations, policies or

practices.

Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors

The following is a summary of the aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two
(2) fiscal years, i.e. 2012 and 2011, as well as compensation to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year
2013, to the company’s Chief Executive Officer and four (4) most highly compensated executive
officers who are individually named, and to all other officers and directors of the Company as a

group:

Name and Principal Function Fiscal Year Salary Bonus Other Annual
C .
Paulino S. Soo 2011 &
Chairman and CEQ 2012
2013
Jack T. Huang 2011
President 2012
2013
Schubert Caesar C. Austero 2011
VicePresident-HRD-CSG 2012
2013
Sheila Marie Aguilar 2011
Vice President- Operations 2012
2013
Melanio C. Dela Cruz 2011
Vice President- Finance 2012
2013 o RTo i
Total for the Group 2011 4,122,588 781,040 -0-
2012 5,613,961 | 1,785,741 -0-
2013 est. amt. 7,142,506 | 1,472,216 -0-
All Officers as a Group Unnamed | 2011 5,164,800 954,742 -0-
2012 6,711,341 | 2,138,511 -0-
2013 est. amt. 8,312,500 | 1,716,967 -0-
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Except as provided above, there are no standard arrangements, employment contracts or any other
arrangements by which the directors and officers of the Company receive compensation. In
addition, there are no compensatory plans or arrangement with respect to named executive
officers that resulted in or will result from the resignation, retirement or termination of such
executive director or from a change-in-control in the Company.

There is no outstanding price or stock warrants or options held by the Company’s officers and
directors.

Independent Public Accountants

The auditing firm of Punongbayan & Araullo (‘Punongbayan®) will be nominated and
recommended to stockholders for reappointment as external auditor for the year 2013-2014.
Representatives of the said firm are expected to be present at the upcoming Annual Stockholders'
Meeting to respond to appropriate questions and to make a statement if they so desire.

Over the past five (5) years, there was no event where Punongbayan and the Company had any
disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, disclosure
of financial statements or auditing scope or procedure.

In compliance with Rule 68 (3)(b)(iv) of the Securities Regulation Code, the assignment of
engagement partner for the Company shall not exceed five (5) consecutive years. Mr. Romualdo
V. Murcia, wili commence as engagement partner of the Company and its subsidiaries starting

calendar year 2013.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting or Financial Disclosure

No independent accountants have resigned, were dismissed or otherwise ceased performing
services during the two most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim period.

There have been no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure.

The audit and audit-related fees paid by the Company in the last two (2) years are as follows:

2012 21

A. Audit and Audit-related Fees

1. Audit of the registrant’s annual financial statements or
services that are normally provided by the external auditor in
connection with the statutory and regulatory filings or | 21,890,000 21,890,000
engagements,
2. Other assurance and related services by the external auditor
that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or

review of the registrant’s financial statements -0- -0-
B. Tax fees -0- -0-
C. All other fees -0- -0-

The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves the engagement of services of the
Company external auditors, who are appointed upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee
composed of Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos as Chairman and Messrs. Vicente Co Chien, Jr, Jack T.
Huang, Atty. Jimmy S. Soo and Paulino S. Soo as members. Engagement Agreements are

11



executed for every type of engagement, which provides for the scope of the work, timetable, fees,
engagement team, etc. for each project.

OTHER MATTERS

Action with Respect to Reports

The Company will seek the approval by the stockholders of the Minutes of the previous
Stockholders’ meeting last 27 September 2012 wherein the following were taken up (1)
Chairman’s Address; Approval of Audited Financial Statements and Annual Report, (2) Election
of Directors, (3) Appointment of Punongbayan and Araullo as External Auditors, and (4)
Ratification of all acts of the Board of Directors and Management.

Management reports which summarize the acts of management for the year 2012 are included in
the Company’s Annual Report to be sent to the stockholders together with this Information
Statement and shall be submitted for approval by the stockholders at the meeting. Approval of
the Management Report will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of Management and

of the Board of Directors for the past year.

Matters Not Required to be Submitted

No action is to be taken with respect o any matter which is not required to be submitted to a vote
of the stockholders.

Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

There are no matters to be voted upon by the stockholders of the Company pertaining to any
amendment of the Company Charter, By-laws and other documents.

Other Proposed Action

The items covered with respect to the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and
officers for the past year up to the date of the meeting are those items entered into in the ordinary

course of business.

Voting Procedures

a. Actions to be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall require the vote of the
stockholders representing at least a majority of the Company’s outstanding capital
stock.

b. Three inspectors shall be appointed by the Board of Directors before or at each
meeting of the stockholders, at which an election of directors shall take place; if no
such appointment shall have been made or if the inspectors appointed by the Board of
Directors refused to act or fail to attend then the appointment shall be made by the
presiding officer of the meeting. For purposes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
in October 2013, the Corporate Secretary and/or his representative together with the
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Audit Partner of the External Auditor and/or his representative, have been designated
as inspectors who have been tasked to oversee the counting of votes.

c. Stockholders may vote at all meetings either in person or by proxy duly given in
writing in favor of any person of their confidence and each stockholder shall be
entitled to one vote for each share of stock standing in his name in the books of the
corporation; provided, however, that in the election of Directors, each stockholder
shall be entitled to cumulate his votes in the manner provided for by law.

d. The By-Laws of the Company is silent as to the method by which votes are to be
counted. In practice, however, the same is done by the raising of hands or viva voce.

e. With respect to the election of seven (7) directors, each stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many as seven (7) persons he may choose to be elected from
the list of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many
votes as the number of his shares multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit,
provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of

shares owned by him multiplied by seven (7).

f.  Upon confirmation by the inspectors that there is a mathematical impossibility for
certain nominees to be elected into office based on proxies held and votes
present/represented in the meeting, the actual casting and counting of votes for the
election of Directors may be dispensed with.

Omitted Ftems

Items 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14 are not responded to in this report, the Company having no
intention to take any action with respect to the information required therein.
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SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information
set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities
Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized in the City of Pasig on 18 September 2013.

FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
CORPORATION

Date: 18 September 2013
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
ANNUAL REPORT

General Nature and Scope of Business

First Abacus Financial Holdings (FAFHC) traces its roots from the Seven Seas Oil Exploration
and Resources, Inc. (SSOERI). Seven Seas was incorporated on February 15, 1994 and became a
publicly listed company on November 21, 1994. It was primary engaged in the business of oil
exploration and development. Presently, FAFHC is engaged in, through its wholly subsidiaries,
stockbroking activities, investment banking, real estate business and other financial services.

Realizing that the local capital and equities markets have a pivotal role in the long-term
development of the national economy, the board of directors decided to change SSOERIS’s
primary purpose from being an oil exploration company into a financial holding company. Thus,
on QOctober 26, 1996, the SSOERI’s stockholders approved the recommendations of the board to
transform the firm. Consequently, on January 25, 1996, the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) approved the Company’s change of name from Seven Seas Oil Exploration and Resources,
Inc. to First Abacus Financial Holdings Corporation. The SEC likewise approved on January 25,
1996 the change on par value of FAFHC’s capital stock from Php0.0! to Php 1.00 a share to
remove the issue’s speculative characteristic and reflect the stock’s shift into a full-fledged

commercial/industrial issue.

The Company’s first strategic corporate re-alignment move was to acquire the Abacus Capital &
Investment Corporation (ACIC)- an operating investment house- via a cash and stock swap.
ACIC effectively became a wholly owned subsidiary. ACIC, in turn, owned 100% of Abacus
Securities Corporation (ASC), one of the leading members of the Philippine Stock Exchange, and
Vista Holdings Corporation (VHC), a real estate holding company.

The Company, through ASC, also acquired 25% of Prosperity Propertics and Management
Corporation (PPMC), used to own a 16-storey building at the Ayala Business Park in Cebu City.
In 1996, the Company acquired from its subsidiaries — ACIC and ASC- interests in VHC and
PPMC., This resulted in a direct investment in these companies. In 1999, upon approval by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of the increase in authorized capital stock of ASC from
Php50 million divided into 500,000 shares with a par value of Phpl00 per share to Php400
million divided into 4 million shares with Php100 par value per share, the Company subscribed to
3.5 million shares representing 87.525% ownership interest. The remaining 12.475% remained
with ACIC. Accordingly, the Company’s ownership over ASC was changed from 100% indirect

to 87.525% direct and 12.475% indirect.

On December 18, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the conversion of advances to Abacus
Capital & Investment Corporation (ACIC) as deposit for future stock subscription amounting to
Php100,000,000.00. In 2008, the Company applied P90,000,000.00 of its deposit for future stock
subscription to paid in capital as payment for the remaining subscriptions for the same amount.

Subsidiaries

Abacus Capital and Investment Corp(ACIC), ACIC was incorporated on January 6, 1995, ACIC
is engaged in investment banking activities, management services, and treasury and other

financial services.

Abacus Securities Corporation(ASC). ASC was incorporated on December 27, 1991. A member
of the Philippine Stock Exchange, ASC is engaged in stock brokering services. It engages in
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buying and selling stocks in Philippine stock market for the accounts of the clients as a broker
and for its own account as a dealer.

Vista Holdings Corporation(VHC). VHC was incorporated on January 21, 1993, Presently, Vista
Holdings Corporation is engaged in buying and leasing out condo units primarily to its affiliated

companies.

FAFHC’s Vision

FAFHC’s vision is to provide best value integrated financial services to its clients. In the process,
Filipinos from all walks of life are enabled to become a part of the capital and equities market.
Toward this end, progress and prosperity have stronger prospects of being shared by all.

Abacus Capital and Investment Corporation (ACIC)

ACIC is financially secure, with capital resources of over 400 million; complemented by a core of
investment managers providing highly ethical, professional, and client-oriented investment

management services.
ACIC provides the following financial services:
a) Corporate Finance

Equity Underwriting Transactions

e  Initial Public Offerings
*  Stock Rights Offerings
e  New Tranche Offerings
e  Private Placements of Listed Companies

Financial Advisory

o  Share or corporate acquisitions, Buy-Ins/Mergers/Divestments
¢  Financial review and Restructuring

e  Project Development

Debt Underwriting and Loan Arrangements
¢  Short, Medium, or Long Term Loan Arrangements
e Short and Long Term Commercial Papers Underwriting
e On-going oversight, issue management, agency functions

b) Treasury sales
+ Government Securities
¢ Treasury Bills
* Long and Short Term: Commercial Papers
Preferred Notes
Promissory Notes
Money Market Placements’

¢) Financing
+ Share Margin
e  Working Capital Credit Facilities
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Abacus Securities Corporation (ASC)

Due to its commitment for quality service, ASC was awarded the Best Local Brokerage House in
the Philippines Award from 1990-2008 granted by the Asiamoney.

ASC was the recipient of the Best Securities House in the Philippines Award granted by the
EuroMoney International Awards for Excellence for the past two consecutive years, 1998 and
1999. Likewise, the Fund Managers Association of the Philippines honored ASC with a number
of citations including Best in Institutional Sales/ Execution and in Settlements in 1998. The
awards put ASC in an enviable position as it proved that local stockbrokerages could prove equal

to international stockbroker houses,

ASC started operations in March 1992, In five years, ASC established itself as a top Filipino
brokerage firm in PSE. The key factors for ASC’s successes are: professional management, sound
investment advisory, strong research team, real-time market information, and commitment to

technology and training.

All these resulted in a strong retail franchise, a top tier domestic institutional sales organization,
and growing foreign institutional sales based. Thus, ASC is now positioned to best serve the
expanding domestic equities market. Strategically located branches in Binondo, Cebu and Davao

support ASC’s Head Office operations.

Abacus Securities Corporation was the second ranking stock brokerage house among the top ten
PSE brokers. In the past years, the large foreign stockbrokerage houses dominated the top ten list
of brokers. ASC believes that it can effectively compete with other brokers because of its strong
sales groups, the Retail and Institutional Teams. At present, the firm has one of the most
extensive based of retail clients driven by the number of branches established and envisioned to
be established. Its Institutional Sales Team, on the other hand, has managed to obtain
accreditation and establish active working relationships with a number of domestic institutional
investors and foreign fund management companies. ASC also has a Research Group that comes
out with action-driven reports and recommendations, a quality admired by most of its clients, and
even the other stockbrokers. The registrant has an excellent customer service to service its clients,
The company established a website to keep its clients abreast of the new developments in stock

market,

For the year ended 2012, Abacus Securities Corporation ranked 14" in terms of total value traded.

Vista Holdings Corporation (VHC)

The primary purpose of the Company is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own,
hold, use, sell (without engaging in retail trade), assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or
otherwise dispose of real and personal property of every kind and description.

VHC continues with its investment program through the acquisition of condominium units. At
present, VHC leases its condominium units its affiliated companies.

Vista is not involved in real estate development. VHC continues to lease its condominium units to
its affiliates.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS.

The list of directors and executive officers of the Company are found on pages 5-8 of the
Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) to which this report is attached.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SECOND QUARTER OF 2013_COMPARED TO THE
SECOND QUARTER OF 2013

Financial Highlights
In thousand pesos except for financial ratios

Period ended June 30
% Change
2013 2012 Inc, (Dec.)
Profit and Loss Data
Revenues 195,627 211,795 (7.63%)
Total Cost and Expenses 174,675 169,857 2.8%
Net income (loss) 18,328 41,414 (55.74%)
EBITDA 116,481 130,712 (10.89%,)
Unaudited (Audited % Change
June 30,|Dec. 31,|Inc. (Dec.)
2013 2012
Balance Sheet Data
Total Assets 5,306,476 5,021,889 5.67%
Total Debt 2,711,329 2,432,951 11.44%
Total Stockholders' Equity 2,595,147 (2,588,938 0.24%

The following are the major performance measures that the Company uses. Analyses are employed by
comparison and measurement on a consolidated basis based on the financial date on the periods indicated below:

Unaudited Aundited
June 30,2013 Dec. 31,2012
Liquidity:
Current Ratio 1.05:1 1.16:1
Coverage/Solvency ratios:
Assets to Equity 2.04:1 1.94:1
Debt to Equity Ratio 1.04:1 0.94:1
June 30 June 30
2013 2012
Operating Efficiency:
Revenue Growth — Increase ( Decrease) (7.63%) 4%
Profitability — Increase { Decrease) (55.74%) (18.5%)
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The manner by which the Company calculates the above indicators is as follows:

Key Performance Indicator Formula

Current Ratio Current assets/Current liabilities

Asset to Equity Ratio Assets / Total stockholders’ equity

Debt to Equity Ratio Total liabilities/Total stockholders’

Revenue Growth Cwrrent period total revenues/Prior period total
revenues

Net Income(loss) Growth Current Period Net Income/Prior Period Net
Income

The country’s strong fundamentals continued to prevail as economic growth continued into the
second quarter of the year 2013. Growth was driven by strong household consumption, higher
government spending, and increased capital formation supported by benign inflation of 2.7% and
low interest rates, Election spending likewise buoyed the growth momentum as manufacturing
output continued its resurgence, growing volumes by about 13.5% in the second quarter. The
above average performance of the Philippine economy, however, failed to avert the local stock
market’s descent into “bear” category for the first time in four years. Global jitters over a credit
crunch in China and the announced tapering of quantitative easing as the United States economy
showed signs of recovery sent foreign investors to the sidelines. The market saw a reversal of
what was previously seen as an exuberant flow of portfolio funds into emerging markets such as
that of the Philippines. Although the fall in stock prices and the subsequent depreciation of the
peso were not seen to significantly hurt the national economy, the second quarter of 2013 was
particularly challenging to the local capital markets.

Despite the mixed signals in the larger economic environment and the continuing downward
spiral in the local capital markets, the Company managed to post modest gains. For the second
quarter of 2013, the Company’s consolidated revenues stood at Php84.8 million, an increase of
25% over the Php68 million revenues realized for the same period last year. Brokers commission
posted during the quarter reached Php49.3 million, up by Php9 million from the Php40.3 million
realized during comparative period. In addition, the company realized Php35 million gain in
investments in financial assets at fair value through profit and loss and in its available-for-sale
financial assets, also higher by Php12 million as compared to the Php23 million realized last year.

As of the 1* half of the year consolidated revenues amounted to Php195.6 million. There was a
decrease noted amounting to Php28 million or 13.3% as compared to the Php211.8 million
reported for the same period last year. The decrease in consolidated revenues as of the reporting
period can be attributed to the lower management and underwriting fees generated during the
period amounting to Php21.9 million as compared to Php51.2 million posted last year.

During the second quarter, the company spent a total of Php88.24 million, Php12.9 miliion higher
compared to the Php75.3 million total cost and expenses posted for the same pericd last year.

As of the first half of the year, total costs and expenses amounted to Php174.7million higher than
the Php161.5 million posted for the same period last year. The increase was brought about by the
additional costs due to higher volumes of transactions. As in the past, a large bulk of operating
expenses was allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the company's commitment to honor its

obligations.
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Summing up the Company’s performance for the second quarter, the Company is reporting a net
loss of Php24.6 million from last year’s net income of Php7.6 million. For the first half of the
year, the Company is reporting a consolidated net income amounting to Php18.3 million, a
decrease of Php23 million or 55.7% as compared to the Php41.4 million reported last year.

There was an increase in total assets and liabilities noted as of the first half of the year amounting
to Php285 million and Php278 respectively. The increase was brought about by the additional for
collection trade receivables, partially offset by the additional trade payables and accrued

expenses.

The increase in stockholders’ equity of Php6.2 million was due to the net result as of the year less
the sale of the Company’s financial assets.

The Company remains highly optimistic that its financial performance will continue to improve
moving forward on account of favorable conditions in the general operating environment and the

midterm elections.

The company has consistently maintained its strong presence in the market all these years and
remains in a better position to take advantage of expected upturns in the market, particularly as
investments continue to be diverted into Asia from Europe and the Americas.

The Company, however, will continue to keep an effective balance between managing risks and
opportunities and will not let its guard down. The Company shall continue to solidify its niches
and expand market reach. At the same time, the Company shall continue to be lean without
sacrificing ability to provide the best value to-customers. As it has continued to do so in the last
four years, the Company will keep an eye on outstanding loans, and subsequently, interest cost
and expenses. And as in the past, the Company shall draw strength and inspiration from the
support and commitment of its various stakeholders,

Aside from the discussions above, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions,
arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the
company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

012

General Business Environment

The year 2012 was a rollercoaster ride for the Philippine economy and the local stock market.
There was reason for cautious optimism given a backdrop of a reeling global economy brought
about by the European fiscal debt crisis, a fragile US economy and the eventual threat of a fiscal
cliff, Japan’s efforts to recover from a natural disaster, and a looming slowdown in China. But
the country’s strong fundamentals, fueled by robust domestic consumption, contained inflation,
higher government spending, a rebound in exports and a jump in farm outputs, and generally
positive perceptions about the Aquino government’s efforts to weed out corruption in the public
sector prevailed. Towards the end of the year, the crests and troughs eventually culminated on a
triumphant note. International agencies upgraded the country’s ratings and record growth in the
country’s gross domestic product was posted. The country ended the year with an economic
performance that surpassed expectations.

The country’s economic performance was mirrored in the highs and lows of the local capital

market., Although the market was propped up by a strong positive bias, externals forces such as
the problems in Greece in the middle of the year, forced the market to move within a defined
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band. Share prices, however, soared to record highs towards the end of the year. The local index
posted a hefty 33 percent return and closed the year at 5,812.73 levels earning the distinction of
being one of the best performing indices in Asia Pacific.

Performance of the Company

The company likewise encountered a number of challenges during the year. Heightened
competition in the market expectedly reduced brokers commissions. However, the company’s
strong market position and its inherent strengths prevailed and the decline was kept at single digit
levels, thus, brokers commission for 2012 was noted at Php169.9 million, a decline of 9% over
the Phpi87.4 million realized in the previous year. There was also a decline in the finance
income of the company for the year under review - from Phpl130.8 million in 2011 to Php80.4
million in 2012, However, a significant increase in management fees was reported during the
year. Revenues from management fees rose to Php68 million, up by 72% compared to Php39.7
million reported over the previous year. Consolidated revenues for 2012 was noted at Php329.6
million or Php30.6 million below the consolidated revenues reported in 2011,

The company has managed to keep total costs and expenses within manageable levels despite the
increase in trade volumes. For the year 2012, total costs and expenses, at Php349.1 million, grew
by only 2% over the previous year’s Php342.2 million. As in the past, a large bulk of operating
expenses was allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the company's commitment to honor its
obligations. Finance cost during the year was at Php154.6 million, an increase of Php4.6 million

or 3% from Php150 million incurred in 2011.

Although the company is reporting a net loss of Phpll million for the year 2012 it is proud to
note that it is closing the year with a total comprehensive income amounting to Php228.6 million,
a remarkable feat compared to comprehensive loss of Php555 million reported in 2011.

There was an increase in total assets noted at the end of the year amounting to Php447.2 million,
from Php4,574.7 million to Php5,021.9 million. This was brought about by increase in trade
receivables of Phpl40.4 million, additional investments at fair value through profit or loss of
Php124.7 million, increase in value of available for sale financial assets of Php216.4 million and
increase in other assets of Php16.8 million. Correspondingly, total liabilities as of the end of the
period increased by Php218.6 million. The increase was brought about by additional short term
borrowings, increase in accounts payables and other liabilities, partially offset by the payments
and decrease of trade payables as of the reporting period.

There was a large amount of increase in the stockholders’ equity as of the reporting period by
Php228.6 million from Php2,360 million last year to this year’s Php2,589 million. The increase
was basically due to the increase in value of our available for sale financial assets reduced by the

consolidated loss for the period under review.

The Company remains highly optimistic that its financial performance will continue to be stable
moving forward.

The Company, however, will continue to keep an effective balance between managing risks and
opportunities and will not let its guard down. The Company shall continue to solidify its niches
and expand market reach. At the same time, the Company shall continue to be lean without
sacrificing ability to provide the best value to customers. As it has continved to do so in the last
four years, the Company will keep an eye on outstanding loans, and subsequently, interest cost
and expenses. And as in the past, the Company shall draw strength and inspiration from the
support and commitment of its various stakeholders.
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FINANCIAL RATIOS (SRC Rule 68, as amended October 2011). The following are the
Company’s financial soundness indicators in two comparative periods:

31-Dec- 31-Dec-
2012 2011
CURRENT/LIQUITY RATIO
Current Assets = 1.16:1 .14:1
Current Liabilities
Quick Assets
Current Liabilities = 0.86:1 0.88:1

The ratio is used to give ant idea of the company’s ability to pay back its short term liabilities with its short term assets.

Debt
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO Equity = 0.94:1 0.94:1
ASSETS TO EQUITY RATIO Assets = 1.94:1 1.94:1
- Equity
INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO Earnings before interest and taxes = 98% 122.00%

Interest expense

Interest rate coverage ratio is a measure on how well a company can meet its interest payment obligations.

NET INCOME GROWTH ( DECREASE) Current year net income = -149%
Previous year net income

-65.00%

Net income growth is a firm’s profit for the period, The growth rate of net income is how much the net income changes from
one period to another, Management views prowth rate of net income to determine if the firm is growing at a sustainable rate.,

The following matters are not applicable to the Company for the period covered by this report:

(i) Events that will trigger a direct or contingent financial obiligation that is material
to the company including any default or acceleration of an obligation

(ii) Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or obligations, including
contingent obligations

(iii)  Material commitments for capital expenditures

(iv)  Material changes from period to period of Financial Statements

(iii)  Seasonal aspects that have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

2011

Overview of General Business Environment

The year 2011 showcased both the resilience of the country’s fundamentals and the fragility of
the Philippine economy to external forces. Full year gross domestic product (GDP) settled at 3.7,
way below the 4.5 to 5.5 percent projections. The National Economic Development Authority
asserted, however, that the figure was within its growth forecast of 3.6 to 4.0 percent. A number
of external shocks buffeted an economy that has long been susceptible to supply chain disruptions
from neighboring countries such as Japan and Thailand, which suffered from natural calamities
last year. Growth targets were likewise affected by the ongoing Middle East and North African
crises, as well as the slow growth of the global economy on account of continuing problems in the
United States and the Euro zone. The country was not spared the wrath of natural calamities,
either, as several typhoons, flooding, and low-pressure areas weighed down on agriculture and

infrastructure in 2011.

Despite the mixed results in the economic front and despite being dogged by accusations of
inadequate public spending, the government nevertheless scored major points for its anti-

22



cotruption drive and its manifested sincerity and commitment to restore order in the bureaucracy
and consequently, confidence in the country. Remittances continued to reach record levels while
a number of indicators were kept within target. Moreover, some sectors posted unprecedented

growth, the Philippine Stock Exchange among them.

The PSE bested other broad market indexes in 2011 in terms of overall improvements in index
performance. While most of the broad market indexes posted declines in performance, the PSE
surged to a 4,1% year-on-year index performance, outperforming Indonesia (3.2%) and Nordic

Iceland (2.0%) and Malaysia (1.1%)

Performance of the Company

The Company turned in improvements in terms of its overall performance and its core revenues.
Our brokerage house reported a double-digit (21%) increase in commission, representing a year-
on-year increase of Php32.,6 million, from Php154.8 to Php187.4 million. This came as a result of
the improved volume and activities in the Philippine stock market.

There was mixed results on the finance income posted by the Company and its subsidiaries
during the year, resulting in a net decrease of P8.2 million, from Php139 million last year to 130.8
million this year, The decrease was on account of adjusted accounting treatment of short term
investment on financial assets which showed an unrealized loss on marked to market valuation of
Php7.4 million from a gain of Php63.3 million last year. Conversely, realized gain on sale of
financial assets this year amounted to Php129.8 million as compared to last year’s Php74.7
million or an increase of Php55.1 million,

Management fees recorded during the year was noted at Php39.7 million, a decrease of Php25.1
million as compared to the Php64.8million posted last year.

Consolidated revenues for the year stood at Php359.9 million, a slight increase of Php.3 million
from last year’s Php359.6 million.

As can be expected, variable costs from additional volumes of trades resulted in higher costs and
expenses. Total costs and expenses for the year stood at Php342.2million, representing an
increase of Php54.3 million from last year’s Php287.8 million. As in the past, a large bulk of
operating expenses was allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the company's commitment

to honor its obligations.

Summing up the Company’s performance for the year, consolidated net income amounted to
Php22.3 million, a decrease of Php40.8 million as compared to the Phpé3.1million reported fast
year,

There was a decrease in total assets noted for the year amounting to Php485 million, from
Php5,060 million in December 2010 to Php4,575 miilion in December 2011. The main cause of
the temporary decrease was the marked to market valuation of our investment in financial assets,
particularly our investment in BCOR shares. The effect of the decrease in available for sale
financial assets was Php435.7 million, from last year’s Php2,882.5 million to this year

Php2,381.9 million.

A corresponding increase in total liabilities amounting to Php69million was also noted during the
period under review bringing total liabilities from Php2,145 million to Php2,214 million due to
increases in short term borrowings, partially offset by the payments made to trade customers and
short term payables.
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The temporary decrease due to the marked to market valuation and sale of the available for sale
financial assets brought a decrease in the Company’s stockholders’ equity by Php556 million,

from Php2,916 million to this year’s Php2,360 million.
Aside from the discussions above, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions,

arrangements, obligations(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the
company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

2010

General Business

The peaceful political transition from Gloria Macapagal Arroyo to Benigno Aquino III in the
middle of 2010 ushered in new hope for the country. ,

The ideal convergence of rapid growth and low inflation, which was maintained at 3.8 percent,
enabled the Philippine economy to achieve robust growth in 2010 across many indicators. The
overall external liquidity position of the Philippine economy in 2010 was very favorable with
balance of payments registering a surplus. GDP growth was stronger than expected at 7.3 percent
reflective of strong recovery brought about by robust pick-up in domestic demand and the
rebound in external trade. On the supply side, growth was characterized by higher value added
activities as industry outpaced the services and agriculture sectors. A key to this encouraging
growth has been the government’s emphasis on macroeconomic stability inciuding determination
to improve the country’s fiscal position, maintain growth supportive monetary policies, and
resolve governance issues. Likewise, millions of Filipinos working abroad yielded higher

remittances all year round.

The growth trajectory is expected to be sustained in 2011 provided the government continues to
work hard at strengthening macroeconomic stability. Part of the effort will be intensifying
reforms in the country’s fiscal position, maintaining a low and stable inflation environment,
reducing vulnerabilities to external shocks, strengthening financial market capitalization,
attracting more investments in globally competitive sectors, and improving industry

competitiveness.

There are dark clouds in the horizon, however, that may dampen the country’s promise of
sustained growth. The brewing conflict in the Middle East threatens to put pressure on critical
commodities, particularly oil, and endangers the fate of millions of overseas Filipino workers in

these countries.

Performance of the Company

The general surge of optimism in 2010 benefited the local equities market as most companies
listed in the Philippine stock exchange posted better than expected earnings during the year. All
these augured well for the local exchange which noted sustained value turnover and provided
impetus for the index to rally towards an all -time high.

We are proud to note that the Company’s overall performance for the year mirrored the general
trend in the business environment, successfully sustaining the momentum from the previous year,

Our stock brokerage business reported a Php32.3 million increase in brokers’ commission from
Php122.5 million in 2009 to Php154.9 million in 2010, representing 26% increment. Management
fees reported by our subsidiary posted a small gain from Php62.6 million in 2009 to Php64.8
million this year. Moreover, a significant gain of 92.5% in finance income which comprises of
gain on sale of financial assets and gain in valuation of financial assets was posted, from Php72.2
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million in 2009 to Php139 in 2010. Correspondingly, consolidated revenues of the group for the
year reached a total Php359.6 million from Php258.9 million the previous year or an increase of

39%.

Total cost and expenses during the year amounted to Php287.8 million, up from Php239.9 million
last year, The increase in consolidated cost and expenses can be attributed to the increases in
variable costs related to the increased trade volumes such as increases on the amount of
commissions paid to brokers which was up by Php8.2 million, or from Php37 million to Php46
million; increases in transaction fees paid to the Exchange which was up by Phpl.4 million, or
from Php6 million to Php7.4 million, and benefits paid to regular employees which was up by
Php6.7 million, from Php34.3 million to Php41 million.. A large bulk of operating expenses was
allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the company's commitment to honor its obligations.
Summing up the Company’s performance for the year, the company is reporting a consolidated
net income of Php63 million, representing an increase of Php51.6 million or 452% from the
reported net income for the same period fast year of Phpi1.4 million.

Consequently, a significant increase in the total assets of the Company was noted, from Php4,487
million in December 2009 to Php5,060 million in December 2010. The Php573.5 million
increase in total assets was due to major increases in the value of available-for-sale financial
assets amounting to Php189.5 million, additional purchases and increase in value of available for
sale financial assets amounting to Phpl14.8 million, additional trade collectible ofPhp186.4, and

additional acquisition of property and equipment of Php14.8 million.

Total liabilities for the period under review increased by Php372.8 million - from Php1,771.8
miilion to Php2,145 million on account of additional trade payables and other short-term

obligations.

An increase in the Company’s stockholders’ equity was also noted during the year amounting to
Php200.8 million mainly as a result of changes in the fair value of financial assets available for

sale and the consolidated net results of the group.

The Company’s performance in 2010 once again validated the inherent strengths of the company
and gave us reason for continued optimism. The company shall continue to leverage on and
strengthen its core businesses while building new pipelines of revenue sources particularly in
management and financial advisory services. The company will continue to manage costs and
expenses while pursuing strategic investments in areas that will strengthen organizational

capability and institutional growth.

The Company remains highly optimistic that it will be able to sustain the forward momentum- for
the rest of the year. Expectations of better performance are warranted given the new leadership in
the country and the overall surge of optimism on the overall prospects of the Philippine economy.

The company has consistently maintained its strong presence in the market all these years and
remains strategically positioned to take advantage of expected upturns in the market, particularly
as investments begin being diverted into Asia from Europe and the Americas.

The Company, however, will continue to keep an effective balance between managing risks and
opportunities and will not let its guard down. The Company shall continue to invest in programs
to expand market reach. At the same time, the Company shall continue to be lean without
sacrificing ability to provide the best value to customers. As it has continued to do so in the last
four years, the Company will double efforts to decrease outstanding loans, and subsequently,
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interest cost and expenses. And as in the past, the Company shall draw strength and inspiration
from the support and commitment of its various stakeholders.

DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS

No principal accountant or independent accountants of the Company has resigned, was dismissed
or has ceased to perform services during the two (2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent

interim period.

The Company has no disagreement with its accountant with regard to any matter relating to
accounting principles or practices, financial statements disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON COMMON EQUITY

Market Information

The shares of the Company are listed in and traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange. The high
and low closing prices for each quarter within the last two (2) fiscal years are as follows

Applicable Quarter 2012 2011
High Low High Low
First Quarter 0.95 0.74 0.87 0.67
Second Quarter 0.89 0.71 0.80 0.63
Third Quarter 0.80 0.68 0.78 0.62
Fourth Quarter 0.82 0.69 0.93 0.63

As of the close of trading hours of August 30, 2013, the price at which the Registrant’s shares
were traded at Php0.84 a share.

Holders

The number of common shares issued and outstanding as of August 31, 2013 was 1,193,200,000.
As of August 31, 2013, Registrant had 109 shareholders, on the said date the following were the

top 20 shareholders:

Stockholder Nationality  No. of Shares %
1 | PCD Nominee Corp. — Filipino Filipino 817,782,000 68.54
2 | Paulino S. Soo Filipino 133,000,000 11.15
3 | Abacus Capital & Investment Corp. Filipino 59,644,000 4.99
4 | PCD Nominee Corp. - Non-Filipino Foreign 35,608,000 2.98
5 | ACIC FAO 20001 Filipino 32,361,000 2.71
6 | Edgardo Limtong Filipino 28,527,000 2.39
7 | Phee Bon Kang Malaysian 20,000,000 1.68
8 | Vista Holdings Corp. Filipino 14,095,000 1.18
9 | Cecilio Pedro Filipino 12,260,000 1.03
10 | Jimmy 8. Soo Filipino 10,010,000 0.84
11 | Vicente Co Chien Jr. Filipino 6,130,000 0.51
12 | Elizabeth K. Soo Filipino 6,000,000 0.50
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13 | Solar Securities, Inc. Filipino 4,000,000 0.34
14 | Quality Investments and Securities Corp Filipino 2,720,600 0.23
15 | Abacus Capital & Investment Corp. Filipino 2,547,000 0.21
16 | Uy Louis Filipino 2,000,000 0.17
17 | George Q. Go & Shirley D. Go Filipino 1,443,000 0.12
18 | Jack T. Huang Filipino 500,000 0.04
19 | Quality Invt. & Sec. Corp(001117) Filipino 500,000 0.04
20 | Vicente Co Chien, Jr. Filipino 400,000 0.03

Total 1,189,527,000 99.68

Dividends

No dividends, neither in cash nor stock was declared on the shares for the last two (2)
fiscal years, i.e. 2012 and 2011. There are no restrictions that limit the ability to pay
dividends on common equity but the Company, as a general rule, shall only declare from
surplus profit as determined by the Board of Directors as long as such declaration will not
impair the capital of the Company.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No unregistered securities or shares of the Company were sold during the last three (3)
years (2013, 2012, and 2011).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has been monitoring compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No.2, Series of
2002, as well as other relevant SEC Circulars and rules on good corporate governance. All
directors, officers, and employees have complied with all the leading practices and principles on
good corporate governance as embodied in the Corporation’s Manual. The Company has
complied with the appropriate performance self-rating assessment and performance evaluation
system to determine and measure compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance.

The Company is unaware of any non-compliance with or deviation from its Manual of Corporate
Governance. The Company will continue to monitor compliance with the SEC Rules on
Corporate Governance, and shall remain committed in insuring the adoption of other systems and
practices of good corporate governance to enhance its value for its shareholders.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please refer to Annexes "A" and “B” for the Company’s audited financial statements as of the
period ended 31 December 2012 and the interim financial statements for the second quarter of

calendar year 2013, respectively.

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO
NOTICE OF AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH
SUCH SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S ANNUAL REPORT ON
SEC FOR 17-A WITHOUT CHARGE.
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ANY SUCH WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Unit 2901-A East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road

Pasig City

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulations Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: 18 September 2013

fivdata\elients\292\corp\2013 asmidefinitive information statement.doc
ABKTUCNACR\CDFyanet 292231
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A (Annual Report)

1. For the year . : December 31, 2012

2.  SEC Identification Number : AS094-001420 S E c

3. BIR Tax Identification Number: (43-003-507-219 O A s e Ot

H
[ APR23 2013
4. Exact name of the registrant as specified in its charter: % » J at
FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COR_PORATIO_N - o —Q\W/

BT I
- m“con*n
5. Pasig City, Philippines |4
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of incorporation .
6. (SEC Use Only)
Industry Classification Code
7. Unit -E3001 PSE Center, Exchange Road, Pasig City - 1605

Address of the principal office Postal Code

8. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

(632)667-8900

9. Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
Not Applicable

10. Securilies registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Securities Regulation Code:

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt

Outstandin

Common Stock, P1.00 par value 1,193.200,000 shares

11. Areany or all these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?
Yes (%) No()
12. Check whether the registrant
{a) Has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code(SRC) and
Sections 26 and 141 of The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months ( or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);
Yes (x) No¢)
(b) Has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes (x) No( )



13. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of April 15, 2013
£714,169,160.00 :

a) Total number of shares held by non-affiliates as of April 15, 2013 : §70,938,000 shares
b} Closing price of the Registrant’s shares on the Exchange

As of April 15, 2013 : P0.82
c) Aggrepate market price (a x b} as of

As of April 15,2013 : £714,169,160.00

APPLICABLE ONLY TO REGISTRANTS INVOLVED IN INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF
PAYMENT PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

' 14. Check whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of
the SRC subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the SEC,

Yes () No( ) {(Not Applicable)

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

None
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PART ] — BUSINESS AND GENERAIL INFORMATION

Item 1. Business

First Abacus Financial Holdings (FAFHC) traces its roots from the Seven Seas Oil Exploration and
Resources, Inc, (SSOERI). Seven Seas was incorporated on February 15, 1994 and became a publicly
listed company on November 21,1994, It was primary engaged in the business of oil exploration and
development. Presently, FAFHC is engaged in, through its wholly subsidiaries, stockbroking activities,
investment banking, real estate business and other financial services.

Realizing that the local capital and equities markets have a pivotal role in the long-term development
of the national economy, the board of directors decided to change SSOERIS’s primary purpose from
being an oil exploration company into a financial holding company. Thus, on October 26, 1996, the
SSOERI’s stockholders approved the recommendations of the board to transform the firm.
Consequently, on January 25, 1996, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the
Company’s change of name from Seven Seas Oil Exploration and Resources, Inc. to First Abacus
Financial Holdings Corporation. The SEC like wise approved on January 25, 1996 the change on par
value of FAFHC’s capital stock from Php0.01 to Php 1.00 a share to remove the issue’s speculative
characteristic and reflect the stock’s shift into a full-fledged commercial/industrial issue.

The Company’s first strategic corporate re-alignment move was to acquire the Abacus Capital &
Investment Corporation (ACIC)- an operating investment house- via a cash and stock swap. ACIC
effectively became a wholly owned subsidiary. ACIC, in turn, owned 100% of Abacus Securities
Corporation (ASC), one of the leading members of the Philippine Stock Exchange, and Vista Holdings
Corporation (VHC), a real estate holding company.

The Company, through ASC, also acquired 25% of Prosperity Properties and Management Corporation
(PPMC), used to own a 16-storey building at the Ayala Business Park in Cebu City. In 1996, the
Company acquired from its subsidiaries — ACIC and ASC- interests in VHC and PPMC. This resulted
in a direct investment in these companies. In 1999, upon approval by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of the increase in authorized capital stock of ASC from Php50 million divided into
500,000 shares with a par value of Phpl00 per share to Php400 million divided into 4 million shares
with Php100 par value per share, the Company subscribed to 3.5 million shares representing 87.525%
ownership interest. The remaining 12.475% remained with ACIC. Accordingly, the Company’s
ownership over ASC was changed from 100% indirect to 87.525% direct and 12.475% indirect.

On December 18, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the conversion of advances to Abacus Capital
& Investment Corporation (ACIC) as deposit for future stock subscription amounting to
Phpl00,000,000. In 2008, the Company applied P90,000,000 of its deposit for future stock
subscription to paid in capital as payment for the remaining subscriptions for the same amount.

Subsidiaries

Abacus Capital and Investment Corp({ACIC). ACIC was incorporated on Januvary 6, 1995, ACIC is
engaged in investment banking activities, management services, and treasury and other financial
services.



Abacus Securities Corporation(ASC). ASC was incorporated on December 27, 1991. A member of the
Philippine Stock Exchange, ASC is engaged in stock brokering services. It engages in buying and
selling stocks in Philippine stock market for the accounts of the clients as a broker and for its own
account as a dealer,

Vista Holdings Corporation(VHC). VHC was incorporated on January 21, 1993. Presently, Vista
Holdings Corporation is engaged in buying and leasing out condo units primarily to its affiliated
companies.

FAFHC’s Vision

FAFHC’s vision is to provide best value integrated financial services to its clients. In the process,
Filipinos from all walks of life are enabled to become a part of the capital and equities market. Toward
this end, progress and prosperity have stronger prospects of being shared by all.

Abacus Capital and Investment Corporation { ACIC)

ACIC is [inancially secure, with capital resources of over 400 million; complemented by a core of
investment managers providing highly ethical, professional, and client-oriented investment
management services.

ACIC provides the following financial services:
a) Corporate Finance
Equity Underwriting Transactions
¢ Initial Public Offerings
+ Stock Rights Offerings

* New Tranche Offerings
s Private Placements of Listed Companies

Financial Advisory

* Share or corporate acquisitions, Buy-Ins/Mergers/Divestments
»  Financial review and Restructuring
*  Project Development

Debt Underwriting and Loan Arrangements

=  Short, Medium, or Long Term Loan Arrangements
»  Short and Long Term Commercial Papers Underwriting
*  On-pgoing oversight, issue management, agency functions

b) Treasury sales
»  Government Securities

*  Treasury Bills
*  Long and Short Term Commercial Papers



Preferred Notes
»  Promissory Notes
Money Market Placements®

c) Financing

»  Share Margin
¢ Working Capital Credit Facilities

Abacus Securities Corporation (ASC)

" Due to its commitment for quality service, ASC was awarded the Best Local Brokerage House in the

Philippines Award from 1990-2008 granted by the Asiamoney.

ASC was the recipient of the Best Securities House in the Philippines Award granied by the
FuroMoney International Awards for Excellence for the past two consecutive years, 1998 and 1999.
Likewise, the Fund Managers Association of the Philippines honored ASC with a number of citations
including Best in Institutional Sales/ Execution and in Settlements in 1998. The awards put ASC in an
enviable position as it proved that local stockbrokerages could prove equal to international
stockbroker houses.

ASC started operations in March 1992, In five years, ASC established itself as a top Filipino
brokerage firm in PSE. The key factors for ASC’s successes are: professional management, sound
investment advisory, strong research team, real-time market information, and commitment to
technology and training.

All these resulted in a strong retail franchise, a top tier domestic institutional sales organization, and
growing foreign institutional sales based. Thus, ASC is now positioned fo best serve the expanding
domestic equities market. Strategically located branches in Binondo, Cebu and DDavao support ASC’s
Head Office operations.

Abacus Securities Corporation was the second ranking stock brokerage house among the top ten PSE
brokers. In past years, the large foreign stockbrokerage houses dominated the top ten list of brokers.
ASC believes that it can effectively compete with other brokers because of its strong sales groups, the
Retail and Institutional Teams. At present, the firm has one of the most extensive based of retail
clients driven by the number of branches established and envisioned to be established. Its Institutional
Sales Team, on the other hand, has managed to obtain accreditation and establish active working
relationships with a number of domestic institutional investors and foreign fund management
companies. ASC also has a Research Group that comes out with action-driven reports and
recommendations, a quality admired by most of its clients, and even the other stockbrokers. The
registrant has an excellent customer service to service its clients. The company established a website
to keep its clients abreast of the new developments in stock market.

For the year ended 2012, Abacus Securities Corporation ranked i"’ in terms of total value traded.
Vista Holdings Corporation (VHC)
The primary purpose of the Company is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own, hold,

use, sell (without engaging in retail trade), assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise
dispose of real and personal property of every kind and description.



VHC continues with its investment program through the acquisition of condominium units. At present,
VHC leases its condominium units its affiliated companies.

Vista is not involved in real estate development.

VHC continues to lease its condominium units to its affiliates. The acquisition of condomlmum units
was put on hold, as property market has not significantly improved.

The Contribution of each services or line of business

Amounts

(In mio)
Commissions B 169.9
Finance Income 80.3
Management fees 68.2
Other revenues 11.2

B 329.6

Competition

The direct competitors of the Company and its subsidiaries are companies engaged in stock brokering
business and are members of the Philippine Stock Exchange; companies engaged in investment
banking, financial and management services, and treasury operations; companies and individual
owners of condominium units within the area of Ortigas Center, as properties are located in the
Philippine Stock Exchange Center Condominium. The indirect competitors of the Company and its
subsidiaries are Financing Institution, Growth Funds, Pension and Pre-need companies.

As to the stock brokerage business segment, the Company and its competitors cater the requirements of
both institutional and retail clients of our local stock and financial market. In 2012, a total of Php3,543
trillion were traded or done through the local bourse which were divided among the foreign and local
brokers. The total value turnover or total amount of value fraded are considered the total size of the
registrant and its competitors which broker commissions are generated,

The registrant and its competitors almost offering the same services and strengths. Most of the
brokerage and financial houses are fully capitalized, offering services for the needs of the institutional
and retail clients, they all have created and established a good backroom support, established a good
internal and financial control systems. Just recently, numbers of stock brokerage houses have launched
an online trading facility to attract more investors and to give investors the easy access of the trading
facility, and to keep them abreast with the local and financial market. Long before competitors have
applied, focused and established themselves to catch up with the requirements to be a full-fledged
financial and brokerage company, the registrant has long pioneered and can rightfully say was the first
to institute those strengths.
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The consistent exemplary performance comes as a result of the company’s steadfast commitment to
deliver the best value to customers through professional management, sound investment advisory,
strong research team, real-time market information, and commitment to technology and training.

The Company is now positioned to best serve the expanding domestic equities market. Its branches are
now strategically located in Binondo, Cebu and Davao to support the Company’s Head Office
operations.

Customers

The Company’s market for its financial products and services include both retail and institutional
cuslomer base. No data is available for brokers commission contributed by foreign nationalities as to
the regional market. It must be noted that brokers commissions derived from the marketable securities
were all transacted through the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The market for the Company’s property development and leasing is primarily the upper income level
market.

The Company and iis whoily owned subsidiaries are not dependent upon a single customer or few
customers. The Company and its subsidiaries do not have a customer that has over 20% or more of the

Company’s turnover,
Distribution methods of the product services
The Company and its subsidiaries distribute its services to its clientele by or through:

e Certified Sales Represenlatives (CSRs) are licensed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission to transact for the accounts of the clients of our stock broking business.

* Corporate Finance Group is composed of our top caliber professionals in charge in our
investment banking, management and financing activities.

+  Our brokerage house has just opened its online trading facility to its new and existing
clients, With the new online trading scheme, our customers can already view their
portfolios online and trade their accounts using their personal phones, tablels and
terminals,

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Concessions, Royalty Agreements or Labor
Contracts,

= License granted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to Abacus Capital &
[nvestment Corp. as an Investment House.

e License granted to Abacus Securities as a broker and dealer of Securities which is renewable every
year

Aside from the above licenses granted, the registrant and its subsidiaries have no pending applications
thal need for any government approval.



Emplovyees

As of December 31, 2012, the Company and it operating subsidiaries employ 65 permanent
cmployces.

Type # of No. of Additional | Collective Bargaining Supplemental

Employees Employees Employees for Agreement(CBA) Benefits or other
Ensuing 12 Mos. * incentives
Operations 25 1 N/A None
Corporate Finance 5 1 N/A None
Administrative g None N/A None
Sales 16 0 N/A None
Accounting & Finance 10 Nene N/A None
Total 65 2

For the past three vears, the Company and its subsidiaries have not experienced any strike or threat of
strike from its employees.

Government Approval of Principal products or Services
No existing application needs for government approval
Amount Spent for Research and Development Activities

None

Cost and effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws
Not Applicable
Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and investing
activities. The risk management activities at the level of each Company in the Group is coordinated
with the Parent Company, in close cooperation with the Board of Directors, and focuses on actively
securing the Group’s short-to-medium cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.
Long-term financial instruments are managed to generate lasting returns.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does
it wrile options. The most significant risks to which the Group is exposed to are described in the
Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 2. Propertics
The following properties are in prime condition directiy owned by the Company and its subsidiaries:

Approximately 110 square meters of office space located at Federal Towers, Binondo (through Vista
Holdings Corporation). The unit is being occupied by a subsidiary, Abacus Securities Corporation. The
lease agreement was renewed for two (2) years and will expire December 31, 2013. The monthly rental
is Seventy Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Ten and 02/100 (£78,710.02).




Approximately 940 square meters of office space located at the 29" Floor of the East Tower of the
Philippine Stock Exchange Center (through Vista Holdings Corporation). The unit is being leased by a
subsidiary, Abacus Securities Corporation, for a period of two (2) years. The lease agreement will end
December 31, 2013 with a monthly rental of Six Hundred Seventy Two Thousand Six Hundred
Twelve and 86/100 (R672,612.86).

Approximately 483 square meters of office space located at the 29™ Floor of the East Tower of the
Philippine Stock Exchange Center (Direct).

All properties, as stated above, are owned by First Abacus Financial and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
- All of the Condominium Units stated above were used by the registrant and its subsidiaries to secure
the group’s bank loans. No limitations have been set by the banks on the properties collateralized,

except that when the properties are to be disposed of, proper notice has to be sent to the banks prior its
disposal.

The company has no intention of acquiring/leasing additional properties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of any material proceeding involving the issuer and its directors, execulive
olficers, underwriter or control person during the past five (5) years,

Item 4. Submission of Matters to Yote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders of the Company during the fourth quarter

of 2012.

PART II — OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s common equity and related steckholder matters
1) Market Information

The shares of the Company are listed in and traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange. The high and
low closing prices for each quarter within the last two (2) fiscal years are as follows:

Applicable
Quarter 2012 2011 2010
High Low High Low High Low
First Quarter 0.95 0.74 0.87 0.67 0.87 0.61
Second Quarter 0.89 0.71 0.80 0.63 .76 0.62
Third Quarter 0.80 0.68 0.78 0.62 0.75 0.65
Fourth Quarter 0.82 0.69 0.93 0.63 0.87 0.87

During the first quarter of 2013, the issue’s highest price per share was at 20.99 and its lowest was at
R0.75. As of the close of trading hours of April 15, 2013, the price at which the Registrant’s shares
were traded at Php0.82 per share.



2) Holders

The number of common shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2012 was
1,193,200,000. As of December 31, 2012, Registrant had 113 shareholders, on the said date the
following were the top 20 shareholders:

Stockholder Nationality  No. of Shares %
1 | PCD Nominee Corp. — Filipino Filiping $17,701,000 68.53
2 | Paulino 8. Soo Filipino 133,000,000 11.15
3 | Abacus Capital & Investment Corp. Filipino 59,644,000 4.99
4 | PCD Nominee Corp. - Non-Filipino Foreign 35,608,000 2.98
5 | ACICFAQ 20001 Filipino 32,361,000 271
6 | Edgardo Limtong Filipino 28,527,000 2.39
7 | Phee Bon Kang Malaysian 20,000,000 1.68
8 | Vista Holdings Corp. Filipino 14,095,000 1.18
9 | Cecilio Pedro Filipino 12,260,000 1.03
10 | Jimmy S. Sco Filipino 10,010,000 0.84
i1 | Vicente Co Chien Jr. Filipino 6,130,000 0.51
12 | Elizabeth K. Soo Filipino 6,000,000 0.50
13 | Solar Securities, Inc. Filipino 4,000,000 0.34
14 | Quality Investments & Securities Corp Filipino 2,720,000 0.23
15 | Abacus Capital & Invt. Corporation Filipino - 2,547,000 0.21
16 | Uy Louis - Filipino 2,000,000 0.17
17 | George Q. Go & Shirley D. Go Filipino 1,443,000 0.12
18 | Quality Invesiments and Securities Corp Filipino 500,000 0.05
19 | Jack T. Huang Filiping 500,000 0.04
20 | Co Chien, Vicente T. Jr. Filipino 400,000 034
Total 1,189.446,000 | 99.69

3) Dividends

No dividends, neither in cash nor stock were declared on the shares for the last two (2) fiscal
years, i.e. 2012 and 2011. There are no restrictions that limit the ability to pay dividends on
common equity but the Company, as a general rule, shall only declare from surplus profit as
determined by the Board of Directors as long as such declaration will not impair the capital of the
Company.

4) Recent sales of Unregistered Securities

No unregistered securities or shares of the Company were sold during the last three (3) years
(2012, 2011, and 2010).



[tem 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

2012

General Business Environment

The year 2012 was a rollercoaster ride for the Philippine economy and the local stock market. There
was reason for cautious optimism given a backdrop of a reeling global economy brought about by the
European {iscal debt crisis, a fragile US economy and the eventual threat of a fiscal cliff, Japan’s
elforts to recover from a natural disaster, and a looming slowdown in China. But the country’s strong
lundamentals, fueled by robust domestic consumption, contained inflation, higher government
spending, a rebound in exports and a jump in farm outputs, and generally positive perceptions about
the Aquino government’s efforts to weed out corruption in the public sector prevailed. Towards the
end of the year, the crests and troughs eventually culminated on a triumphant note. International
agencies upgraded the country’s ratings and record growth in the country’s gross domestic product was
posted. The country ended the year with an economic performance that surpassed expectations.

The country’s economic performance was mirrored in the highs and lows of the local capital market.
Although the market was propped up by a strong positive bias, externals forces such as the problems in
Greece in the middle of the year, forced the market to move within a defined band. Share prices,
however, soared to record highs towards the end of the year. The local index posted a hefty 33 percent
return and closed the year at 5,812.73 levels earning the distinction of being one of the best performing
indices in Asia Pacific.

Performance of the Company

The company likewise encountered a number of challenges during the year. Heightened competition in
the market expectedly reduced brokers commissions. However, the company’s strong market position
and its inherent strengths prevailed and the decline was kept at single digit levels, thus, brokers
commission for 2012 was noted at Phpl169.9 million, 2 decline of 9% over the Phpl87.4 million
realized in the previous year. There was also a decline in the finance income of the company for the
year under review - from Php130.8 miilion in 2011 to Php80.4 million in 2012. However, a significant
increase in management fees was reported during the year. Revenues from management fees rose to
Php68 million, up by 72% compared to Php39.7 million reported over the previous year. Consolidated
revenues for 2012 was noted at Php329.6 million or Php30.6 million below the consolidated revenues
reported in 2011,

The company has managed to keep total costs and expenses within manageable levels despite the
increase In trade volumes. For the year 2012, total costs and expenses, at Php349.1 million, grew by
only 2% over the previous year’s Php342.2 million, As in the past, a large bulk of operating expenses
was allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the company’s commitment to honor its obligations.
Finance cost during the year was at Phpl54.6 million, an increase of Php4.6 million or 3% from
Php150 million incurred in 2011.

Although the company is reporting a net loss of Php11 million for the year 2012 it is proud to note that
it is closing the year with a total comprehensive income amounting to Php228.6 million, a remarkable
feat compared to comprehensive loss of Php555 million reported in 2011,

There was an increase in total assets noted at the end of the year amounting to Php447.2 million, from
Phpd,574.7 million to Php5,021.9 million. This was brought about by increase in trade receivables of
Phpl140.4 million, additional investments at fair value through profit or loss of Phpl24.7 million,
increase in value of available for sale financial assets of Php216.4 million and increase in other assets



of Php16.8 million. Correspondingly, total liabilities as of the end of the period increased by Php218.6
miilion. The increase was brought about by additional short term borrowings, increase in accounts
payables and other liabilities, partially offset by the payments and decrease of trade payables as of the
reporting period.

There was a large amount of increase in the stockholders’ equity as of the reporting period by
Php228.6 million from Php2,360 million last year to this year's Php2,589 million. The increase was
basically due to the increase in value of our available for sale financial assets reduced by the
consolidated loss for the period under review.

The Company remains highly optimistic that its financial performance will continue to be stable
moving forward.

The Company, however, will continue to keep an effective balance between managing risks and
opportunities and will not let its guard down. The Company shall continue to solidify its niches and
expand market reach. At the same time, the Company shall continue to be lean without sacrificing
ability to provide the best value to customers. As it has continued to do so in the last four years, the
Company will keep an eye on outstanding loans, and subsequently, interest cost and expenses. And as
in the past, the Company shall draw strength and inspiration from the support and commitment of its
various stakeholders.

FINANCIAL RATIOS ( SRC Rule 68, as amended October 2011). The following arc the
Company’s financial soundness indicators in two comparative period:

31-Dec-  31-Dec-

12 11
CURRENT/LIQUITY RATIO
Current Assets = 1.16:1 1.14:1
Current Liabilities
Quick Assets
Current Liabilities = 0.86:1 0.88:1

The ratio is used to give an idea of the company®s ability to pay back its short term labilities
with its short term assets,

. Debt
DEBT TC EQUITY RATIO Equity = 0.94:1 0.94:1
ASSETS TO EQUITY RATIO Assets = 1.94:1 1.94:1
Equity

INTEREST RATE COVERAGE  Earnings before interest and
RATIO taxes

Interest expense

i

28% 122.00%

Interest rate coverage ratio is a measure on how well a company can meet its interest payment

obligations.
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NET INCOME GROWTH (
DECREASE) Current year net income = -149%  -65.00%

Previous year net income

Net income growth is a firm’s profit for the period. The growth rate of net income is how much
ihe net income changes from one periad to another. Management views growth rate of net
income to determine if the firm is growing at a sustainable rate.

Aside from the discussions above, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements,
obligations  (including conlingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

2011

General Business Environment

The year 2011 showcased both the resilience of the country’s fundamentals and the fragility of the
Philippine economy fo external forces. Full year gross domestic product (GDP) settled at 3.7, way
below the 4.5 to 5.5 percent projections, The National Economic Development Authority asserted,
however, that the figure was within its growth forecast of 3.6 to 4.0 percent. A number of external
shocks buffeted an economy that has long been susceptible to supply chain disruptions from
neighboring countries such as Japan and Thailand, which suffered from natural calamities last year.
Growlh targets were tikewise affected by the ongoing Middle East and North African crises, as well as
the slow growth of the global econoiny on account of continuing problems in the United States and the
Euro zone. The country was not spared the wrath of natural calamities, either, as several typhoons,
flooding, and low-pressure areas weighed down on agriculture and infrastructure in 2011.

Despite the mixed results in the economic front and despite being dogged by accusations of inadequate
public spending, the government nevertheless scored major points for its atti-corruption drive and its
manifested sincerity and commitment to restore order in the bureaucracy and consequently, confidence
in the country. Remittances continued to reach record levels while a number of indicators were kept
within target. Moreover, some sectors posted unprecedented growth, the Philippine Stock Exchange
among them.

The PSE bested other broad market indexes in 2011 in terms of overall improvements in index
petformance. While most of the broad market indexes posted declines in performance, the PSE surged
to a 4.1% year-on-year index performance, outperforming Indonesia (3.2%) and Nordic Iceland (2.0%)
and Malaysia (1.1%)

Performance of the Company

The Company turned in improvements in terms of its overall performance and its core revenues. Our
brokerage house reported a double-digit (21%) increase in commission, representing a year-on-year
increase of Php32.6 million, from Php154.8 to Php187.4 million. This came as a result of the improved
volume and activities in the Philippine stock market.

There was mixed results on the finance income posted by the Company and its subsidiaries during the
year, resulting in a net decrease of P8.2 million, from Php139 million last year to 130.8 million this
year. The decrease was on account of adjusted accounting treatment of short term investment on
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financial assets which showed an unrealized loss on marked to market valuation of Php7.4 million
from a gain of Php63.3 million last year. Conversely, realized gain on sale of financial assets this vear
amounted to Phpl29.8 million as compared to last year’s Php74.7 million or an increase of Php55.1
million.

Management fees recorded during the year was noted at Php39.7 million, a decrease of Php25.1
million as compared to the Php64.8million posted last year.

Consolidated revenues for the year stood at Php359.9 million, a slight increase of Php.3 million from
last year’s Php359.6 million.

As can be expected, variable costs from additional volumes of trades resulted in higher costs and
expenses. Tolal costs and expenses for the year stood at Php342.2million, representing an increase of
Php54.3 million from last year’s Php287.8 million. As in the past, a large bulk of operating expenses
was allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the company’s commitment to honor its obligations.

Summing up the Company’s performance for the year, consolidated net income amounted to Php22.3
million, a decrease of Php40.8 million as compared to the Php63.1million reported last year.

There was a decrease in total assets noted for the year amounting to Php485 million, from Php5,060
million in December 2010 to Php4,575 million in December 2011. The main cause of the temporary
decrease was the marked to market valuation of our investment in financial assets, particularly our
investment in BCOR shares, The effect of the decrease in available for sale financial assets was
Php435.7 million, from last year’s Php2,882.5 million to this year Php2,381.9 million.

A corresponding increase in total liabilities amounting to Php69million was also noted during the
period under review bringing total liabilities from Php2,145 million o Php2,214 million due to
increases in short term borrowings, partially offset by the payments made to trade customers and short
term payables.

The temporary decrease due to the marked to market valuation and sale of the available for sale
financial assets brought a decrease in the Company’s stockholders’ equity by Php556 million, {rom
Php2,916 million to this year’s Php2,360 million.

Aside from the discussions above, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements,
obligations{ including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

2010

General Business

The peaceful political transition from Gloria Macapagal Arroyo to Benigno Aquino III in the middle of
2010 ushered in new hope for the country.

The ideal convergence of vapid growth and low inflation, which was maintained at 3.8 percent, enabled
the Philippine economy to achieve robust growth in 2010 across many indicators. The overall external
liquidity position of the Philippine economy in 2010 was very favorable with balance of payments
registering a surplus. GDP growth was stronger than expected at 7.3 percent reflective of strong
recovery brought about by robust pick-up in domestic demand and the rebound in external trade. On
the supply side, growth was characterized by higher value added activities as industry outpaced the
services and agriculture sectors. A key to this encouraging growth has been the government’s
emphasis on macroeconomic stability including determination to improve the country’s fiscal position,

12



maintain growth supportive monetary policies, and resolve governance issves. Likewise, millions of
Filipinos working abroad yielded higher remittances all year round.

The growlh trajectory is expected to be sustained in 2011 provided the government continues 10 work
“hard at strengthening macroeconomic stability. Part of the effort will be intensifying reforms in the
country’s fiscal position, maintaining a low and stable inflation environment, reducing vulnerabilities
to external shocks, strengthening financial market capitalization, attracting more investments in
globally competitive sectors, and improving industry competitiveness.

There are dark clouds in the horizon, however, that may dampen the country’s promise of sustained
growth. The brewing conflict in the Middle East threatens to put pressure on critical commodities,
particularly oil, and endangers the fate of millions of overseas Filipino workers in these countries.

Performance of the Company

The general surge of optimism in 2010 benefited the local equities market as most companies listed in
the Philippine stock exchange posted better than expected earnings during the year. All these augured
well for the local exchange which noted sustained value turnover and provided impetus for the index to
rally towards an all -time high.

We are proud to note that The Company’s overall performance for the year mirrored the general trend
in the business environment, suceessfully sustaining the momentum from the previous year.

QOur stock brokerage business reported a Php32.3 million increase in brokers’ commission from
Php122.5 million in 2309 to Php154.9 million in 2010, representing 26% increment. Management fees
reported by our subsidiary posted a small gain from Php62.6 million in 2009 to Php64.8 million this
year, Moreover, a significant gain of 92.5% in finance income which comprises of gain on sale of
financial assets and gain in valuation of financial assets was posted, from Php72.2 million in 2009 to
Php139 in 2010. Correspondingly, consolidated revenues of the group for the year reached a total
Php359.6 million from Php258.9 million the previous year or an increase of 39%.

Total cost and expenses during the year amounled to Php287.8 million, up from Php239.9 million last
year. The increase in consolidated cost and expenses can be attributed to the increases in variable costs
related to the increased trade volumes such as increases on the amount of commissions paid to brokers
which was up by Php8.2 million, or from Php37 million to Php46 million; increases in transaction fees
paid to the Exchange which was up by Phpl.4 million, or from Php6 million to Php7.4 million, and
benefits paid to regular employees which was up by Php6.7 million, from Php34.3 million to Php41
million.. A large bulk of operating expenses was allocated for debt servicing in keeping with the
company's commitment to honor its obligations.

Summing up the Company’s performance for the year, the company is reporting a consolidated net
income of Php63 million, representing an increase of Php51.6 million or 452% from the reported net
income for the same period last year of Phpl1.4 million.

Consequentty, a significant increase in the total assets of the Company was noted, from Php4,487
million in December 2009 to Php5,060 million in December 2010. The Php573.5 million increase in
total assets was due to major increases in the value of available-for-sale financial assets amounting to
Php189.5 million, additional purchases and increase in value of available for sale financial assets
amounting to Php114.8 million, additional trade collectible 0fPhp186.4, and additional acquisition of
property and equipment of Php14.8 million.

Total liabitities for the period under review increased by Php372.8 million - from Phpl,771.8 million
1o Php2,145 million on account of additional trade payables and other short-term obligations.
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An increase in the Company’s stockholders’ equity was also noted during the year amounting teo
Php200.8 million mainly as a result of changes in the fair value of financial assets available for sale
ahd the consolidated net results of the group.

The Company’s performance in 2010 once again validated the inherent strengths of the company and
give us reason for continued optimism. The company shall continue 1o leverage on and strengthen its
core businesses while building new pipelines of revenue sources particularly in management and
financial advisory services. The company will continue to manage costs and expenses while pursuing
strategic investments in areas that will strengthen organizational capability and institutional growih,

The Company remains highly optimistic that it will be able to sustain the forward momentum for the
rest of the year. Expectations of betler performance are warranted given the new leadership in the
country and the overall surge of optimism on the overall prospects of the Philippine economy.

The company has consistently maintained its strong presence in the market all these years and remains
strategically positioned to take advantage of expected upturns in the market, particularly as
investments begin being diverted into Asia from Europe and the Americas.

The Company, however, will continue to keep an effective balance between managing risks and
opportunities and will not let its guard down. The Company shall continue to invest in programs to
expand market reach. At the same time, the Company shall continue to be lean without sacrificing
ability to provide the best value to customers. As it has continued to do so in the last four years, the
Company will double efforts to decrease outstanding loans, and subsequently, interest cost and
expenses. And as in the past, the Company shall draw strength and inspiration from the support and
commitment of its various stakeholders.

[tem 7. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Financial -
Statements and Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17-A.

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.

For the years 2012, 2011, and 2010, the auditing firm of Punongbayan and Araullo was nominated and
appointed by the Board of Directors to conduct the examination of the financial statements of the
Company and its Subsidiaries. In compliance with the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8 Series of
2003, the assignment of Mr, Benjamin P. Valdez, the engagement’s partner, shall not exceed five (5)
consecutive years,

There have been no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure.
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The audit and audit-related fees paid by the Company in the last two (2) years are as follows:

2012 2011

A. Audit and Audit-related Fees

1. Audit of the registrant’s annual financial statements or services
that are normally provided by the external auditor in connection
with the statutory and regulatory filings or engagements. £1,890,000 21,864,300
2. Other assurance and related services by the external auditor
that are reasonably refated to the performance of the audit or
review of the registrant’s financial statements -0- -()-
B, Tax fees R0 B0
C. All other fees - -0-

The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves the engagement of services of the Company
external auditors, who are appointed upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Engagement
Agreements are executed for every type of engagement, which provides for the scope of the worlk,

timetable, fees, engagement team, ete. for each project.

PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Exccutive Officers of the Registrant

The names and ages of all incumbent Directors, elected on September 27, 2012 during the Annual
Stockholders Meeting and are o serve for a term of one (1) year until their successors shall have been
elected and qualified, with their business experiences for the past five (5) years:

Year of Number
Position Name Citizenship | Age | Assumption of of yrs, as
Office Director
Chairman Paulino 8. Soo Filipino 61 1994 to present 18
President Jack T. Huang 'Filipino 59 1995 to present 17
Treasurer Vicente Co Chien, Jr. Filipino 60 1995 to present 17
Director Jimmy S. Soo Filipino 55 1995 to present 17
Corp. Sec. A. Bayani K. Tan Filipino 58 1994 o present 18
Independent Ma. Therese G. Santos Filipino 54 2006 to present 6
Director
Independent Jimmy Chua Alabanza Filipino 68 2008-present 4
Director
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Mr. Paulino. Sco
Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer

- Mr. Soo holds a Master in Business Administration degree from the University of Pittsburgh Graduate

School of Business and Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Management Engineering from the De
La Salle College. He is also the Chairman of Philippine Gaming Management Corporation (2602-
present). He is Chairman of Abacus Securities Corporation and Abacus Capital & Investment
Corporation (1994-present).

Mr. Jack T. Huang
President

Mr. Huang is the incumbent President of the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Avts degree in
Economics from the Ateneo de Manila University. He is concurrently a director of Abacus Capital &
Investment Corporation (1995-present) and Abacus Securities Corporation (1995-present). He is the
President of Cebu Business Continuos Forms.(1994-present). -

Mr. Vicente Co Chien, Jr.
Treasurer )

Mr. Co Chien is the Treasurer of the Corporation. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Economics from Hongkong Shuen Yan College. He is the President of Boston Clinics and Diagnostice
Services (1994-present) and Providence HealthCare Consultants (1999-present). He. is concurrently
director of Abacus Capital and Investment Corporation (1995-present), Abacus Securities Corporation
(1995-present), Vista Holdings Corporation (1995-present). He is director of Rokett Realty Co., Ine.
(1995-present), South Sea Realty Development Corporation (2004-present), Loumont Trading
Corporation (1993 -present), Loumont Construction & Development Corporation (1993-present).

Mr. Jimmy S. Soo
Director .

Mr. Soo is a Director of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of the Philippines and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1985. He is the Managing Partner of Soo
Gutierrez Leogardo and Lee Law Offices (1992-present). He is currently the Corporate Secretary of
Abacus Capital & Investment Corporation (1995-present}. He is the Chairman (2002-present) and a
Director {1996-present) of Music Semiconductors Corporation, a public listed company. He is also a
Director of Prime Gaming Philippines, Inc. (2007-present), a publicly listed company. He is also an
Executive Officer, and/or Director and/or Corporate Secretary of various companies.

Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan
Director, Corporate Secretary
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Mr. Tan is a Director and Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is currently a Director, Corporate
Secretary or both of the following reporting companies: Belle Corporation (1994-present), [-Remit,
Inc. (since May 2007), Sinophil Corporation (1993-present), TKC Steel Corporation (starting
February 2007), Pacific Online Systems Corporation (since May 2007), Tagaytay Highlands
International Golf Club, Inc, (1993-present), The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (1995-
present), and Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. {1997-present), The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay
Highlands, Inc. (1999-present), Vantage Equities, Inc. (1993-present), Destiny Financial Plans, Inc.
(2003-present), Philequity Fund, Inc. (1997-present), Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc. (2000-present),
Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (1999-present), and Philequity Dollar Income Fund., Inc. (1999-
present).

Mr. Tan is also the Corporate Secretary and a Director of Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. since December
2006. He is also a Director, Corporate Secretary, or both for the following private companies: City
Cane Corporation, Destiny LendFund, Inc., Herway, Inc., and Highlands Gourmet Specialist Corp. He
is Corporate Secretary for Goodyear Steel Pipe Corporation, Hella-Phil., Inc., JTKC Equities, Inc., Star
Equities Inc., Metro Manila Turf Club, Inc., Oakridge Properties, Inc., Winstone Industrial Corp.,
Winsteel Manufacturing Corp., Discovery Country Suites, Inc., The Discovery Leisure Company, Inc.,
Yehey! Corporation, Belle Bay City Corporation and E-Business Services, Inc, He is also Director and
Corporate Secretary for Monte Oro Resources & Energy, Inc., FHE Properties, Inc., Club Asia, Inc,,
and Yehey! Money, Inc. Afty. Tan is Managing Partner of the law offices of Tan Venturanza Valdez
(1989 to present) and Managing Director/President of Shamrock Development Corporation and
Starmaker, Inc. He is cuirently the legal counsel of Xavier School, Inc.

In the past, Atty. Tan was Director and Corporate Secretary of APC Group, Inc. and Clearwater
Counlry Club, Inc. and Corporate Secretary for International Exchange Bank and Eastern
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. and Assistant Corporate Secretary and Legal Counsel of the
Philippine Stock Exchange.

Ally. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New York University USA (Class of 1988) and earned
his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1980) where he was a
member of the Order of the Purple Feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth in
his class. Atty. Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where he placed sixth. He has a Bachelor of
Arts major in Political Science degree from the San Beda College (Class of 1976) from where he
graduated Clags Valedictorian and was awarded the medal for Academic Excellence.

Ms. Ma Therese G. Santos
Independent Director

Ms. Ma. Therese G. Santos is a Director of the Company. She is Associate Director/Administrator of
Gravitas Prime, Inc. (2007-present). She is an Independent Director, and the Chairman of the Audit
and Compliance Commitiee and Compensation and Remuneration Committee of Music
Semiconductors Corporation (2003-present). Ms. Santos has been an independent Management
Consultant by profession since 1997, She was the former Vice President for Treasury and
Administration of Music Corporation. Ms. Santos was the Director of Finance for United Development
Corporation (1991-1993). Ms. Santos received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering
and a Master’s in Business Administration degree from the University of the Philippines.
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Mr. Jimmy Chua Alabanza
Independent Director

Mr. Jimmy Chua Alabanza is a Director of the Company. He is currently the Chairman of Insular
Construction and Supply Co ( 1967 - present) and a Consultant of Seaboard Insurance Company ( 1990
— present). He received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Management from Ateneo de Manjla
University in 1967.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP

Paulino S. Seo, Chairman of the Board, is the brother of Jimmy S. Soo, Director

There are no other significant employees.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein any of its directors, executive
officers, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or control persons were
involved during the past five (5) years and up to the date of this report :

L.

any bankruptey petition filed by or against any business of which any of the above
persons was a general partner or executive office either at the time of the bankruptcy
or within two years prior to that time;

any conviction by final judgment in a ¢riminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or
being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses;

any order or judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the
above persons in any type of business, securities, commeodities or banking activities;
and

any findings by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action),
the SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self-regulatory organization, that any of the above persons has violated
a securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended,
or vacated,

The Company and its major subsidiaries and associates are not involved in, nor are any of their
properties subject to, any material legal proceedings that could potentially affect their
operations and financial capabilities.
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Iem 10, Exccutive Compensation

(1) General

All Compensation Covered

Except for executive officers included under the compensation table below, all other
executive officers and directors do not receive salaries.

(2) Summary of Compensation Table

The following is a summary of the aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two
(2) fiscal years, i.e. 2012 and 2011 and to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year 2013 to the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and four (4} other mostly highly compensated executive
officers who are individually named, and to all other officers and director of the Company as a

group: |
Name and Principal Fiscal Salary Bonus Other Annual
Funection Year Compensation

Paulino 8. Sco 2001 |, e
Chairman and CEQ 2012 |

2013
Jack T, Huang 2011
President 2012
. 2013
Schubert Caesar C. Austero 2011
VicePresident/HRM 2012

, 2013

Sheila Marie Aguilar 2011
Vice President 2012 |

2013 |,
Melanio C. Dela Cruz 2011 ..
Vice President 2012 |.,

2013 |10
Total for the Group 2011 4,122,588 781,040 -(-

2012 5,613,961 | 1,785,741 -0-

2013 7,142,506 | 1,472,216 -0-
All Officers As A Group | 2011 5,164,800 954,742 -0-
Unnamed 2012 6,711,341 | 2,138,511 -0-

2013 8,312,500 | 1,716,967 -0-

(3} Compensation of Directors

{A) Standard Arrangement
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The Member of the Board of Direclors are not entitled 1o receive salaries and bonuses

(B}Other Arrangements.

(4) Employment Contracts

None

Arrangements.

(5) Warrants and Options Qutstanding :

None

None

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

and Termination of Employment and Change-in Control

1. Security Ownership (more than 5%} of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management as of
December 31, 2012,

Name of
Class Name and Address recoxd Beneficial Citizenshi | Neo. of Shares | Percentage
owner and relationship | Owner and p Held Of Class
with Issuer Relationship
with Owner
Common | PCD Nominee Corp.
2" Floor Makati Stock Filipino 817,701,000 68.53
Exchange Bldg, Ayala
Avenue Makati City
Common | Paulino S. Soo (record and
beneficial) (Same as Filipino 133,000,000 11.15
Chairman and President owner)
29" Floor Abacus Securities
Corp. East Tower PSE
Center, Exchange Road,
Pasig City
Common | **Abacus Capital and Invt.
Corp.(record and (Same as Filipino 94,552,000 7.92
beneficial); subsidiary and owner)
stockholder
29" Floor East Tower PSE
Center, Exchange Road,
Pasig City
Total 1,045,253,000 87.60

There is no arrangement that may result in a change in control of the registrant and any voting-
trust holders

*PCD Nominee corporation (“PCDNC™) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central
Depository, Inc. (“PCD”}. The beneficial owners of such shares registered under the name of
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PCDNC are PCD’s participants, who hold the shares in their own behalf or in behalf of their
clients. Individual or Group owners reported under PCD Nominee Corporation have less than 10%
ownership of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation.

There are no Individuals or Corporate stockholders who own more than 5% of the Company’s
voting securities under PCD Nominee Corporation.

#% Mr. Paulino S. Sco, Chairman and President of Abacus Capital and Investment Corporation,
directs the voting/disposition of shares held by both Companies.
1. Security Ownership of Management

The following is a sumunary of the beneficizl holdings of the Company’s Directors and
Exccutive Officers as of December 31, 2012:

Amount and Nature Percent of
Class Beneficial Owner Citizenshi of Beneficial Class
P Ownershipfrecord (r)
or beneficial (b)]

Commeon | Paulino 8. Soo Filipino 133,000,000 r/b 11.15
-do- Jack T. Huang Filipino 500,000 r/b 0.04
-do- Jimmy 8. Soo Filipino 10,010,000 r/b 0.84
-do- Vicente Co Chien Filipino 6,130,000 r/b 0.51
~do- A. Bayani K. Tan Filipine 100,000 r/b 0.01
~do- Ma. Therese G. Santos Filipino 10,000 r/b 000
~do- Jimmy Chua Alabanza Filipino 10,000 r/b 000
-do- All  directors  and

Executive Officers as 149,760,000 r/b 12.55

group unnamed

2. Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More
There is no voting trust or similar arrangement
3. Changes in Control

There are no arrangements that may result in a change of control of the registrant and no
change of control occutred during the year.
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Item 12. Certain Relationship and Related Transactions

Except as provided below, during the last two years, there are no related transactions either direct or
indirect with the Company’s Board of Direclors.

In the normal course of business, the Company grants to and obtains advances from its affiliates, These
advances earn interest at rates to the weighted average of the interest rates of the outstanding loans
payable to the banks. For further information of these advances, please to the consolidated financial
statements of the company and its subsidiaries.

There are no transactions with any promoter nor are there any assets to be acquired from a promoter.
Registrant has no parent.

PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has been monitoring compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No.2, Series of 2002,
as well as other relevant SEC Circulars and rules on good corporate governance. All directors, officers,
and employees complied with all the leading practices and principles on good corporate governance as
embaodied in the Corporation’s Manual. The Company complied with the appropriate performance self-
rating assessment and performance evaluation system to determine and measure compliance with the
Manual of Corporate Governance.

The Company is not aware of any non-compliance with or deviation from its Manual of Corporate
Governance. The Company will continue to monitor compliance with the SEC Rules on Corporate
Governance, and shall remain committed in insuring the adoption of other systems and practices of
good corporate governance to enhance its value for its shareholders.

PART V- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
a) Exhibits

(Please see supplemental financial statements schedules).
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code,
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ANNEX “A-17

U

"’E First Abacus Financial Holdings Corp.
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of First Abacus Financial Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries, is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS), including the following additional supplemental information filed separately

from the basic financial statements:

A Map Showing the Relationships Between the Company and its Related Entities,

b. Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations Adopted by
tire Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financia! Reporting Standards
Council as of December 31, 2012,

Supplemenrary Schedules Required under Annex 68-E of the Securites Regulation
Code Rule 08

d. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaradon

e. Schedule of Financial Indicators for December 31,2012 and 2011

f. Details of Transactons with DOSRI

Management responsibility on the financial statements inciudes designing and implementing
internal controls relevanc 1o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying
appropriate accounfing policies, and making accounting estirnates that are reasonable in the

Clrcumsrances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, and the addidonal
supplementary information, and submits the same to the stockhoiders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent anditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined
the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing
and, and in its report to the Board of Directors and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on
the falrness of presentation upon completion of such examinaton.
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Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth”

19th and 20th Fioors, Tower 1

REPOI‘t of Independent Al.lditOI‘S The Enterprise Center

6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City
Philippinas

T +63 2 886 5511
F +63 2 886 5506
www.punangbayan-araulio.corn

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Abacus Financial Holdings Corporation
Unit 2904-A, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of First Abacus
Financial Holdings Corporation and subsidtaries (the Group), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and 2 summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot,

Certitied Pubfic Accountants
P&A 15 a member [itm within Grant Thorntan Intzrnatianal Lid

Clfices in Ceby, Davao, Cavite

BOA/PRC Cert, of Reg, No, 0002
SEC Group A Accreditalion No. GD02-FR-2



e  Punongbayan & Araullo

— An instinct for growth” -2-

—a l Asditors’ Responsibility

- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
— based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine

o Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
frerd requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements ate free from material misstatement.

- An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
- and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
— depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
‘ misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
— In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
- in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
- for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
oo control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
— used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
’ We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
-— 5 provide a basis for our audit opinion.
i Opinion
[ In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
o respects, the consolidated financial position of First Abacus Financial Holdings
Corporation and subsidiaries 25 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and their
Ban consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in accordance with Philippine
- Financial Reporting Standards.
T e
|

!

Cerlfled Public Accountants
P&A is a member firen wilhin Grant Thomten Intemational Lid
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Emphasis of a Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated
financial staternents, which indicates that the Group has accumulated deficit of
P632,039,093 and P621,079,242 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The Group’s management believes, howevez, that the Group will be able to recoup
the deficit incurred in past years and the recovery will continue once the general
business environment in the country further improves.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

A

By: Benjamin P. Valdez
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0028485
TIN 136-619-880
PTR No. 3671439, Januarty 2, 2013, Makat City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0009-AR-3 (ontd! Dec. 9, 2014)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (until Jan. 18, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511-11-2011 (uoti] Sept. 22, 2014)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg, No. 0002 (untl Dec. 31, 2015)

April 12, 2013

Cenilled Public Accountants
P&A 15 a member fitm wilhin Geant Thomlon Intemational Ud




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
; DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2012 2011
ASSETS
CASTI 7 P 130,355,384 i 174,714,949
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 8 557,756,995 433,016,792
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINACIAL ASSETS - Net 9 2,598,351,240 2,381,928,250
RECEIVABLES - Nei 10 1,430,667,136 1,200,284,135
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Net 12 80,916,492 92,834,126
OTHER ASSETS - Net 13 223,841,716 201,935,307
TOTAL ASSETS P 5,021,888,963 P 4574713559
|
f LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS 14 P 2,012,060,034 P 1,752,625980
DUE TO CUSTOMERS 15 274,815,850 379,602,722
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES 16 146,074,987 82,128,916
Fotal Liabilities 2,432,950,871 2,214,357,618
CAPITAL STOCK 17 1,193,200,000 1,193,200,000
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 3,104,800 3,104,800
TREASURY SHARES - At Cost 17 ¢ 385,670,581)  ( 385,670,581 )
REVALUATION RESERVES 9 2,410,342,966 2,170,800,964
DEFICIT 1,17 ( 632,039,003)  ( 621,079,242
"Total Tquity 2,588,938,092 2,360,355,941
' TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 5,021,888,963 P 4574713550

See Notes to Consolidarcd Financial Statements.



FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2019
(Amoums in Philippine Pesos}

Nores 2012 2011 2010
REVENUES
Comnsissions 2 B 169,861,107 r 187,415,376 1o 154,851,866
[Finanee income p11] 80,372,800 130,779,011 138,974,200
Manngement fees 1 68,181,486 39,673,908 64,781,024
Others 23 11,207,971 2,052,514 1,026,905
329,623,364 354,920,794 359,637,495
EXPENSES
inance costs 20 154,619,230 149,967,807 124,002,709
Employee benelits 18 50,311,474 48,859,213 41,008,209
Commissions 48,032,627 52,188,652 45,585,998
Depreciation and amcrtization 12,13 18,600,676 18,047,785 16,311,445
*Faxes ang licenses 16,055,763 15,877,075 16,277,979
Representation and coterminment 10,837,7%6 13,494,098 8,247,007
Communication 9,926,425 7,858,508 7,410,141
Membership lees and ducs 9,010,298 3,316,011 1,496,069
Exchange fees 8,834,664 7,665,270 7,028,992
Professional fees 5,107,972 5,955,472 4,743,253
QOuusidle services 3,839,888 7,354,299 3,721,682
Others 19 13,909,019 11,572,288 11,966,424
349,085,832 342,156,478 287,799,908
PROFIT(LOSS) BEFORE TAX { 19,462,468 ) 17,764,321 71,838,087
TAX INCOME (EXPENSE) 21 8,502,617 4,545,572 ( B,724,616)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ( 10,959,851 ) 22,304,893 63,112,471
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOS55)
Unrealized Fair value gains (losses) on
available-for-sale financial assets 9 259,847,206 { 471,973,440 198,659,659
Reclassification of realized lair value gains on
available-for-sale fnancial assets to profit or loss 9 { 20,505,204 % ( 105,566,589 ) ( 60,962,118 )
239,542,002 4 577,540,029 ) 137,697,641
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOS5S) P 228,582,151 (r 555,230,135 ) ? 200,811,112

Busic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share 22 (P 0.0107) I 0.0218 P 0.0618

Sce Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Ameurnts in Piulippine Pesos)

Notes 2012 2011 20t0
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit lass) before tas (r 19,462,468 ) P 17,764,321 r 71,838,087
Adustments for
Interest expense 11 153,269,522 142,519,818 124,002,709
Depreciation and amorlizalion 12,13 18,600,676 18,147,785 16,311,445
Interest income 20 { 996,842 ) ( 962,209 { 906,734 )
Operatng profit before workiny capial changes 151,410,888 177,369,715 211,245,507
Lnerease in investments at fair value through
profit or loss ( 124,740,203 ) ( 22,400,930 { 110,283,804 )
Decrense (increasc) in receivables { 140,383,001 ) 3,173,024 { 186,396,331 )
Deerease (increasc) in available-for-sale financial assers 23,119,012 { 94,327,995 ) ( 56,270,698)
Increase in other assets ( 16,788,578 ) ( 1L,w11,988)  ( 22,439,725)
Inceease (deceease) in due (o custamers ( 104,786,872 ) ( 94,310,806 ) 32,177,897
Inerease {ecreasc) in accounts payabie and other liabilitics (3,843,122 { 127,269,009 ) 118,076,225
Cash used in operationy { 148,325,632 ) ( 150,684,077 ) { 13,890,951 )
Interest received 996,842 962,209 906,734
Cash paid for final caxes { 12,720) ( 151,084) ( 153,395 )
Net Cagh Usedl in Operating Activitics { 147,441,510 ) { 158,872,954 ) { 13,137,592)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Agqpaisinons of propecty and equipmest 12 { 1,900,219 ) ( 12,827,506 ) ( 14,815,561 )
Acquisition af comypuier saftware 13 { 1,126,607 ) ( 105,357 ) -
Net Cash Fram [nvesting Activities 4 3,026,826 ) ( 12,932,863 ) ( 14,815,961 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loaa availments 276,042,978 303,461,004 1,321,194,617
Interest paid { 153,325,283 ) { 141,342,409 % ( 121,929,058 )
Loan repayments ( 16,608,924 ) { 28,318,571 ) { 1,099,82%,482 )
Net Cash From Fiancing Activities 106,108,771 133,800,024 99 436,077
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH { 44,359,565)  ( 38,005,793 ) 71,482,524
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 174,714,949 212,720,742 141,238,218
CASH AT END OF YEAR I 130,355,384 I 174,714,949 P 212,720,742

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemcents,



FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S
DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE MATTERS
1.01 Corporate Information

First Abacus Financial Holdings Cosporation (the Parent Company} was incorporated in
the Philippines and wholly owns the following subsidiaries, ali of which are incorporated

in the Philippines:

Subsidiaries Namre of Business

Abacus Capital & Investment

Corporation (ACIC) Investment banking
Abacus Securities Corporation (ASC) Secutities brokerage
Vista Holdings Corpotation (VHC) Leasing

The Parent Company’s transactions consist mainly of regular financial support granted to
related parties to carry out their respective business operations. The Parent Commpany’s
shares of stock are listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company’s registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Unit 2904-A, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center,

Pasig City.
The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are hercinafter referred to as the Group.

1.02 Status of Operations

The Group has accumulated a deficit of 632,039,093 and 621,079,242 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The accumulation of significant deficit
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Group’s management believes,
however, that the Group will be able to recoup the deficit incurred in past years and the
recovery will continue once the general business environment in the country further

improves.
1.03 Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended

December 31, 2012 (including comparatives for the years ended December 31, 2011

and 2010) were authotized for issue by the Parent Company’s Chairman of the Board of
Directors (BOLD) on April 12, 2013




2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarized below. The policies have been
consistently applied to all years preseated, unless otherwise stated.

2.01 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
(a) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consclidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

‘The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
bases specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(b) Preseniation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group presents
all items of income and expenses in a single statement of consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Two comparative periods are presented for the consolidated statement of financial

position when the Group applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a
retrospective restatement of items in its consolidated financial statements, or

reclassifies items in the financial statements.
(¢} Functional and Presentation Currengy

"These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the
Group’s functional currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except when

otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured
using its functonal currency, the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates.

2.02 Basis of Consolidation

The Parent Company obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries, ACIC, ASC and VHC, after the elimination of material
intercompany transactions. All intercompany balances and transactions with subsidiaries,
including income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and
losses from intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in
full. Intercompany losses that indicate impairment ate recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.



The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaties are consolidated from the date the Company obtains control

until such time that such control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Parent Company, if any. The consideration transferred also
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and subsequent change
in the fair value of contingent consideration is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the

acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-coatrolling interest in
the acquiree 2nd the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquitee over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recognized as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly as gain in

profit or loss.
2.03 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
(@) Effective in 2012 that are Relevant to the Group

In 2012, the Group adopted the following amendments to PFRS that are
refevant to the Group and effective for financial statements for the annual
petiod beginning on or after July 1, 2011 or January 1, 2012:

PFRS 7 (Amendment) :  Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets
PAS 12 (Amendment) : Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:

Recovery of Undetlying Assets
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Discussed below ate the relevant information about these amended standards.

() PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Tranifers of Financial
Adrrets. The amendment requires additional disclosures that will allow users
of financial statements to understand the relationship between transferred
financial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety and the
associated liabilities; and, to evaluate the nature of, and risk associated with
any continuing involvement of the reporting entity in financial assets that
are derecognized in their entirety. The Group did not transfer any
financial asset involving this type of arrangement; hence, the amendment
did not result in any significant change in the Group’s disclosures in its
consolidated financial statements.

i) PAS 12 (Amendment), Income Taxer — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assetr. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that the
measurement of a deferred tax liability or asset that arises from investment
property tneasured at fair value under PAS 40, Inveriment Property should
reflect the tax consequence of recovering the carrying amount of the asset
entirely through sale. The presumption is rebutted for depreciable
investment property (e.g., building) that is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the asset over time, rather than through sale. Moreover,
Standing Interpretation Committee 21, Incomre Taxes — Recovery of Revalued
Non-Depreciable Assets, is accordingly withdrawn and is incorporated under
PAS 12 requiring that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are
measured using the revaluation model in PAS 16, Property, Plant and
Egutpment should always be measuzed on a sale basis of the asset. The
amendment is assessed to have no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

(8) Effective in 2012 that ts not Relevant to the Group

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS, was amended to provide relief for first-
time adopters of PFRS from having to reconstruct transactions that occutred
before the date of transition to PFRS and to provide guidance for entities
emerging from severe hyperinflation either to resume presenting PFRS financial
statements o to present PFRS financial statements for the first time. The
amendment became effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 1, 2011 but is not relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.



(c) Effective Subsequent to 2012 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, atnendments, annual improvements and interpretations to
existing standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2012.
Management has initially determined the following pronouncements, which the
Group will apply in accordance with thetr transitional provisions, to be relevant
to its financial statements:

@

()

(1)

PAS 1 (Amendment), Financial Statements Presentation — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprebensive Income (effective from July 1, 2012). The amendment
requires an entity to group items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that, in accordance with other PFRSs: (a) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and, (b} will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The
Group’s management expects that this will not change the current
presentation of items in other comprehensive income [(i.e., segregation of
unrealized fair value gains and losses on Available-for-sale (AFS) financial

assers)].

PAS 19 (Revised), Employes Benefitr (effective from January 1, 2013). The
revision made a number of changes as part of the improvements
throughout the standard. The main changes relate to defined benefit plans

as follows:

¢ climinates the corridor approach under the existing guidance of
PAS 19 and requites an entity to recognize all actuarial gains and losses
arising in the reporting period,

¢ strearnlines the presentation of changes in plan assets and liabilities
resulting in the disaggrepation of changes into three main components
of service costs, net interest on net defined benefit obligation or asset,
and remeasurernent; and,

s cenhances disclosure requirements, including information about the
charactetistics of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are
exposed to through participation in those plans.

Currently, the Group is using the cortidor approach and its unrecognized
actuarial loss as of December 31, 2012 amounted to P14.4 million

(see Note 18.02) which will be retrospectively recognized a loss in in other
comprehensive income in 2013.

Consolidation Standards

The Group is currently reviewing the impact on its consolidated financial
statements of the following consolidation standards which will be effective

from January 1, 2013:

e  PIRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statesments. This standard builds on
existing principles of consolidation by identifying the concept of
control as the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements. The standard
also provides additional guidance to assist in determining control
where this is difficult to assess.
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o PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. "This standard integrates
and makes consistent the disclosure requirements for all forms of
interests in other entities, including joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and unconselidated structured entities. This
also introduces new disclosure requitements about the risks to which
an entity is exposed from its involvement with structured entities.

* DPAS 27 (Amendment), Separate Financial Statements. This revised
standard now covers the requirements pertaining solely to separate
financial statements after the relevant discussions on control and
consolidated financial statements have been transferred and included
in PERS 10. No new major changes relating to separate financial
statements have been introduced as a result of the revision.

» DAS 28 (Amendment), Investments tn Associate and Joint Venture. This
revised standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well
as associates, to be accounted for using equity method following the
issuance of PFRS 11, Jeint Arvangement.

Subsequent to the issnance of the foregoing consolidation standards, the
[ASB made some changes to the transitional provisions in International
Financial Repotting Standard (IFRS) 10, IFRS 11 {Joint Arrangement) and
IFRS 12, which were also adopted by the FRSC. The guidance confirms
that an entity is not required to apply PERS 10 retrospectively in certain
circumstances and clarifies the requirements to present adjusted
comparatives. The guidance also made changes to PFRS 10 and PFRS 12
which provide similar relief from the presentation or adjustment of
comparative information for periods prior to the immediately preceding
petiod. Further, it provides relief by removing the requirement to present
comparatives for disclosures relating to unconsolidated structured entities
for any period before the first annual period for which PFRS 12 is applied.

PERS 7 (Amendment), Financia! Instruments: Disclossres — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilitier (effective from January 1, 2013). The
amendment requires qualitative and quantitative disclosures relating to
gross and net amounts of recognized financial instruments that are set-off
in accordance with PAS 32, Financal Instruments: Presentation. The
amendment also requires disclosure of information about recognized
financial instruments which are subject to enforceable master netting
atrangements or similar agreements, even if they are not set-off in the
stalement of financial position, including those which do not meet some
or all of the offsetting critetia under PAS 32 and amounts related to a
financial collateral. These disclosures will allow consolidated financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with recognized
financial assets and financial liabilities on the eatity’s financial position.
The Group has initially assessed that the adoption of the amendment will
not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (effective from January 1, 2013). This
standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing
a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across PERS. The
requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards. Management is in the process of reviewing
its valuation inethodologies for conformity with the new requirements and
has yet to assess the impact of the new standard on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offretting Financial
Ausetr and Pinancial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2014). The
amendment provides guidance to address inconsistencies in applying the
critetia for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. It clarifies
that a right of set-off is required to be legally enforceable, in the normal
course of business; in the event of default; and in the event of insolvency
or bankruptey of the entity and all of the counterparties. The amendment
also clarifies the principle behind net settlement and provided
characteristics of a gross settlement system that would satisfy the criterion
for net settlement. The Group does not expect this amendment to have a
significant imopact on its financial statements.

PFRS 9, Fenancial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (effective from
January 1, 2015). This is the first part of a new standard on financial
instruments that will replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, in its entirety. This chapter covers the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and it deals with
two measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost and fair
vatue. All equity instruments will be measured at fair value while debt
instruments will be measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding
it to collect contractual cash flows which represent payment of principal
and interest. The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts
that are financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to
consider whether or not they are closely related, and, in most atrangement,
does not require separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in case ‘
where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a faix

value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other

comprehensive income rather than in profit or loss, unless this creates an

accounting mismatch.

To date, other chapters of PFRS ¢ dealing with impairment methodology
and hedge accounting are still being completed.

Further, in November 2011, the TASB tentatively decided to consider
making limited modifications to [FRS %s financial asset classification
model to address certain application issues.
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The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its
effective date or until all chapters of this new standard have been
published. In addition, management is currently assessing the impact of
PFRS 9 on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and it plans
to conduct a comprehensive study of the potential impact of this standasrd
ptior to its mandatory adopton date to assess the impact of all changes.

2009-2011 Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to
PFRS ¢2009-2011 Cycle) made minor amendments to a number of PERS,

which are effective for annual period beginning on or after
January 1, 2013. Among those improvements, the following amendiments

are relevant to the Group but management does not expect a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

(a) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statensents — Clarification of
the Requirements for Comparative Information. The amendment clarifies the
requirements for presenting comparative information for the
following:

= Requirements for opening statement of financial position

If an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a
material effect on the information in the statement of financial
position at the beginning of the preceding period (i.e., opening
statemnent of financial position), it shall present such third statement
of financial position. :

Other than disclosure of certain specified information in accordance
with PAS 8, Aeounting Policies, Changer in Accounting Estineates and
Errors, related notes to the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

¢ Requirements for additional comparative information beyond
minimum requirements

If an eatity presented comparative information in the financial
statements beyond the minimum comparative information
requirements, the additional financial staternents information should
be presented in accordance with PFRS including disclosure of
comparative information in the related notes for that additional
information. Presenting additional comparative information
voluntarily would not trigger a requirement to provide a complete
set of financial statetnents.



(b) PAS 16 {Armendment), Property, Plant and Equipment — Classifteation of
Servicing Equipment. The amendment addresses a perceived
inconsistency in the classification requirements for servicing
equipment which resulted in classifying servicing equipment as part of
inventory when it is used for more than one period. It clarifies that
iterns such as spare pasts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment
shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet
the definition of property, plant and equipment, otherwise, these are
classified as inventory.

(¢) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Presentation — Tax Effect of
Divtributions to Holderr of Egquity Instruments. The amendment clarifies
that the consequences of income tax relating to distributions to holders
of an equity instrumeént and to transaction costs of an equity
transaction shall be accounted for in accordance with PAS 12.
Accordingly, income tax relating to distributions to holders of an
equity instrumeat is recognized in profit or loss while income tax
related to the transaction costs of an equity transaction is recognized in

equity.
2.04 Business Segments

The Group is organized into the following business segments:

(a) Secarities brokerage — handles buyihg and selling of shares of stock, bonds and other
securities.

(b) Investment banking — provides services whick include underwriting of financial
instruments and management fees from financial and management advisory services.

(¢} Learing and others — includes leasing of condominium units and other segment
activities, none of which constitute a separately reportable segment.

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and
conditions,

PFunds are ordinarily aliocated between segments, resulting in funding cost transfers
disclosed in operating income. Interest charged for these funds ranges from
7.12% to 7.46%.

Inter-segment revenues and expenses also include rentals from the operating leases on
condominium units managed by certain segments. There are no other material items of

income or expense between the business segments.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities including items such
as taxation and borrowings.



- 10-

205 Financial Assets

Financial assets, which are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instruments, include cash and other financial instruments. Financial
assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments, are classified into
the following categosies: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investiments and AFS financial assets. Financial assets
ate assigned to the different categories by management on initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. The designation of financial
assets is re-evaluated at every reporting pesiod at which date a choice of classification or -
accounting treatment is available, subject to compliance with specific provisions of

applicable accounting standards.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that ate not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially
recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are recognized in consolidated

profit or loss.

A more detailed description of the categories of financial assets relevant to the Group
follows:

(a) Financial Assets at F17TPL

This category includes financial assets that are either classified as held for trading or
are designated by the entity to be cartied at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All
derivatives fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging
instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measored at fair value, and changes therein are
recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets (except derivatives and financial
instruments oziginally designated as investments at FVTPL) may be reclassified out of
EVTPL category if they are no longer held for the purpose of being sold or
repurchased in the near term.

(b} Loans and Receivabler

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active martket. They asise when the Group
provides money or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivables,

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss is determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
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The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as
Cash and Receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position. Cash
includes cash on hand and bank deposits which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value.
(¢) AFS Financial Assetr

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this
categoty or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial

assers.

All AFS financial assets are measured at fair value, unless otherwise disclosed, with
changes in value recognized in the consolidated other comprehensive income, net of
any effects arising from income taxes. When the asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired the cumulative gain or loss recognized in the consolidated other
comprehensive income is reclassified from revaluation reserve to consolidated profit
or loss and presented as a reclassification adjustment within consolidated other

comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated other comprehensive
income, except for investments that are debt securities which are recognized in the
consclidated profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impaizment loss was recognized.

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that are
recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Finance Income (Costs) in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For secutities that are actively traded in organized financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to stock exchange-quoted market bid prices at the close of
business on the reporting period. For investments where there is no quoted market price,
fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantally the same or is calculated based on the expected cash Hows of the

underlying net asset base of the investment.

Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related

catrying amount of financial assets is measured.

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to teceive cash flows
from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks

and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

2.00 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally
the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented
gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.07 Property and Equipment

Propetty and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly artributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions,
major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incutred. When assets are sold, retived or
otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses are temoved from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the
consolidated profit or loss for the period.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Condominium units 15-25 years
Building improvements 5 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furnitute, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost.
This includes cost of construction and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated
until such time that the assets are completed and available for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.11).

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to atise from the conrinued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated profit or loss in the

year the item ts derecognized.

2.08 Investment Propertics

Investment properties, accounted for under the cost model, are properties held either to

earn rentzl or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use for rendering of services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured initially at acquisition cost, including transaction
costs.
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The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions,
major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or
otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accurnulated depreciation and impairment
losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in
consolidated profit or loss for the period.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

assets of 25 years,

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.11).

The residual values and estimated useful lives of investment properties is reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn
from use and no future econornic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognized in consolidated
profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

2.09 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include goodwill, trading right and acquired computer software licenses
(presented as part of Other Assets account in the consolidated statement of financial
position). The cost of the asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair
value of the other considerations given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or

production.

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost of the investment over the fair
value of identifiable net assets of a subsidiary at date of acquisition. Goodwill is
cartied at amortized cost up to the date of transition to PFRS less any impairmentin
value. Goodwill is subject to annual test for impairment whether there is an objective
evidence of impairment or not (see Note 2.11).

(b} Trading Ripht

Trading right represents the value of the exchange seat which allows the Group to
trade in the PSE. Trading right is assessed as having an indefinite useful life and is.
tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

{see Note 2.11).

(¢) Computer Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining
computer softwate are expensed as incurred. Capitalized costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of three years as these intangible
assets are considered finite (see Note 2.11),
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2.10 Deferred Oil Exploration Costs

The Group made certain investments in ofl exploration projects. The cost of exploration
relating to service contract or block atea which is still in the exploratory stage are
capitalized as Deferred oil exploration costs (shown under the Other Assets account in
the consolidated statement of financial position). When a service contract or block area is
permanenily abandoned, the related deferred oil exploration cost is written off. Service
contracts or block areas are considered not permanently abandoned if the service
contracts have not yet expired and/or there are ongoing negotiations for further
exploration. The carrying amount of the capitalized deferred oil exploration costs is
written down to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.11).

211 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property and equipment, investment properties, deferred oil exploration
costs, goodwill, other intangible assets and other non-financial assets are subject to
impairment testing whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
such as goodwill and trading right are tested for impairment at least annually.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or cash-generating
unit’s cartying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell and value in use, based
on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to
the other assets in the cash generating unit.

All assets, except goodwill and trading right, are subsequently reassessed for indications
that an impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist and the carrying
amount of the asset is adjusted to the recoverabie amount resulting in the reversal of the
impairment loss. Impairment losses recognized on goodwill are not reversed.

2.12 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, due to customers and
accounts payable and other liabilities {excluding retirement benefit obligation and taxes

payabie),

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges are recognized as expense under the
caption Finance Cost in the consolidated statement of compzrehensive income.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are obtained to suppott the short-term to
long-term funding needs of the Group. They are recognized at proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that they are not settled in the petiod in which they arise.

Accounts payable and other liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities of
mote than one year, less settlement payments.
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Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or

expiration.
2.13 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outfiow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a
legai or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties assoctated with the present obligation.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as 2 whole.
When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their
present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition
criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Group
can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.14 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Company and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one
or moyse intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Parent Company; (b) associates; and (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an
interest in the voting power of the Parent Company that gives them significant influence
over the Parent Company and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.15 Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.
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Additional paid-in capital represents premiums received on the issuance of capital stock.
Any wansaction costs associated with the issuance of shares ate deducted from additional

paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.
Treasury shares are stated at the cost of re-acquiring such shares.

Revalvation reserves comprise unrealized gains and losses due to the revaluation of AFS
financial assets.

Deficit includes all current and prior period results as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of income.

2.16 Revenue and Expense Recogniftion

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by reference to the fair
value of consideration received or receivable by the Company for services rendered,
excluding value-added tax (VAT).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company; and, the costs incurred or
to be incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition
criteriz must alse be met before revenue is recognized:

(@) Rendering of vervices (commissions, underwriting fees, financial and management advisory fees) —
Revenue is recognized when contracmally agreed tasks have been substantially

rendered.

(&) Interest — Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the assets.

(¢} Rewtal— Revenue is recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Costs and expenses are recognized in the consolidated profit or loss upon utilization of
services or at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on
an accroal basis, except for borrowing costs capitalized as part of the cost of any
qualifyiog asset (see Note 2.21).

2.17 Securities Transactions

Securities transactions (and related commission income and expense, if applicable} are
recorded on a transaction date basis.

2,18 Leases

(a) Group ar fessee — Leases, which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and benefits of ownership of the asset, are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognized 2s expense in the consolidated profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and
insurance, are expensed as incurred.
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(6)  Group ar lessor ~ Leases, which do not transfer to the lessee substantially 21l the risks
and benefits of ownership of the asset, are classified as operating leases. Lease income
from operating leases is recognized as income in the consolidated profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
atrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement

conveys a right to use the asset.
2.19 Foreign Currency Transactions

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign
currency transactons duting the year are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and iosses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.20 Employee Benefits

(@) Defined Beneftt Plan

A defined benefit pian is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that 2an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal
abligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the
Company, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been
acquired. Plan assets may incinde assets specifically designated to a long-term
benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Company’s defined
benefit post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees. The pension
plan is tax-qualified and non-contributory. The Group does not have a formal
retirement plan but it accrues retirement benefit obligation based on actuarial

valuation report.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined benefit
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of the
reporting period together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses and past service costs. The DBO is calculated petiodically by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the DBO is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate
derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds as published by
Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation, that are denotninated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to
the terms of the related post-employment liability.
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Actuarial gains and losses are not recognized as an income or expense unless the
total unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and
related plan assets. The amount exceeding this 10% corridor is charged or credited
to profit or loss over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives.
Actuarial gains and losses within the 10% corridor are disclosed separately. Past-
service costs ate recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the changes to the
post-employment plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a
specified period of time (the vesting petiod}. In this case, the past-service costs are
atnortized on a straight-line hasis over the vesting period.

(b) Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contuibution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Company
pays fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed
contribution. The contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans
are expensed as they fail due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current labilities or
current assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

(¢) Compensated Abrencer

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including
holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are in the
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities- Others account (see Note 16) in the
statement of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Company expects
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

2.21 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurted,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are
capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expenditutes for the asset and bortowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use ot sale are in
propress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete.

222 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current
tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and
tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year. All changes to curtent tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
catrying amounts for financial repotting purposes. Under the liability method, with
certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilides are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets ate recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to

be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
petiod and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realized or the Hability is settled provided such tax rates
have been enacted ot substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss. Only changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to
irems recognized in other comprehensive income or ditectly in equity are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Labilities are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets agatnst current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority,

2.23 BEarnings (Loss) Per Share

Earnings {loss) per shate is determined by dividing consolidated net profit (loss) by the
weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year.

Diluted eatnings per share is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares.

2.24 Bvents After the End of the Reporting Petiod

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s financial
position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial
statements. Post-yeatr-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when
material to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and refated notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that ate believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may ultmately differ from these estimates.
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3.01 Critical Management fudgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(#)

(%)

(¢

()

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets

The determination when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost, and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flows. Putute changes in those information and
circumstance might significantly affect the carrying amount of the assets.

Allowance for impairment losses on the Group’s AFS financial assets amounted
to P144.9 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (see Note 9).

Distinction Between Operating and Finance Leases

The Group has entered into vatious lease agreements either as a lessor or lessee.
Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
tisk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to
make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of assets
and liabilities.

Distinction Between Investment Propertier and Owner-occupied Properties

‘The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In
making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied propezrties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but also to other
assets used in the production or supply process.

Revagnition of Provirions and Contingencies
Judgmment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognition and disclosure of provision and contingencies
are discussed in Note 2.13 and relevant disclosures are presented in Note 23,
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3.02 Key Sousces of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key soutces of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year:

(@)

)

G

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Invertment Propertier and Computer Software

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, investment
properties and computer software based on the period over which the assets are
expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and
equipment, investment properties and computer software are reviewed periodically
and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment, investment properties and
computer software are analyzed in Notes 12, 13.03 and 13.06, respectively. Based on
management’s assessment as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, there is no change in
estimated useful lives of property and equipment, investment properties and
computer software during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to
changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

Imipairment of Receivables

Allowance is made for specific and groups of accounts, where objective evidence of
impairment exists. The Group evaluates these accounts based on available facts and
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship
with the customers, the customers’ current credit status, average age of accounts,
collection experience and historical loss experience.

The carrying value of receivables and the analysis of allowance fot itmpairment on
such financial assets are shown in Note 10.

Valnation of Financial Assete Other Than Receivables

The Group carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires the extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgment. Significant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates. However, the amount of changes in fair
value would.differ if the Group utilized different valuation methods and assumptions.
Any change in fair value of these financial assets would affect the consolidated profit
and loss and other comprehensive income. In 2012 and 2011, most of the Group’s
financial assets measured at fair value are valued using price quoted in an active
market,

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets at FVIPL and AFS financial
assets and the amounts of fair value changes recognized during the years on those
assets are disclosed in Notes 8 and 9, respectively.
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Delerzuining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Asseis

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. The carrying values of recognized and unrecognized deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are disclosed in Note 21,

lnzpairoment of Non-financial Assels

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
or 2 cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest
ate to calculate the present value of those cash flows, Estimation uncertainty relates
to asstmptions about future operating tesults and the determination of a suitable
discount rate (see Note 2.11). Though management believes that the assumptions
used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial statements are
appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impaitrnent loss could
have a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

No itmpairment loss on non-financial assets was recognized in 2012, 2011 and
2010,

| czlmtz'on of Post-employment Defined Beneftts

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calenlating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 18.02 and
include, among others, discount rates and expected rate of salary increases. In
accordance with PFRS, actval results that ditfer from the expected rate of
assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future

periods.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of
movernents in the estimated present value of retitement benefit obligation are

presented in Note 18.02.
Fair 17 alue Mearurement for Investment Property

The Group’s investment property is composed of condominium units cartied at cost
al the end of the reporting period. The fair value of investment property as disclosed
in Note 13.03 is determined by reference to market-based evidence, which is the
amount for which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing
buyer and seller in an arm’s length transaction as at the valuation date.” Such amount
is influenced by different factors including the location and specific characteristics of
the property (e.g., size, features, and capacity), quantity of comparable properties
available in the market, and economic condition and behaviour of the buying partes.
A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the assets.



RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a vadety of financial risks which result from both its operating,
financing and investing activities. The risk management activities at the level of each
company in the Group is coordinated with the Parent Company, in close cooperation
with the BOD, and focuses on actively secuting the Group’s short-to-mediumn-term cash
flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investments
are managed to generate lasting returns,

The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described
below.

4,01 Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term
financing, At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group is exposed to changes in market
interest rates through its notes payabie which are subject to variable interest rates

(see Note 14). All other financial assets and liabilities have fixed rates.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax and equity
10 a reasonably possible change in interest rates of ++/- 3.57% in 2012, +/- 5.25% in 2011
and 3.50% in 2010. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the
average market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at the end
of each reporting period that ate sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables

are held constant.

Effect on Profit before Tax

Positive Negative
Change Change
2012 (+/3.57%) P 71,830,543 (P 71,830,543)
2011 (+/-5.25%) 92,012,864  ( 92,012,804)
2010 (+/- 3.50%) 51,166,878  ( 51,166,878)

4.02 Foreign Cutrency Risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly from potential losses from the changes in the
exchange rates of the Group’s foreign currency denominated assets.

The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its foreign currency exposure by limiting its
foreign currency transactions to the extent possible. The Group does not enter into
forward contracts or hedging transactions.

The Group’s United States (US} dollar-denominated financial instrurnents, pestain only
to cash in bank, translated into Philippine pesos at the closing rates, amounting to
P161,874 in 2012, P368,852 in 2011, and P1,667,099 in 2010.

The exchange rates used ace P41.22(0:1JS§1, P43.928:US§1, P43.885:US$1 as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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"The table below demonstrates the possible impact on the Group’s profit befote tax and
equity of the changes in the exchange rates of the Philippines peso and US dollars. It
assumes a +13.83%+/- 16.23%, and +/- 21.14% change of the Philippine peso — US
dollar exchange rate for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
These percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility in the
exchange rates in the previous 12 months, estimated at 99% confidence level, with all

other variables held constant.

Positive Negative
Change Change
2012 (+/-13.83%)
Profit before tax (P 22,387) P 22,387
Equity ( 15,653) 15,653
2011 (+/- 16.23%)
Profit before tax (¥ 59,865 P 59,865
Equity ( 41,900) 41,900
2010 (+/- 21.14%)
Profit before tax (P 352,425) P 352,425
Equity ( 246,733) 246,733

The Group’s exposures to changes in foreign exchange rates may differ at various periods
each year, depending on the volume of foreign currency transactions. Hence, the
foregoing effects should not be construed to be representative of the Group’s foreign
curfency exposure at any particular point in time.

4.03 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group.
The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instraments, for example by
granting loans and receivables to customers and placing deposits.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit
tisk controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In
addition, for a significant proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitigaté

credit risk.

Generally, the maxitnum credit risk exposute of financial assets is the carrying amount
of the financial assets as shown on the consolidated statements of financial positon
(or in the detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements)

as summarized below.

Notes 2012 2011
Cash in banks 7 P 130,263,763 P 174,644,949
Commercial papers 8 - 3,000,000
Receivables — net 10 1.430,662,018 1,290,284.,135

P_1.560925.781 I 1.467929084
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The credit risk for cash is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable
banks with high quality external credit ratings. Cash presented in the analysis in the
previous page do not include cash on hand amounting to P91,621, P70,000 and
P76,621 as of December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. It only includes cash
in banks and short-term placements which are insured by the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Cotporation up to a maximum coverage of P500,000 for every depositor

per banking institution.

The table below shows the credit quaiity by class of financial assets as of December 31,

December 31, 2012

Cash in hank

Receivables:
Customers/ brokers
Lguity margin loans
Accounts receivable
Interest recervable
Notes receivable
Others

December 31, 2011

Cash in bank

Commercial papers

Receivables:
Customers/brokers
Equity margin loans
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Notes receivable
Others

Neither Past Due Nor Impaired

Past Due but

High Standatd not Individually
Grade Grade Tmpaired Total
P 130,263,763 P - r - P 130,263,763
111,187,875 479,295,932 12,786,153 603,273,960
i 523.459,82 - 523,450,824
7,568,097 152,804,794 - 160,372,891
! ! 62,854,154 62,854,154
; ; 65114.885  65,114.885
- 394 819 15,191,575 15.586,394

L 249,019,735 [P1155,959,569 P 155,946,767 1.560,925,871

Neither Past Due Nor Impaired

Past Duc but

High Standard not [ndividually
Grade Grade Impaired Toral
P 174644,949 T - P - P 174,644,949
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
84,000,703 334,181,721 12,786,153 431,052,343
- 716,344,883 - 716,344,883
- 31,040,000 1,349,708 32,389,708
- - 67,854,154 67,854,154
; . 36,114,886 36,114,886
- 4,494 470 2,033,691 6,528,161

P 261,735,652 P1,086,061,074 B 120,138,592 P1.467,929,084

Certain receivables of the Group are partially secured by borrowers’ collaterals and
customers’ stocks traded in the PSE that are held by the Group, Other financtal assets
are not secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

Management believes that the amount of past due but not individually impaired
receivables are still recoverable as the Group’s management has regular communication
with the debtors for the settlement of the receivables.

In respect of receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure
to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics.



_ 26

4.04 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a six-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods.
Excess cash are invested in titne deposits, mutual funds or short-term marketable
secutities. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by the Group’s

ability to sell long-term financial assets.

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual

maturities which are presented below.

Current Non-current
Within 6o 12 1ta5
6 Months Months Years Total
December 31, 2012
Interest-bearing loans and
botrowings P1,938,356,217 P 82778925 T 12,171,316 P22,033,306,458
Accounts payable and other
liabilities (excluding retivement
benefit abligadon and taxes
payable) 88,220,576 11,657,184 - 99,877,760
Due to customers 274,200,184 - - 274.200.184
£2,300.776.977 P 94,436,300 E__12,171.316 P2.407,384,402
Current Non-current
Within Gto12 1to5
6 Months Months Years Total
December 31, 2011
Interese-bearing Joans and
borrowings 1»1,588,833369 P 25945129 T 153234374 T 1,768,012,872

Actounts payable and other
liabifities (excluding retirement
benelit obligation and taxes

payable)
Due to customers

56,167,911 -
379,602,722 -

. 56,167,911
- 379602732

£2,004,604,007 P _ 25,945,129 P 153,234,374 P2,203,785,505

The above contractual matarities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the
carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the teporting petiod.

4.05 Other Market Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its investments carried at fair value
(financial assets at FVIPL and AFS financial assets). It manages its risk arising from
changes in market price by monitoring the changes in the market price of the
investments.



- -27-

The obsetved volatility rates using standard deviation of the fair values of the Group’s
investments held at fair value and their impact on the Group’s net profit and other
comprehensive income as of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 are summarized as

follows:

Tncrease Degrease
Other Other
Comprehensive Comprehensive
2012 Ingrease Diecrease Net Profit Income Net Profit Income
Financial assets at FYTPL +11.67% 11.67% T 65090024 T - (P 65090024) T -

AFS financial asscts
Berjaya Philippines,

Inc. (BCOR) TEAY TEAM i 1.954.779.383 . (_195:1779.563)
P 65000024 D 1,954,779,583 (B_65,090.024) (£1,254,779,583)

2011
[Financial assets at FVIPL +16.98% -16.98% T 73526251 P - (P 73,526231) P -
AFS [inancial assets
BCOR +19.61% -19.61% - 465,801,870 - {——4G5.801.870)
P 73,526251 P 465801870 (2 73596851y (P 463,801,870)
2010
Financial assets at FVITPL +18.79%: -18.79% P 73896387 P - P 73,896387) P -
ATS financial assels
BCOR +8331% -85.31% - 2453451677 - (. 2433450,67T

The investments in listed equity securities (classified as AFS financial assets) are
considered long term, strategic investments. In accordance with the Group’s policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in relation to these investments.

The volatility rates of investment in golf club shares were not presented as of
Decernber 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 since the impact of these volatility rates using
standard deviation of the golf club shares on the consolidated other comprehensive
income would not be significant.
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5. CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LYABILITIES

5.01 Comparison of Cost and Fair Values

The cost and fair vaiues of the categosies of assets and liabilities presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position are shown below.

Finaneciaf assets

Loaos and receivables:
Cash

Receivables — net

Financial nssets ar NV ITLL
Equity sceuritics
Conunercial papers

AFS financial agsets:
Equity securitics

Financial Falilitics

Finaneial liabilities at amortized cost:

Interesi-beadng loans and
borrowings

Due to customers

Accounts payable and other
liabilities (excluding retirement
benefit olligation and
raxes payablc)

5.02 Fair Value Hietarchy

2012

2011

Notes Cost Fair Values

7
10

14
15

16

P 130,355,384
1,430,662,018

1,561,017,402

349,286,166

188,008,274
537,294,440
D 2,008,311,842

P 2,012,060,034
274,815,850

99.8 0

P 130,355,384
1,430,662,018

1,561.017,402

557,810,495

2,598.351,240
3,156,161,735
L£4,717,179,157

P2,012,060,034
274,815,850

Cost Fair Vaolues

P OIT47I4,049 P 174,714,949
1200284135 1290284135

1.464.999,084 1.464.999,084

357,838,426 430,016,792
3,600,000 3,000,000
1967,585,005 _ 2381928250
2328426521 _ 2814945042

P 1,752,625,980 P 1,752,625,980
379,602,722 379,602,722

56,1679 56,167,911

The Group adopted the amendments to PFRS 7, Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments. 'These amendments require the Group to present certain information about
financial instruments measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

I accordance with this amendment, financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
in the consolidated statements of financial position are categorized in accordance with
the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the significance of inputs used in measuring the fair value of the financial

assets and liabilities.

All financial instrument classified as AFS financial assets atnounting to P2,598,351,240
and P2,381,928,250 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively are classified as
Level 1 in fair value hierarchy, except for the investments in unquoted equity securities
amounting to P144,932 930 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, which are measured at
cost because the fair value cannot be reliably measured and thetefore are not included
(see Note 9). The fair values of financial assets at FVIPL amounting to P557,756,995 in
2012 and P433,016,792 in 2011 were also determined using Level 1 of the fair value

hierarchy.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there are no financial liabilities smeasured at fair value,
Similarly, there are no assets and liabilities determined at fair value using Levels 2 and 3 as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

¢ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

¢ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from
prices); and,

e Tevel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers between hierarchies in both years.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.

The following tables present revenue and profit information regarding industry segments

for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and certain assets and liabilities
information regarding industry segments as at December 31, 2012, 2011and 2010.

Year Ended Becember 31, 2012

Seennities Iswesteneor Leasing
Revenues:
Exteenal P 205,877,059 I 26,164,416 r 27,641,889 r - P 320623364
lutee-sepsment 529,04 396346505 4,15 { 414,079,696 -
2 0] 102,850,521 JLAG093  { 414,079,696) 32062336
fxpenses:
External 142,506,773 187,722 567 18856492 - 340,085,832
lntnr-scgmcul 50,656,209 20.436.306 - ( 77.092.515) _
193,162,582 214,158,873 18,856,492 72092515 9085832
Prafit (se) before tax P 5208 P BERME D 25800507 (B_SIGIRIEY (L. 104624GH)
Net loss for the yeac P 7621 P 203116506 [ 23603 (D_(6ISTIEN (P 10950.851)
Segment assels P 200673631 EAMSMIA  P__MOZGL456 (E_LEPM.857331) P5021,388,963
Sewment abilities L 573.430,002 P2207.244.545 P__1635311,561 (E_601.036.245) D 2,432,950,871
Other segmeni sienis:
Capital expenditures I 1200219 E___ - - = I 1,900,210
Duepreciation and amoriization I 8:449,160 D___5240,331 1 4,631,185 DB 280,060 D___I18,600676
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Year Ended December 31, 2011

Sceurities Investment Leasing
Revenues ;
Lxternal P 209,252,341 I 146,660,601 » 3.967,837 r - P 359,820,799
[ieter-sepment 1352954 67 894,020 18,208,343 ( #7.455.373) -
2{0.645315 214,554,627 22170080 87.455.323) 359,920,709
Lxpenses:
Extemal L67NI1562 155,903,171 19,161,741 - 342,156,477
Intee-sepnent 23,836,965 63338358 - { 87,175.323) -
190,928,527 219,241,532 19161741 ( 87.175.323) 342156477
Profit (loss} helore tax j 19716788 (L 49664005) B 3014430 P = B 17,744,322
Net profit (kss) for the year L 125304496 D 1262783 r 2742615 il - L 22309804
Scgment assets D D28 750,852 I _5,330,014.792 P_785.947508 (D _1070,050.543) D 4574713559
Segment liabilities D 41y dd 2 2 9 D 164006605 (P L04670097T) .22
Other segment items:
Capinal expenditures U 12,827,506 id - j B > . B 12,837,506
Depreciatinn and amoctization il 7.851.131 r 5,56547 L 4631184 I - Ir 18047 785

Vear Ended December 31, 2010
- Seeurities Investment Leasiag

Revenues:

Extecual P 232826577 P 126,253,649 r SAL76 1 - P 359,637,995
Inler-segment 4259123 54,890,113 16,884,890  ( 76,034,125 -
237 D83 670 181,143,761 17442659 764341253 359,637,995
Expenses:
External 133,946,198 136,910,827 16,242,883 - 287,799,908
Inter-sepment 3383.817 62,650,308 - ( 76,034.125) -
147.330.043 561,135 1GO42RBY  ( 74031125 287,510.008
Prafit {loss) before. mx ol 80.755,685 (P __ 18417374} I 400775 R = P___71,838.087
Net prefit for the year I 62447 SET L H1075 L 254 400 jud = I 63113471

Sepment assers

u [} [k P 5611722365 232930365 (I 1723.24679G) P_3.060.145 25.

Segnent liabilities P 6dl.513°78 2 {80 4604 U 182464875 (D __ZURROORRE) [P 2144559178
Other segment items:
Capital expenditures It 1L 815561 2 - I - itd - P 11815961
Depregiation ansl amorlization > 5717.249 p 5.930.016 I 4,664,180 T . P 16,31 1445
7. CASH

This account includes the following:

2012 2011
Cash in banks P 130,263,763 P 174,644,949
Cash on haad 91,621 70.000

P 130355384 I 174714949

The Group maintains a special reserve bank account with a local bank in compliance with
the Securities Regulation Code. The bank account has 2 balance of P74,320,425
and 80,740,770 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Foreign currency-denominated cash amounted to P161,874 (US$3,927) in 2012
and P368,852 (US§8,397) in 2011.

Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This account consists of the following financial assets:

2012 2011
Equity securities P 557,756,995 P 430,016,792
Designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition - 3.000.000

P _557,756,995 P 433.016.792

Equity securities include investments in shares of stock of publicly-listed entities which
are held solely for trading purposes. These shates are carried at fair value as determined
directly by reference to published price quoted in an active market. For investments in
shares of stock of publicly-listed entities which are suspended as of the end of the
reporting period, the last transacted price was used in determination of fair value.

Financial assets designated as at FVIPL on initlal recognition pertain to short-term
placements in commercial papers which earn interest of 3.30% to 3.75% in 2011

(il in 2012).

The gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL amounted to 35,478,265 in 2012,
P20,807,103 in 2011 and P16,021,911 in 2010. These are presented as part of Finance
Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20).

The Group recognized changes in fair value financial assets at FVTPL amounting to
P23,592,489 gain in 2012, P7,447,989 loss in 2011 and P63,344,653 gain in 2010. These
are presented as part of Finance Costs and Finance Income in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Notes 20.01 and 20.02).

All of the Group’s investments at FVTPL are classified as current.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

AFS financial assets pertain to the shares of stock of the following:

2012 2011
At fair walue:
BCOR P 2,591,171,240 P2,375,328,250
Others - Club shares 7,180,000 6,600,000

2,598,351,240 2,381,928 250

At cost: .
Universal Rightfieid Properties (URP) 144,910,130 144,910,130
Philippine Central Depository (PCD) 22,800 22,800
. 144,932,930 144,932,930
Allowance for impairment ( 144,932 930y {_ 144.932.930)

L 2,598,551,240 P2,381,928250

The movements of AFS financial assets follow:

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year P 2,381,928,250 P2,882,475,070
Fair value gains (losses) 259,847,206 ( 471,973,440)
Realized fair value gains transferred

to consolidated profit or loss ( 20,305,204) (  105,5606,589)
Additions 2,993,295 123,860,898
Disposals ( 26,112,307 ( 46.867,689)
Balance at end of year P.2,598,351,240 P2.381.926.250

AFS financial asset consist mainly of investent in companies listed in the PSE.

In 2012 and 2011, the Group sold a portion of its BCOR shares which, resuited in 2 gain
on sale of AFS financial assets amounting to P20,305,204 and P105,566,589 (net of other
charges amounting to P335,500 and P624,016), respectively, in the profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group holds 92,541,830 shares and 95,013,130
shares in BCOR, respectively, valued at P28 per share in 2012 and P25 per share in 2011.

The fair values of AFS financial assets that ate catried at their fait values have been
determined directly by reference to published prices in an active market. Fair value gains
(losses) of P259,847,206, (P471,973,440) and P198,659,659 in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, on the revaluation of the AFS financial assets are presented as other
comprehensive income (loss).
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Investments in URP and PCD, publicly listed companies whose shares are suspended for
trading, were valued at total cost amounting to 144,932,930, and were fully provided

with allowance for impairment.

Sale of AFS securities resulted in gains of 120,305,204, 109,009,689 and P58,704,902 in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and recorded as part Finance Income in the
consolidated staternents of income (see Note 20),

Net cummulative fair value changes on AFS financial assets amounted to P2,410,342,966
and ’2,170,800,964 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and are presen.ted as
Revaluation Reserves in the statements of financial position.

10. RECEIVABLES

The breakdown of this account follows:

Notes 2012 2011

Equity margin loans 10.01 P 633,765,644 T 635,613,481
Customers/ brokers 10.02 603,273,960 382,426,112
Accounts receivable 10.03,11.03 204,834,157 285,567,572
Notes receivables 10.04 107,739,251 107,739,251
Interest receivables 10.04 62,354,154 67,854,154
Management fee 11.01 19,400,000 9,700,000
Others 16,314,394 17.548281

1,648,181,560 1,506,448,851
Allowance for impairment (217,514.424) (_ 216,164.716)

ME_LM&

All receivables of the Group have been reviewed for indications of impairment. Certain
receivables were found to be impaired and provisions have been recorded accordingly.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the begioning and end of 2012 and
2011 is shown below,

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 216,164,716 P 216,164,716
Impairment losses 1,349,708 -
Balance at end of year 217,514,42 P 216164716

The matusity profile of the Group’s receivables follows:

2012 2011
Within one year P 843,817,393 T 502,834,632
Beyond one year but less than five years 586,844,625 787.449.503

D1.430,662,018 21290284135
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Management believes that the aliowance for impairment is adequate to cover any losses
from its receivables. The management is in constant communication with the debtors for

the settlement of the receivables.

10.01 Equity Martgin Loans

Effective January 1, 2007 and until the BOD reverses the resolution, the management
decided to stop recognizing interest on equity margin loans by virtue of a board
resolution after the Group received requests from its customers for a moratorium on
interest charges on equity margin loans. These receivables are secured by certain
marketable shares of stock {pledged by certain customers) with a total market value of
P734,366,406, P811,198,388 and P883,295,116 as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,

tespectively,
10.02 Recervable from Customers/Brokers

Receivables from customers/brokers result from the Group’s securities trading
transactions and are normally settied within three days from the date of transaction.
Receivables are subjected to impairment testing based on present value of the estimated

future cash flows.
10.03 Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include a receivable from Kestrel, a third party engaged in purchasing
teceivables, amounting to P116,019,882 and P124,019,882 as of December 31, 2012

and 2011 which arose from an Assignment of Receivables Agreement executed between
the Group and Kestrel on April 12, 2002. Under the agreement, the amount collected

by Kestrel including accrued interest, shall be payable to the Group on or befoze
December 31, 2006 which date was subsequently extended to December 31, 2016. These
receivables represent the balance of an equity margin loan of a previous customer after
deducting a partial settlemnent through a dacion en page arrangement, whereby the original
debtor transferred to the Group certain condominium units valued at P65,280,000

(see Note 13.03). Under the terms of the assignment, Kestrel grants the Group a call
option on all but not part of the receivables, including uncollected but accrued eatnings,
which have not been collected at the time of the exercise of the call option. The call
option is exercisable by the Group any time prior to November 30, 2016, The exercise
price of the call option is equal to the uncollected principal of the receivables. The
portion of the receivables already collected prior to the exercise of the call option shall
constitute the remaining obligation of Kestrel to the Group which is payable on or before
December 31, 2016. The call option is consideted closely related to its host contract
since the exercise price on each exercise date is equivalent to the carrying amount of the
biost contract. The call option was eventually not exercised by the Group.

The management of the Group is confident that the receivables will be realized and the
original debtor will eventually be able to settle its obligations. Allowance for impairment
on recetvable from Kestrel amounted to 25,000,000 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Kestrel made partial payments of P8,000,000 and P39,500,000 in 2012 and 2011,

respectively.
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10.04 Notes and Interest Recefvables

Notes and interest receivables represent outstanding claims from an individual which are
due upon demand.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The summary of the Company’s significant trantsactions with its related parties as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 follows:

2012 2011
Amount of  Qutstanding  Amount of Outstanding
Related Party Category Notes Transaction Balance Transaction Balance

Management fees 11.01 68,181,486 19,400,000 39,673,908 9,700,000
Advances from a refated party 11,02 - - 6,690,208 -
Granting of advances 11.03 3,048,712 6,284,931 425984 3,236,219
Key management personnel

compensation 11.04 21,292,665 - 17,850,415 -

11.0f Management Fees

The Group earns management fees from Philippine Gaming Management Corporation
(PGMC, an entity under common key management personnel} by virtue of the
Management Services Agreement (the Agreement) between the Group and PGMC.

Management fees amounted to 68,181,486, 39,673,908, and, P64,781,024 in 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively, and are presented as Management Fees in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Management fees receivable amounted to
P19,400,000 in 2012 and P9,700,000 in 2011 and are presented as part of Receivables in
the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 10).

11.02 Advances from a Related Party

The Group obtained non-interest bearing advances from a certain related party which
amounted to P6,690,208 as of December 31, 2011. No similar transaction was recognized

in 2012.
11.03 Granting of Advances

The Group grants interest bearing loans to employees with interest ranging from 12.0%
to 12.5%. Receivables from employees as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 amouated to

P6,284,931 and P3,236,219, respectively. These are presented as part of Accounts
Receivables acconnt under Receivables in the consolidated statements of financial

position (see Note 10.03).
11.04 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Short-term benefits given by the Group to key management personnel amounted
to 121,292,665, P17,850,415, and P14,362,018 in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
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12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross catrying amounts and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment,
of property and equipment, at the beginning and end of 2012 and 2011 are shown below.

Futaiture, Constructian
Condominivwm  Building Transportation Computer Fixtures and in

December 31, 2012

Cost PoILAIETI4 T 51369,380 P 202T0493 P 71806348 D OZ6663636 P - T 2R5635,571
Accumulaied deprciation
sl stmorizarion (o 6DUTE999) (_JORKZ4NY (__16454L729) (. 647931)7) {__ 22006823} - (_20LM9.4070)
Ner exrryingsamant P_S4STOI5  PU2g0L060 P LERIM P T0iadl R _40S6RY B .- LRG3
Becember 31, 20011
Cost P4 435714 P 46065200 P 20,260,493 P 0,776,432 26281032 T 7621208 P 2B5441,136
Aceumulired deprecranon
and smortization (—SLIM088) (_38731.262) (13420257 ) ( _G2AR3208) (__ 23642258y _ - ( 2602.410)
Net garrying amaount I S0l55880 1 7334028 6790236 B_R23140 D365 P 7621968 42 83.) 12
January 1, 200)
Cost 14435714 D H01LTY D 20,028,077 P G 0tH IR ro2600110m T - 273,571,392
Avcunulated depreciion
and amwclization {_40581669) (_ARMEUMY (__10LIB608) { _60S14230) [ ___2L99R1T1) - [ 180,283,608 )
Net carrying mntiit L_l83 85 [ _S266789 P_9.883062 8489051 L__dwdony P P 93IMTTVRL

A reconciliation of the carrying arnounts at the beginning and end of 2012 and 2011, of
propetty and equipment is shown below.

Furniture, Caouostrucrion
Condaminiuen Building Trangportation Carmputer Fixtures and in
. Tt s e P T

Babance at Jumamcy 1, 2012,
ner of accumulived

deprecition I* SOIS5880 P 2334028 P6,70,230 P B293,140 PO363951 B 7621268 P 02834,120
Acklini - - - 1A0S400 314,019 ROLBOD 1,900,219
ions - 6,304,000 - - 1397078 ( 7,702,978) -
inn andd armeshzation
ehtyes for the year (o 5A98166) (__LISGI49Y (_ 20Ti417) (__2697.M8) (___L204758) - (__13KI783))

Bulance :nt December 31, 2012,
ner of sccumubared

depreciation L_53457715 PR I2481000 L 3818764 P _7M0L2M D 4D56A0 L. D 8NUI6A92

Ralance at January I, 2011,

net of secomubied

gepreciation T 63355 T 5966,787 P 98R3G6T P 8489951 T3 T - P 93,287,784
2053570 B 231,231 621,037 7,621,268 12,827,506

Addelitions
Reckssitications - -
Taeprecianon and amkriizition

charges for the year (___SGUKIGS) (__ 68633)) {_ 3002833} (2028042} (___ L075793) - (... 13281, 164)
Balance ot December 31, 2011,

ner of aceunukited

depreciation PoShissgmy P30 L 69033 D o0 L SEWSH D Z612GE D YIAMA2%

Condominium units of the Group with catrying amounts of P9,209,729 and P10,276,709
in 2012 and 2011, respectively, were used to secure the Group’s bank loans payable
(see Note 14). ‘
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13. OTHER ASSETS

The breakdown of this account follows:

Notes 2012 2011

Deferred rax assets — net 21 P 95419277 P 76,088,281
Goodwill 13.01 84,584,951 84,584,951
Creditable withholding taxes  13.02 75,335,753 64,982,299
Deferred oil exploration costs  13.04 15,418,003 15,418,003
Investment properties - net 13.03 10,854,574 15,277,998
Input VAT 1,590,855 5,113,868
Trading right 13.05 1,408,000 1,408,000
Computer software — net 13.06 1,060,883 293,675
Others 2,848,019 3,446,831

288,520,315 266,613,906

Allowance for impairment

of goodwill ( 49,260,596) ( 49,260,596)
Allowance for

non-tecoverability of

deferred oil

exploration costs ( 15,418.003) ( 15.418.003)
P 223841716 P _201.935307

13,01 Goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the three subsidiaries, where the acquisition cost is
higher than the fair value of the net assets acquired of each subsidiary. Itis subject to
annual impairment testing and whenever there is an indication of impairment. The
Group did not recognize any impairment loss in 2012, 2011 and 2010,

13.02 Creditable Withholding Taxes

This account represents accumulated income tax credits of the Group that remained
unapplied as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, These income tax credits will be applied

against future income tax liabilities.

13.03 Investment Propertics

The gross catzrying amounts and accumulated deprectation and impairment losses of
investment properties at the beginning and end of 2012 and 2011 are shown below.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 anuary 1. 2017

Cost P 72,280,000 P 72,280,000 P 72,280,000
Accumulated depreciation ( 59,530,748) ( 55,107,324) ( 50.683,900)
Accumulated impairment

losses { 1,894.678) ( 1.894.678) ¢ 1.894,678)

P 10,854,574 I 15,277,998 Ju 19,701,422

Net carrying amount
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2012 and 2011, of
investment properties is shown below.

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year,

net of accumulated depreciztion

and impairment losses P 15277998 T 19,701,422
Depreciation for the year ( 4,423.424) | 4.423.424)
Balance at end of year, net of

accurnulated depreciation and

impairment losses P 10,854,574 D 15277998

There are no direct operating expenses incurred for the investment properties.

The Group’s investment property mostly consists of condominium units. These
condominium units located in Nasugbu and Batulao, Batangas were acquired and
capitalized by the Group as a result of the dacion en pago atrangement with a majot
customet in exchange for a partial settlement of the latter’s Ioans (see Note 10).

The total estimated fair values of the investment properties based on the latest available
appraisal report obtained by the Group amounted to P27,956,000 and P37,635,988 as of

Drecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

13.04 Detferred Oil Exploration Cost

Deferred cil exploration costs represent mainly of costs and related expenses incurred in
connection with the Group’s participation in the exploration of oil under GSEC-57. The

' Group believes that while the result of the exploration of the first well indicated that the

area covered by the first well may no longer be viable, the potential of the remaining areas
is still untested and, thus, future prospects and leads remain valid. In this regard, the
consostium applied for its third Non-Exclusive Geophysical Permit which was approved
by the Department of Energy on October 31, 1995. The Group’s management asserts
that the project is still viable and no write-offs have been made by the project
proponents. Nonetheless, a full allowance for non-recoverability of deferred exploration

cost is provided.

13.05 Teading Right

Trading right is assessed as having an indefinite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. It is tested anavally for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount, and recognizing any excess of the catrying amount over the
recovetable amount as an impairment loss.

As certified by tie PSE, the last transacted price of an exchange right is P8,500,000,
which was recorded last December 14, 2011. Hence, based from the comparison of the
trading right’s carrying amount of P1,408,000 as of December 31, 2012, and the
recoverable amount, the Group’s trading right is not impaired.
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13.006 Computer Software

The gross catrying amounts and accumulated amortization at the beginning and end
of 2012 and 2011 are shown below.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 January 1, 2011

Cost P 13,389,323 P 12,262,712 P 12,157,355
Accumulated

amortzation { 12,328.440) ( 11,969.037) ( 11.625,840)
Net cartying amount P 1,060,883 D 293615 I 531,515

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2012 and 2011, of
computer software is shown below.

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of yeas,
" net of accumulated amortization P 293,675 P 531,515
Additions 1,126,607 105,357
Amortization for the year ( 359,399) ( 343.197)

Balance at end of year,

net of accumulated amortization P 1060883 P 293675

14, INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of December 31, this account consists of:

2012 2011
Notes payable P 1,998,516,882 P1,722,473,903
Bank loans ' 13,543,152 30,152,077

P.2.012,060,034 DP1.752.625.980

Notes payable represents short-term unsecured loans from various funders bearing
annwal interest at rates ranging from 5.0% to 9.30% and 6.0% to 10.0% in 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Bank loans are secured by the Group’s condominium units (see Note 12).

Management considers the carrying amounts of short-term interest-beating loans and
borrowings recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position to be
reasonable approximation of their fair values due to their short duration.
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The fair values of long-term financial liabilities have been determined by calculating their
present values at the consolidated statements of financial position date using fixed
effective market interest rates applicable to the Group. No fair value changes have been
included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the period as
financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost in the consolidated statements of financial

position.

The contractual maturities of these interest-bearing loans and borrowings as of
December 31 follow:

2012 2011
Within one year P 2,009,459,201 P 1,726,680,851
Within two to five years 2,600,833 25,945,129

P 2,012.0060,054 P _1.752.625,980

Interest expense pertaining to these interest bearing loans and borrowings, which are
presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statemnents of comprehensive
income, amounted to P153,269,552, P142,519,818, and P124,002,709 in 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively, which include accrued interests of P17,411,427 and 15,386,891, as of
December 31, 2012 and 2010, respectively, presented as part of Accrued Expenses under
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities account in the consolidated statements of financial

position (see Notes 16 and 20.02).

DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Due to customers arise from the Group’s securities brokerage activities. These are
normally settled within three days after the respective trading dates and are all
noo-interest bearing. Management considers the carrying amounts recognized in the
statements of financial position to be the reasonable approximation of their fair values.
Outstanding balances as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 amount to P274,815,850

and P379,602,722, respectively.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Notes 2012 2011
Accrued expenses 14 P 88,220,572 P 29,658,233
Retirement benefit obligation 18 32,420,618 25,961,005
Taxes payable 13,883,048 11,874,586
Dividend payable 2,046,953 4,294,366
Due to related partes 11.02 - 6,690,208
Subscriptions payable - 464,575
Others 9,503,796 3,185,943

P 146074987 P__ 82128916
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Management considers the cattrying amouats of accounts payable and other habilities
recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position to be reasonable
approximation of their fair values due to their short duration.

EQUITY

17.01 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,

i.e., equity and financial liabilities. "The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group has existing loans with a local bank and various funders. A reasonable level
of debt-to-equity is maintained to properly manage the Group’s operations. Presented
below is the 2012 and 2011 debt-to-equity ratio of the Group:

2012 2011
Total liabilities P 2,433,057,306 P 2,214,357,618
Total equity 2,588,938,092 2,360,355,941
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.94:1:00 0.94:1:00

17.02 Capital Stock and Treasury Shares

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, these accounts consist of;

Shares Arnount

Capital stock — P1 par value
Authorized — 1,800,000,000 shares
Issued shares:

Balance at end of year 1,193200.000  P1.193.200.000

Treasury shares

Balance at end of year _ 171413600 P 385670581
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17.03 Capital Requirerents for ASC
17.03.01 Minimum Capital Requirement - SEC

On November 11, 2004, the SEC approved memorandum Circular No. 16 which
provides for the guidelines on the adoption in the Philippines of the Risk-Based Capital

" Adequacy (RBCA) Framewortk for all registered broker dealers in accordance with the

Securities Regulation Code. 'These guidelines cover the following risks:
(@) Position on market risk;

(8) Credit risks such as counterparty, settlement, large exposure and margin financing
isks; and,

{z) Operational risks.

ASC monitors capital on the basis of RBCA ratio and Net Liquid Capital (NI.C). RBCA
requirement is the minimum level of capital that has to be maintained by firms which are
licensed, or securing a broker dealer license, taking into consideration the firm size,
complexity and business risk. Such risks that are considered in determining the capital
requirement include, among others, Operational, Position and Credit Risk (which include
counterpaity, large exposure, underwriting, and margin financing risks).

RBCA ratio is the quotient of the NLC and the sum of the requirements for operation
risk, credit risk and position or market risk. NLC, on the other hand, represents the
equity eligible for NLC adjusted for non-allowable current and non-current assets as
described under the circular.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, ASC may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Under the guidelines set-out by the SEC, all registered brokers dealers should maintain
the following RBCA and NLC requirements:

(a) RBCA ratic of greater than or equal to 1:1.1;

(6) NLC should be at least 5.0 million or 5.0% of aggregate indebtedness, whichever is
higher;

(2} A dealer who deals only with proprietary shares and does not keep shares in its
custody shall maintain a net capital of P2.5 million or 2.5% of aggregate indebtedness,

whichever is higher;

(d) In cases where in order to meet an RBCA ratio of at least 1.1, an NLC higher than
P5.0 million is required, the higher NILC shall be maintained; and,

(¢} No broker dealer shall permit its aggregate indebtedness to exceed 2000% of its NLC.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, ASC is in compliance with minimum capital ‘
requirement set out by the RBCA framework. ASC’s RBCA ratio is 155% and 145% as

of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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17.03.02 Minimum Capital Requirement — Philippine Stock Exchange’s Rules
Governing Trading Rights and Trading Participants

On May 28, 2009, the SEC approved PSE’s Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading
Participants which provides among others the following provisions:

(#) Trading participants should have a minimum unimpaired paid-up capital (defined as
the trading participant’s total paid up capital less any deficiency in the retained
earnings account) of 20,000,000 effective December 31, 2009, provided further that
effective December 31, 2010 and onwards, the minimum unimpaired paid up capital
shall be P30,000,000; and,

(4) Each trading participant shall pledge its teading right to the extent of its full value to
secure the payment of all of debts and claims due to the trading participant, the
government, PSE and to other trading participants of the PSE and to the Securities
Clearing Cotporation of the Philippines.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the ASC is in compliance with PSE’s Rules
Governing Trading Rights and Trading Patticipants.

17.03.03 Retained Earnings Appropriation

Rule 49.1 (B), Reserve Fund of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 requires that every
broker dealer shall annually appropriate a certain minimum percentage of its audited
profit after tax and transfer the same to Appropriated Retained Earnings account.
Appropriation shall be 30%, 20% and 10% of profit after tax for broker dealers with
unimpaired paid-up capital of between P10 million to P30 million, between P30 million
to P50 million, and above P50 million, respectively.

No appropriations were made by ASC in 2011 and 2010 since ASC has a deficit
amounting to P82,184,076 and 89,711,862 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,

respectively.
17.04 Capital Requirements for ACIC

Under the provisions of Section 8 of RA No. 8366, an Act amending Presidential Decree
No. 129, otherwise known as the Investrnent Houses Law, the ACIC is required to
maintain a minimum paid-ap capital of P300,000,000.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, ACIC is in compliance with minimum capital
requirement set out by the RA No. 8366.

17.05 Track Record

On November 17, 1994, the SEC approved the listing of the Company’s shares totaling
1,193,200,000. The shates were initially issued at an offer price of P1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2012, there are 119 holders of the listed shares equivalent to 100% of the

Company’s total outstanding shares.
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18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
18.01 Salaries and Employece Benelfits

Details of employee benefits are presented below:

2012 2011 2010
Salaries and wages P 34,858,395 P 32,981,565 P 27,014,993
Retirement benefits 6,459,613 6,891,925 5,888,446
Bonuses 4,569,341 5,586,729 4,810,774
Staff benefits 3,343,460 2,374,923 2,254,039
Social secutity costs 982,167 924,499 856,810
Other short-term benefits 98,500 99,572 183,147

P 50311474 P 48850213 P  41.008200
18.02 Pose-Employment Defined Benefit

The Group does not have a formal retirement plan but it accrues retirernent benefit
obligation based on acmarial valuation report.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation recognized and recorded as part of
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (see Note 16) in the consolidated statements of

financial position follow:

2012 2011
Present value of the obligation P 46,847,179 P 41,062,436
Untecognized actuarial Toss (___ 14,426,561y (____15,101.431)
Retrement benefit obligation D 32420618 P 25961.005

The movements in present value of the retirement benefit obligation tecognized in the
books follaw:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 41,062,436 P 34,652,276
Current service cost 3,319,939 3,255,644
Interest cost 2,404,804 3,016,745
Actuarial loss - 137.771

Balance at end of year P 46,847179 P 41062436
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The movements in the retirement benefit obligation recognized in the books follow.

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 25,961,005 P 19,069,080
Current service cost 3,319,939 3,255,644
Interest cost 2,464,804 3,016,745
Actuarial loss 674,870 619,536
Balance at end of year P 32420618 D 25961005

‘The amounts of retirement benefits recognized in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income follow:

2012 2011 2010
Current service costs P 3,319,939 P 3,255,644 P 2,521,868
Interest costs 2,464,804 3,016,745 2,600,912
Actuarial loss 674,870 619.536 765,666
Retirement benefits expense ) 6,459,613 P 6,891,925 P 5888446

In detetmining the retitement benefit obligation, the following actuarial assumptions were

used:
2012 2011 2010
Discount rates 5.65% - 6.29% 5.81%-8.38%  8.00%-8.35%
Expected rate of salary increases 8.00% 8.00% 5.00%

The Group has not established plan assets for the retirement obligation, hence, no excess

of fair value of plan assets are disclosed.

19, OTHER EXPENSES

Tlis account consists of:

2012 2011 2010

Transportation P 2,689,539 P 3,252,688 P 1,875,471
Office supplies 2,184,926 1,464,107 1,475,049
Repairs and maintenance 1,685,304 1,677,165 3,834,577
Condominium dues 1,683,199 1,491,385 1,537,711
Fines and penalties 1,651,918 666,309 160,414
Insurance 1,493,355 1,395,965 1,538,961
Bank charges 101,382 126,365 94,024
Miscellaneous 2,419,396 1,498 304 1,450,217

P 13909019 P 11572288 P 11.966424
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20. FINANCE INCOME (COSTS)
The breakdown of this account follows:

20.01 Finance Itncome

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Gain on sale of
investments - net 8,90 P 55783469 P 129816,792 P 74,726,813

Fair value gains on
financial assets

at FVTPL 8 23,592,489 - 63,344,653
Interest income 996,842 962 209 906.734

P__80,372,800 P 130.779.001 I 138978200

20.02 Finance Costs

Notes 2012 2011 2010
l _ Interest expense 14 P 153,269,522 P 142,519,818 P 124,002,709
Impairment loss 10 1,349,708 - -
! Fair value loss on
financial assets
at FYTPL 8 - 7.447 989 -

P_154,619.230 P 149.967.807 P 124002709

21. TAXES
The components of tax expense (income) reported in the consolidated profit oz loss
follow:
2012 2011 2010
Regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) at 30% P 8,244,047 P 9,858,410 P 9,614,076
Minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) at 2% 2,471,612 2,293,813 2,192,060
Final tax at 20% 112,720 151,084 153,395
10,828,379 12,303,307 11,959,531

Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences (__19,330,996) {___ 16.848,879)( 3.234,915)

(P___8,502,617% (B 4.545572) P 8,724.616




The reconciliation of tax on pre-

to tax expense is as follows:

Tax on pre-tax profit (loss)
at 30%

Adjustments for incotne
subjected to lowes
income tax rates

Tax effects of:

Non-taxable income
Recognition of previously
unrecognized deferred

tax asset
Unrecognized deferred
tax assets
Non-deductible expenses
Expired net-operating loss
carry over (NOLCO)

-47.
tax profit (loss) computed at the applicable statutosy rate

2012 2011 2010

(P 5838,740) P 5329297 P 21,551,426
{ 56,361) { 75,542} ( 76,698)
( 17,996,400) (  32,752,396) (  18,293,035)
(  10,581,142) - -
1,283,855 16,564,698 2,232,899
4,765,627 6,388,371 3,310,024
19,920,544 - 6.774.380
(P___8,502,617) (P__ 4545572\ P 8724616

The net deferred tax assets which are presented as part of other assets in the statement of
financial position as of December 31 relates to the following (see Note 13):

Deferred tax assets (hability):
NOLCO
Allowance for impairment losses
Fais vaiue gain on
financial asscts at FVTPL
Retirement benefit obligation
MCIT
Accrued short-term employec
benefits

Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax expense {income)

{

Consolidated

Statements of Consolidated
Financial Position Profit or Loss
2011 2012 2011 - 2010

2012

P 69,748,633 D 53,141,370 (P16,607,236)( P 13,457,12%) (P’19,763,703)

38,063,250 38,063,250 - -
20,187,808) ( 22,063,069)  1,875261) ( 1,769,860) 18,378,370
7,345,984 6497512 ( 848,472) ( 1,621,806) (  1,524,119)
325,463 375,463 . . (325463
123,755 123755 - - .
P 95,419,277 D 76088281
(219,330,996) (P16,848879) (D_3,3234,915)

The details of unrecognized deferred tax assets as of December 31 are summarized

below.

Allowance for impatrment josses
Allowance for non-recoverability of

defereed oil exploration costs
Retirement benefit obligadon
MCIT

Acerued short-term employee benefits

2012 2011
Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax BEffect
P 90,636,918 P 27,191,075 T 89287211 I 24,786,163
15,418,003 4,625,401 15,418,003 4,625,401
4,302,634 1,290,790
6,360,965 6,360,965 3,889,353 3,889,353
581,750 174 525 581,751 174,525

P_112.997,636 I 38,351,966 P 159270790 P 50503783
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The breakdown of NOLCO, which can be claimed as deductions from future taxable
income within three years from the year the taxable loss was incurred, is shown below.

Year End of
Incurred Pacent ACIC Balance - Availment
2012 P 56,747,031 P 19,219,744 P 75966775 2015
2011 45,792 853 44,857,077 90,649,640 2014
2010 33471767 32,407,243 65.879,010 2013

P 136,011,38t P_96,484.064 P 232495445

The Group is subject to MCIT which is computed at 2% of gross income, as defined
under the tax regulations or RCIT at 30%, whichever is higher. MCIT which is available
for offset against future income tax payable for income tax purposes follows:

Year Valid
Incurred Amount Until
2012 P 2,471 612 2015
2011 2,022,755 2014
2010 2192 061 2013
P 0,686,428

22. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Barnings per share amounts for the years ended December 31, are computed as follows:

| Note 2012 2011 2010
Net profit (loss) (2 10,959,851) P 22,309,894 P 63,113,471
I
Divided by the weighted
average number of
outstanding shares:
Issued shares 17.02 1,193,200,000 1,193,200,000 1,193,200,000
Treasury shares 17.02 ( 171.413.600) ( 171,413,600} ( 171,413 600)
Outstanding shates 1,021,786.400 1.021.786.400 1,021,786 400
Earnings (loss) per share @ 0,0107) P 00218 D _ 0.0618

As of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, the Group has no outstanding potentially
dilutive shares, hence, basic earnings per share are equal to diluted earnings per share.



- dq9-

23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

23.01 Legal Claims

The Group is either a defendant or plaintiff in lawsuits and legal actions arising from its
vatious business activities. Management believes that the claims against the Group are
either without merit or that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from lawsuits and legal
actions will not materially atfect the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

23,02 Operating Leases

The Group is a lessor under non-cancellable operating leases covering its condominium
units. The leases have terms of one to two years with renewal options. The future
minimum rentals receivable under these non-cancellable operating leases as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounted to 1,709,644 and P633,000, respectively, to be

collected within one year.

Total rentals from these operating leases amounted to P1,449,242, P1,503,505, P848,661
in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, and are presented as pact of Other Revenues
account in the consolidated statements of compreheasive income.

23.03 Others

There are other commitments and contingent liabilities that arise in the normal course of
the Group’s operations which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. As of December 31, 2012, management is of the opinion that losses,
if any, from these events and conditions wilt not have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Financial Asset
December 31, 2012

Amount shown on the

Valued based on the

Number of shares or " . I .
Nane of issuing entify and associatfon of cach issne | principal amount of starement of the iRkl quotation A reome received
bonds or notes financial position reporting date  (per and accrued
sharg)

Investments at Fair Yalue Through Profit or Loss

2G0O GROUD, INC,-PREFERRED 93,294 0.00 ]
A BROWN COMPANY, INC 294,355 BRE,L09,00 301
AL SORIANQ CORPORATION "A" 1,819,950.00 9400,297.00 517
ABACUS CONS. RES & HLDGS INC A 1,099,284.64 73652100 0.67
ABOITIZ EQUITY VENTURES, INC 15,271 KO8,599.00 5295
ABOITIZ POWER CORPORATION 1107 40,804.00 30,95
ABRA MINING & INDUSTRIAL CORDP 513,698,573.00 2,825,342.00 0.0055
ABS-CBN CORPORATION 22,110 748,424.00 33.85
ABS-CBN HOLDING CORP. - PDR 343,989 11,695,626.00 3
ACESITE (PHILIPPINES) HOTEL CORPORATION 620 A28.00 1,2
AGRINURTURE, INC, 90,334 758,638.00 B4
ALASKA MILK CORPORATION 20,666 0.00 0
ALCORN GOLLY RECOURCIZS 380,000,874 55,114,482.00 0,145
ALLIANCE GLOBAL GROUP, INC, 59,049 989,661.00 16,76
ALLIANGE SELECT FOODS INTERNATIONAL ING 1,370,715 2,200,309.00 197
ALPHALAND CORPORATION 37 91700 195
ALSONS CONSOLIDATED RESOURCES 100,144 125,186.00 129
ANGLO-PHIL FIOLDINGS 3411332 7368477.00 214
APC GROUP, INC, 6,253,803 6,768,168.00 (182
APEX MINING COMPANY, INC. "A" 128,333 571,08206 445
APEX MINTNG COMPANY, INC, "B" 70,151 312,873.00 416
ARANETA FROPERTTES, (NC. 3592800 29,0960 0.81
ARTHA LAND CORPORATION S017,707.00 893,152.00 0,178
ASIABEST GROUP 72 1,397.00 194
ASIAN TERMINAL, INC. 750,019 7,246,368.00 .65
ASIATRUST DEVELOPMENT BANK INC 45,023 0.00 [t}
ATLAS CONS MNG & DEVT CORP 3,902,086 72,969,008.00 187
ATN HOLDINGS, INC. 452,124 +47,603.00 09y
ATN HOLDINGS, INC'D %R0 3867400 097
ATOK BIG WEDGE MINING CO NG A 298 593000 19.9
AYALA CORPORATION "A” 47 24,299.00 517
AYALA LAND, INC. 17,762 469,805.00 2645
BANCO FILIPINO SA & MO BANK %) D.00 0
BANK OFF THIE PHILIPRINE 1SLANDS 1,008 181,260.00 V5
BANK OFF THE PHILIPPINE ISLANDS 16,2000 1,550.400.00 95000
BANKARD, INC 20367 A6:H257.00 0.7
BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION 1,696,655 458,097.00 0.27
BOO LEASING & FINANCE, INC. 1,552,437 3,104,874.00 2
BDO UNIBANK INC. 12720 926,016.00 728
BELLE CORPORATION 681,343 3,311,327.00 4.86
BENGUET CORP-Convible Pref A 9 103.00 1144
BENGULT CORPGIATION "A" 199 3,781.00 19
BENGUET CORPORATION "B" 116 2.320.00 20
BERJAYA PHILIPPINES INC. 2,339,130 G5495,808.00 28
BERJAYA PHILIPPINES INC. H001 LK1 139, 860,00.00 2800
BLOOMIERRY RESQRTS CORP 37452 494 366.00 13.2
BOGO MEDELLIN MILLING CO. 14 0,278,00 53.2
BOULEVARD HIOLDINGS, INC. G000 79,2000 0.132
CALAPAN VENTURES, INC. 1,152 5,057.00 413y
CALNTA HOLDINGS 18,200 T24360.00 3.98
CEBU AR, INC. 4 61,293.00 61.85
CIEBU HOLDINGS, INC 162,395 G49,580.00 4
CEBU PROPEITY VENT & DEVT A" 12,935 59,301.00 4.6
CEBU PROTFERTY VENT & DEV'T "8" 39 17800 4.6
CENTRAL AZUCARERA DE TARLAC 695 100 0
CENTRO ESCOLAR UNIVERSITY 67 799.00 1192
CENTURY PLAK METALS HOLDINGS CORPORATI 789,254 6G2,973.00 0.84
CENTURY PROPERTIES GROUP INC, 1,900,566 2,812,838.00 148
CHEMREZ TECH., INC.(COAT) 1,173,361 3.:473,140.00 296
CHINA BANKING CORPORATION 72 14,851.00 LG
CIUTEK HGLDINGS PHILIPPINES CORPORATION 68 1,754.00 258
CIIY & LAND DEVELOPLERS, INC., 460 1,086.00 236
EITYLAND DEVELOPMENT CORI A" an 1,017.00 1.40
CUIYETATE SAVINGS BANK, INC, 140 3,920,600 28
COAL ASTA HOLDINGS INC. 5,409,000 5,517,180.00 102
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Financial Assel
December 31, 2012

Valued based on the

Number of shares or | Amount shown on the ;) .
Nimne of issurng enifty and ; iation of cach fssie | principal amount of statement of the .m:rrkfr quotaiion at | Income received
bonds or nofes financial position reporting dite  (ner and accrucd
share)
COL FINANGCIAL GROUP, INC. FuH00 1,363,600.00 1944
CONCRETE AGGREGATES CORP A" 94 5,264.00 56
COSMOS BOTTLING CORPORATION 3,727 (.00 0
CROWN EQUITIES, INC. 2,042,025 140,500,00 .069
CYBER BAY CORPORNTION 538,112 43587100 0.8t
DENN, INC, 5,806 229,643.00 452
DIZON COPPER SILVER MINES, INC 26,770 40-,227.00 15.1
DMC] MOLDINGS, INC, 1,309 70,621.00 5395
DNL 40,000 176,000,00 44
EAST WEST 12774 30446.00 29
EASYCALL COMM PHILS INC COMMON 1,056 2,7146,00 24
BEEI CORPORATION 122,803 1,240,31040 0.t
EAIPIRL EAST LAND HOLDINGS, INC 170,534 168,800.00 (R
GNERGY DEVELOPMENT CORP. 2236 15093.00 675
ETON PROPERTIES PHIL., INC. - ) 0.00 8
EURO-MED LAD. PHIL, INC. 537 1,507.00 1.8
BEVER-GOTESCO RES, & HOLDINGS 1,325,000 530,000.00 04
EXPORT AND INDUS, BANK, INC"A 306,687 04 0
Fa] PRINCE HOLDINGS CORT. 2,847 8,513.00 299
FAR EASTERN UNIVERSITY, INC 14 15,12000 1,080.00
FEDERAL RES.INVEST GROUP INC. 64 579.00 8
FIL INVEST CORY EASE] 0.00 0
FILINVEST DEYELOPMENT CORT. Q2,130 +456,522.00 +94
FILINVEST LAND, INC, 41,587 090300 149
FILIPING FUND, INC, 80 896.00 1.2
FILSYN CORPORATION "A” 7 [tXeH ]
FERST GEN CORPORATION 6,350 141.739.00 223
FILST PHIL HOLDINGS CORP “A* 928 83,520.00 90
FIRST PHIL, HOLDINGS CORP.PREF 50 517500 1035
FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 505 101.00 0.2
GEOGRACE RESOURCES,PHILSE.INC, 260066 1,302,033.00 0.5
GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL, INC. 50,105 891,260.00 178
GLOBAL-ESTATE RESQRTS, INC. 1,623,168 3,181,409.00 1.96
GLOBALPORT 900 20 32600 19.82
GLOBIE TELECOM INC, "A" 3,545 3,872,140.00 1492.00
GLOBE THLECOMS "WARRANTS" z LAEY L]
GMA HOLDINGS, INC. 512,199 4,779,287.00 232
GAMA NIEFTWORK, INC. 118,460 1,087,463.00 %18
GOTESCO LAND, INC. A" 158,080 0.00 0
GOTESCO LAND, INC, "B” 410,532 0.0 0
GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORP{COMMON) 59 259000 44
GRULENERGY HOLDINGS INCORPORATEL 538,770 11,853.00 0022
GTCAP HOLDINGS K1k 195,300.00 620
HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC, 50,710 T09.940.00 14
HOUSE O INVESTMENTS, INC AT 1,259,994.00 629
IMPERIAL RESQURCES, INC "A" 70,250 358,275.00 4.1
INFORMATION CAPTECH. VENTURES 4,000 1:H0.00 0.30
INTEGRATED MICRO-ELECTRONICS, INC. 532 2,117.00 3.8
INTERPORT RIZBOURCES CORT, "A” 953,229 1,096,213.00 115
(N'T'L CONTAINER TERMINAL SERY 6,225 460,650,00 i
IONICS,INC. 2,515,696 1,584, 688,04} 0.63
1P CONVERGE DATA CENTER, INC. 158 528,00 334
1P L-GAMIE VENTURLES, INC, 1956 49.00 0.025
IPEOPLE, iNC. 206,501 1,758,659.00 85
1PVG CORPORATION 662,710,00 39099000 0.5
BREMIY, INC, 383NT L071,128.00 29
ISLAND INFORMATION & TECIH, INC 22428,41) 1,076,564.00 [IIH]
ISLAND INFORMATION & TECH. INT 200,008.00 ,660.00 .48
1SM COMMUNICATIONS CORP, B1,755 2074700 259
JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. 2 28,430,00 395
JOLLIBEE FOODS CORPORATION 821 £3,742.00 102
KEPPEL PHIL HOLDINGS INC "B” 210 1,350.00 5
KEPPEL PHILS, HOLDINGS INC "A” 5312 159,580.00 3.11
KEPPLIL PHILS, PROPERTHES, INC. 2570 5,783.00 )
LAFARGE REPUBLIC, INC. 2,263 26477.00 1.7
LEISURL % RESORTS WORLD CORP. 3813 51,038400 83
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Financial Assct

December 31, 2012
Number of shares or | Amount shovwn on the Valued based o the .
- . . . L marker quotntion at | Income received
Nz of issuing entity and associntion of cach fssue | pefncipal amoins of staternent of the X
bonds or notes finaucinl position reporting date (per and accrued
share)

LEPANTO CONSOLIMIATED MNG CO A 1,502,535 1,502,535 1
LEPANTO CONSOLIDATED AMNG CO B 1,301,786 1431065.00 1.1
LIBERTY FLOUR MILLS, INC. 238 9,877.00 41.5
LIBERTY FELECOM 17 26,081400 24
LMG CHEMICALS CORP 45 RZ00 1.83
LODESTAR INVEMT HOLDINGS CORP. 151,086.00 145,643.00 096
LOPEZ HOLDINGS CORPORATION A0AAR0 254,214.00 6.28
LORENZQO SHIFPING CORPORATION 23.208.00 30,635.00 132
MABUHAY HOLDINGS CORPORATION 7500 2,775.00 037
MABUHAY VINYL CORPORATION 221,530 356,663.00 1.61
Macro Asia Corp.(Coberrsen) 1,183,082 3,182491.00 2.69
NMAKATT FINANCE CORPORATION 116 267.00 23
MANCHESTER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS UN). 283 345400 12,12
MANCHESTER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS UNL 75 S00.04 i2
MANTLA BULLETIN PUBLESHING COR 53304 36,308.0n .65
MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY "A" 2,380 620,228.00 2606
MANILA JOCKEY CLUB, INC. 668.00 1,830.00 274
BIANILA MINING CORPORATION "A" 2,537,113 152,227.00 .06
MANILA MINING CORPORATION "B 15,182,799 94 33400 0.062
MANILA WATER COMPANY, INC, 706 22,592.00 32
MANULIFE FINANCIAL CORP, n 10,100.00 505
MARCYENTURES HOLDINGS, INC. 40,065 T40,320060 1.85
MARIWASA 300 1,755.00 3.85
MARSTERL CONSOQLIDATED, INC "A" 690,000 0.00 0
MARSTEEL CONSOLIDATED, INC "B 616,200 .40 4
MEDCO HOLBINGS, INC. 4,990 .00 0
MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 276 078,00 184
MEGAWORLD CORPORATION 323,502 896,16:1.00 2mn
ARGAWORLD CORPORATION 1,9G8,000,00 5,285,160.00 2,770

MEGAWORLD CORPORATION WARRANTS 1,200,660 2,0523,129.00 1.71
MEGAWORLD CORPORATION WARRANTS o 1,610.00 1.66
METRO ALL. HOLD&EQUITIES CORP 13957 [{E1] +
MIETRO ALLHOLD.& EQUITIES CORP 26,679 000 0
MITTRC PACITIC INY'T CORP. 48,803 21717500 445
AETRO PACIFIC CORPORATION 5,043,110.00 10,697,669.00 208

METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST CO 24 94,245.00 102
MINERALS iINDUSTRIAS CORP. 1,157,866 6,315,460.00 297
MJC INVESTMENTS CORPORATION 1,854 §0,642.00 574
MRC ALLIED, INC. 2,590,000 393,680.00 0152
NATIONAL REINSURANCE CORP. 343,483 584,601.00 1.7
NICKEL ASIA CORPORATION 403390 650,279,600 16.1
NIHAQ MIN. RES, INTL INC. 24064 1,217,819.00 4.9
OMICO CORP. WARRANT 1,015316.00 0,00 0
QMICO CORPORATION 993,639 56657400 0.57
ORIENTAL PENINSULA RES.GRI.INC RS 963,651.00 a1
ORIENTAL PET & MINERAL CORP A 589452363 1,690,095.00 0419
QRIENTAL PET & MINERAL CORP B 49,305,504 986,1 10D Q42
PACHIC ONLINE SYSTEM CORP. 214 12.897.00 14.08
PACIFICA, INC."A" 45,259,680 2,262984.00 005
PAL HOLDINGS, INC. 35,548 17:1,1845.00 4.4
PANASONIC MFG, PRILS,, CORI, 436 2,655.00 6.09
PANCARE HOUSE, INC. 5l4 399900 778
PAXYS, INC, 252958 T48,756.00 296
PLEPSI-COLA PROD. PRIL., INC, 601,074 3,219,002.00 6.52
PETROENLERGY RESOURCES CORP. 134,565 820,347.00 6.1
PIECRON CORPORATION 145,869 1,525,790.00 10446
PHIL BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS A 2 1400 72
ML LONG D15 TEL CO "COMMON" 206 A21,180,00 2,53000
PHIL TELEGRAPH & TEL CORP "A" 5801 0.00 1]
PHIL TOB. FLUL CURING & REDRY 26 443,00 17.02
PHIL REALTY & HOLDINGS CORP. 6,177,896 2718274 .00 0.4
PHIL. RLTY & FILDNGS - 5UBS 1,301,300 40 0
PHILCOMSAT HOLINNGS CORPORATION 0,800 0.00 0
THILEX MINING CORIL A" 2,768 41,465,00 14.98
PEBLEN PETROLEUA CORPORATION 2,919 B7A424.00 2995
PHILIPPINE BSTATES CORPORATION 7000 4 B50.00 065
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Financial Asset
December 31, 2012

Valued based on the

Number of shares or | Amount shown on the . .
F— . L . L. murices quotaiion af | fncome recefved
Nanre of issuing ewsfty and association of each issuc | prancipal amauny of statesnent of the reporting date fper dnd acerucd
bonds or notes financinl position v
share}
PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANIK 167 15,197.00 n
PHILIPPING NATIONAL CONST CORP 121,895 [11¢4] 0
PETLAPPINE RACING CLUB, INC. w7 107,00 25
PIILIPPINEG SAVINGS BANK 27052 2.205,200.00 1H
BHILIPPING SEVEN CORPORATION 24 2,208400 92
PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC 8 332800 416
PHILIPPING TRUST COMPANY 42 2,730.00 63
PHILWLEBR CORPORATION 17,080 214,525.00 1256
PEINMA CORPORATION 91,131 1,066,233.00 1.7
PHOENIX PETROLEUM MHIL., INC. 13,637 123,142.00 203
PICOP RESOURCES, INC 4,411,192 o400 G
PNOC EXPLORATION CORD. "B" 500 1252500 2505
PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE CORPORATION 477,851 157,691.00 0.33
PRIAME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. 521% 6A79.00 1.28
PIRIME ORION PIILIPPINES, INC. 10,935,464.00 6,0014,505400 055
PRIMETOWN FROPERTY GROUP,INC. 400 0.00 0
PRYCE PROPERTIES CORPORATION 9,061 .60 0
PUREGQOLD PRICE CLUB, INC. 1,033 34,080.00 33
REPUBLIC GLASS HLDNGS CORP "A" 3429 TU21.00 23
RN CORPORATION 397,634 1.988,170.00 5
RIZAL COMML BANKING "PREF" 4022 .00 [}
RIZAL COMML BANKING CORP "A" 16,195 911,700.00 Gli
ROBINSONS LAND CORPORNTION 8,004 166,083.00 2075
ROCKWELL DEVOPLEMENT CORP 88,213 214,358.00 243
ROXNAS AND COMPANY, INC. 2763 6,023.00 238
ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC, 233,308 705,392.00 296
SAN MIGUEL BREWERY', INC. 102,068 2.990,358.00 29.3
SAN MIGUEL CORPORATION "A" 1004 15308.00 105.4
SAN MIGUEL CORPFORATION SERIES "1 PREFERY 5,120.00 0.00 0
SAN MIGUREL PUREFOODS COMPANY, INC, A 2 488.00 24
SANTTARY WARES MFG CORPORATION 61402 0.00 0
SEAFRONT RESOURCES CORP. "A' 69,746 123,358.00 1.74
SECURITY BANK CORPORATION 2986 465,816.00 156
SEMIRARA MINING CORPORNTION 100 23,340,600 2334
SHANGRILA PROPERTIES, INC. 184,185 559.022.00 3
SINOPRIL CORPORATION 9,579,303 3,017 48000 0.315
SM DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 41,364 24:4,812.00 589
SMOINVESTMENTS CORPORATION 249 219,618.00 482
SM DPRIME HOLDIMNGS, INC 24,760 408,540.00 6.5
SOLID GROUL, INC, 4t0,375 T92,743.00 1.98
SQUTH CHINA RESOURCES, INC, 201,027 207,558.00 103
SQUTHEAST ASTA CEMENT HLDG INC 289,100 493,840.00 24
SPLASH CORPORATION 265,851 451,947.00 1.7
STA. LUCLA LAND, INC. 93,064 6142200 .66
STARNALLS, INC. 473 1,883.00 398
STENIEL AMANUFACTURING CORP 1,216 240 [
STIEDUCATIONAL 808 82400 102
SUN LIFE FIN. SERY. OF CANADA 4,656 4,G32,720.00 995
SUNTRUST HOME DEVELOYERS, INC. 2,288,612 1,235,850.00 0.54
SUPERCITY REALTY DEVT. CORP. 64000 7680000 Lz
SWIFT FOODS, INC 423,338 54,689.00 0141
SWIRE FOORS, INC. CONVERTIBLE PREFERRELD 6,382 8,050.00 126
TANDUAY HOLDINGS, INC. 7009 9:4,085,00 13.38
THE PHILODRILL CORPORATION "A" 29,143,067 1,136,580.00 0.039
TREC STEEL CORP, 142,650 249,638,00 1.75
TRANS-ASIA OIL AND ENERGY DEVELOPMENT ( 1,66-4,006 L930,H7.00 116
TRANSPACIFIC BROD. GROUT INT)., 797957 2,074,688.00 6
UNLO3L RESOURCES & HOLDINGS COMPANY INC 442004 1,2t5,75940 0.275
UNION BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES 20,341 2,202431.00 1127
UNTTED PARAGON MINING CORI. 11,823,319 200,996.00 0.0t7
UNIVERSAL RIGHTFIELD PRO. (BOBRA20) 0,00 4]
UNIVIEIRSAL ROBINA CORPORNTION 2854 235,308.00 £3.85
UNIWIDE HOLDINGS, INC, 8475036 [$143] [
VANTAGI GQUITTES, INC, 2476374 5,992,825.00 242
VICTORIAS AILLING COMPANY, INC 1,313 1,825.00 139
VISTA LAND & LIFESCAPES, INC 89,199 433,507.00 .86

-5.




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Financinl Asset
December 31, 2012

Valved based on the

Number of shares or | Amount showsn on the . .
N Lo e . L market quotation at | Income received
ane of 7 entity and of ench issue | priucipal amount of statermenyt of the s
. . reporting date  {per and accrued
bonds ar notes fnancial position
share}

VITARICH CORPORATION 30,600 28,764.00 0.4
VIVANT CORPORATION 1,022 9,200.00 o.M
VULCAN INDL & MINING CORP. 3520413 5,488,577.00 14
WATERFRONT PRILIPPINES, INC 1,157,944 474,757.00 041
WELLEN INDUSTRIES, iNC. 1,086 2,126.00 03
WISE HOLDINGS INC."A" 2,4 040 ]
WISE HOLDINGS, INC. "B" 29,389 .00 [}
YEHEY PHILE, 236,217 20521.00 1.25
ZUES HOLDINGS, INC, 3,141,204 LOB1 6uth v

557,756,295,0D




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Financial Asset
December 31, 2012

Name pf issuing entlty and nssocintion of each issue

MNumber of shares or
principal wmount of
bonds or nores

Amount shown on the
starement of the
finnucial statement

Valued based on the
market quotation at
reporting dive  (per
share}

fncome received
and accried

Held-to-nraturity

Not Applicable
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule A - Fisaneial Asset

December 31, 2012

Vahred based on the

Number of shares or i iy
P . P . L, Amounr shown on the stttement of | market quotation ar | Income received
Name of issning empity and associotion of cach issue | principal amount of Ny N
the finaneind statemest reporting dite  {per and wecrned
bonds or notes
share}

Avuilahle-for-sale Secirivies

BERJAYA PHILIPPINES INC. Va54LB30 P 2591178240 P 2800

CEBU COUNTRY CLUB i 3,400,000 3400,000

MIMOSA GOLF 3 430,000 430,000

UNIVERSAL LEISURE CLUD i 3,000,000 LO0Y,0(K)

VALLE VERDE 3 350,000 175,60

i 2,508,351,240
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedvle C - Accounis Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during

the Consolidation of Financial Staiements

December 31, 2012
Deductions Ending Balance
Name of Related Party B:.g_nfi::z?; war Additions 3;;}::::: Ammm;}ll"ﬁrrcu- Current Not Current Bﬂ!mm;; :IE'"’ of|
Abucns Securities Coporation r 1RO58097 r 7,668,434 P 18,888,150 Iy 7438381 r 7438381



FIRST ABACUS FINANGIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule D - Intangrible Assais - Other Assets
thie Consalidation of Financiat Staiements
December 31, 2012

Orthier Charges

Descedption Beginning Additiamns at Charged to Cost | Charged to Other Additions Ending Balanee
Balanrce costs and Expense Accounis N =
(Deductions]
Goudwill - net PO3532435  p P - r - r - P 35,324,355
“Teading, spht 1 AGHRLK - - - - 1,408,000
Computee sofhvare 203,675 1,326,607 359.3%% - - 1,060,883
P 3,026,030 P 1,126,607 I 350,300 p - ud - P 37,793,238

- 10 -




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule E - Long-teem Debt
December 3, 2012

Title of Issue und Type of
Obligation

Amounnt Authorized
by Indenture

Amount Shown Under Caption

"Current Portion of Long-term

Debt" in Relaced Statement of
Financial Pasition

Amarnt Shown Under Caption
"Long-termn Debe" in Relaved
Seutement of Finaacial Pasition

Notes Payable and Bank Loans

T 2,012,060,034

i

2,012,060,034

wtfa




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule F - Indebteness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Companies)

December 31, 2012

Name of Related Party

Balance at Beginning of Year

Balance at End of Year

Not Applicable




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule €5 - Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2012

Name of issuing cntity of
sccuritics guaranieed by the
compay for which this
stattezent £s filed

Title of fssuc of each
class of securfties
guaranteed

Total amount
guaranteed and
outstanding

Amount owned by
person for which
statement is filed

Narnire of
guaraniee

~ Not Applicable

_13-
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FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Unit 2904-A, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Unappropriated Retained Earnings
{Parent Company Financial Statements)
For Dividend Declaration At Beginning Of Year {r

Nt logs per awdited financial statements (

Unappropriated Retained Earnings
{Parent Company Financial Statements)
For Dividend Declaration At End Of Year (>

-5

974,867,703 )

10,959,851)

2 sssamss)



FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION ANT SUBSIDIARIES

Schedile of Plsitippine Fi ial Reporting Standards and Interpr
Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 34, 2012

Fmr‘\cwork for lh; Prcp:umi;m .’;I:ll:l l’n:s.;nmllcm omennlcm] Smlcm;ms‘
Comeepieal Framework Phase Az Objeenves s Qualitative Chancreristics
Practice St Manag 1 C ry 5
Puilippine Financial Reparting Seandards (PFRS)
Fizst-time Advption of Philippine Financial Reporting Stindards :r]
Amendments o PIRS 1: Additianal Exenptions for Fiese-ime Adoplers for3
PFRS | Amendment 1o TFRE 1: Limted Exenyption from Comparative PRRS 7 Disclosures for Firsi-fime o
(Revised) Adopters
Amendments to PFRS L: Severe HypeonQation and Removal of Fised Dae for First-time Adopters 2]
Amendmems to FIRS |: Governmwent Loans feffetive Jauary 1, 2013) @
Share-base Paymenr r]
PFRS 2 Amendmeats ro PFRS 2: Vesting Conelituns and Caneglianons 5
Amendinents to FRS 2: Group Cush-settled Share-lased Payment Transactions &
:’l{‘:-i‘:t]) Bnsmess Combinations e
PERS 4 Imsurnge Contracts jer]
Amendments o PAS 39 and PRRS & Finanvial Guazantee Contragts 45
PFRS 8 Man-curtent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Qperations B
PFRS 6 Explaranon Far ad Evaluation of Mineel Resources o]
linangial Insrrumenrs: Disclosures o
Amendiments o PERS 7: Transinon o
Amendments 1o PAS 30 and PERS T: Reclassification of Fimncial Assets )
.r\mcnd.n'n.-nls 16 PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Rechassificanan of Financial Assets - Effective Date and =
Teansition
PERS 7 Amendments o PERS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Insieurnents o]
Amendinents 1o PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfurs of Financial Assers &
Amendmenrs m PFRS 7: Disclosures — Qffseting Fiuanciat Assers anc Financial Linbilites® feffectire
Janneny 1, 2013)
Amendments tr: PEIRRS 7: Aandarory Effecrive Date of PFRS 9 and Trnsition Disclosures * (gfédie =
Jennary 1, 201 5)
PFRS 8 Operanng Sepments &
limancial Lnstrumnenis® fefedtive Jannary 1, 201 5) ford
PERS 9 Amendments to PERS 9: Mandatory 1iffeenve Date of PFRS 9 and Traasiion Disclosuces® {ofnine P
Jasuary 1, 2013)
PERS 10 Consolidared Fuumenl Strcments® fylfestive funmapy 1, 20013) jrg
Amendments o PERS 10: Transition Guidance” (iffective fanwary 1, 2613) &
Amentnents 1o PERS L0: Investent Entines” feffective fannary §, 2013) r}
PFRS 1) Joinr Acosgements™ (e fanary 1, 2013) 9%
Amendmems o PERS 1 Transthon Guitance (offetiee fanary 1, 2613)
PERS 12 Diselosure of merests m Other Enntes” (gfetite Jannary 1, 2013) a5
Amendments 10 PIFRS 12 Tamsition Guidance {effecie famsary 1, 2013) -
Amendimunts t PIRS 12: bavestiment Bntities® (effectire famnary 7, 26013} &
1FRS 13 lanr Value Mewsurement® (gffedtire Jaunay 1, 2003} 3




FPhilippine Accounting Standards (PAS]

Presenimion of Fimnenl Sairements fei-]
PAS 1 Amendmnts we PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Fancial Instruments and Obligations Arising on =
{Reviged) Liguidation
A lnents te PAS 1: T ian of Hems of Other Comprelensive Income o]
PAS 2 Invenonus -
PAS 7 Suement of Cusly [Flows fer]
TAS 8 Accounnng Policies, Changes in Accouning Estmates and Errors 5
PAS 10 Byents after the Reporiing Period &
PAS It Consrmuchon Contraces -r:]
PAS 12 income Taxes o3
Amendiment 1 PAS 12 - Deferred Taus: Recovery of Underlying Asses ]
PPAS 16 Praperty, Planrand Equipment for]
PAS 17 Lasises g5
PAS 18 Tevenue =r]
PAS 19 LEmplayee Benefits o
Amendmenrs o PAS 1Y: Actuarial Guins and Losses, Group Plans and Disciosores £ &
é::i:ed] LEamployee Benetirs® (e Jannny 1, 2003) o=
PAS 20 Accounting, lor Government Grans and Disclosure of Gevernment Assishince 5
PAS 2l The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates =)
Aanendment: Net Investment in » Foreiga Operation +* fr]
::?:;id) Burrowing Costs o)
:;i\cs“i‘id) Relred Party Drsclosures fra
PAS 20 Accounting and Repormng by Retirement Benefir Plans B
PAS 27 Conselidate and Separite Financial Starenents o
Amendments te PARS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Iovestiment in Subsidiary, Jeintly Conrrolled Entity o
or Assacite 7 *
:’i‘\\ns-n?:dud) Separate Fmancial Stements™ (effectite fameny 1, 2013 [:r
Amendments 1o PAS 27 (Amended): Investment Entites” (ofective fanrary 1, 2013) o]
PAS 28 {nvessments i Assocites
PAS 28 Lnvesonens in Assocures and Jomt Venwies gffective Jannary 1, 2013) 5
(Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Fyperinflatonacy Econpmics ori}
PAS 31 cerests in Juing Yenmres 5
P 1} Insmuments: Presenration 95
1\|l1c|)d|1_1u|1rs to PAS 32 and PAS iz Purmble Financial Insmaments and Obhganons Arisng on o
PAS 32 Laquidarion **
Amendment to PAS 32: Classtfication of Rights Issues ** =
Amendiments o PAS 32 Oftsething Financial Assets and Financial Liabilices® {gffective Jamnary 1, 2014) -r]
PAS 33 Barnings per Share =
PAS 34 Interim Fivanen] Reporang Lo
PAS 36 Invputiement of Asscrs I
PAS 37 Provisions, Comtingent Liabilifies and Contingent Assets a5
PAS 38 Intangible Assers 5




Firaancial Instnaments: Recogmneon amd Measarement ra

Amedments s PAS 3% Transiion and Initil Recogpridon of Tinancial Assers mxl Financial o

Laulsilities *

Amendinents 1o PAS 39: Cash Flew Hedge Accaunnng of Foreeast Intragroup Transuctions ** a5

Amendments 1 PAS 39: The Fair Value Oprion ' jor]
Pas 3 Amendments tu PAS 3% and FFRS 4: Financial Guasmice Conmaers ** Lr]

Amendimnents o PAS 39 and PRIRS 7: Rechssificanon of Bisancial Assers ** &

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassificanon of Financial Assets — Effeetive Date and %

‘Transition

Amendments o Philippine Interpretanon 18RIC Y and TAS 3% Embedded Dervatives 23

Amendment to PAS 39; Rligible Hedged frems < o
PAS 40 Investnent Property <5
PAS 41 Apnculiuee L
Phifippine Intery fpnus - 1 ionai Il inf Reporting Intery Cammim'.'c (IFRIC})
IFRIC 1 Changes in Exissing Decommissionng, Restoration and Similar Linbilines furd
IFRIC 2 Members’ Sliare m Co-openutive Ennties and Similar Insmuments <5
IFRIC4 Deternining Whetlier an Armingement Contanss o Leise @
FRICS :E‘lﬁ:l‘t: to fmeresre Arising from Decommissioning, Restaration and Enviconmenta) Rehahilitation &
IFRIC G Linhilines Anising from Purncipating in 4 Spuecific Marker - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equpmenr o]
1IFRIC 7 EE::,’::Z: :u Restatement Approach under PAS 29, [Rinancial Reporng in Hypeenflationaey o
IFRIC 9 Ttenssessment of Embedded Denvatives 3

Amendments o Philippine Intery ion [FRICY and PAS 31 Embedded Dervanves &
1FRIC 16 Interim Financral Repocting and Impaiciment bor]
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 0]
1FRIC 13 Custotner Loyaity Progonsmes ]

PAS 19 - The Lamit on o Defined Benefit Asser, Minimum Funding Requicements and their
IFRIC 14 Tngeragrion <*

;\mullldlhclllS I I‘hili_ppinc {n:cﬂ.-rpn::-.lri(ms TFRIC - 14, Prepayments of a Minmmum Fundmg o

Requirement ansd their Inrestction **
IFRIC 16 Hedpus of 1 Net Invesiment in 5 Foregn Operanon a5
IFRIC 17 Disnibutions of Non-cash, Assets to Owners™* -1}
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assers from Customuers* 5
IFRIC 19 Lixomguishing Financial Linbilines with Equity Insrumenrs*~ g
TERIC 20 Swpping Costs i the Produgtion Phase of a Suefice M ffediee Jannary 1, 2013) =13
Phifippine Incerpr jons - Standing fntcrpretutions Ce irree (SIC)
S1C-7 Tiztraducton of the Bure o
SIC-10 Gavemmunt Assistinge - Ne Specific Relation 19 Opesating Acivities o5
SIC-12 Conselidahon - Special Purpuse Entines fr

Ameiknent to S1C « 12 Scope of SIC 12 5
S1C-13 Jowtly Conmolied Entitics - Nen-Monscriry Comrilutions by Venturers =
81C-15 Operating Leuses - lcentives ** &5
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Chaoges in the “l'nx Starus of an Entity or irs Shurchelders' I8
S1C-27 LZvalushing, the Subsmaee of Teansactons Involving the Logat Fonm of a Lense ** fr3
SIC-29 Service Concession Acrangeenents; Disclosures 7]
51C-31 Revenue « Baver Transactions Involving Advernsing Services &5
$1C-32 Inmngible Assers - Web Sie Costs £+ &5

¢ 'These spschuds will be effeenve for penods sulisequent wo 2012 and ace ner caly adopted by the Company,

** These stanelard
m boih years pres

e,

Deen adepieel mibe prepacanon of financial ssatements bur the Company has ao significant ansactions covered
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGYE COMMISSION
SEC Foun 17-Q

QUARTERLY REFORT PURSUANT TQ THE SECURITIES REGULATIONS

CODF. OF THE FHILIPPINES
Fioe the quateer pedod ended ¢ Jusae 30, 2015
SEC Wemifiouion Number  : ASOSLNH1420
B Lax Ideniifieation Mumpes : 143-003 -307-21%

Eraes namme of the ooperant as specified i ils chante
brealypic ARICEAT. FIOT TN G

o

MAMDALUYONG CITY, METRO MANILA PHILIPPINES
Trovinee, Countey or othae judsadicton of incocppmtion

L AT , ( SECUse Only)
Indurcy Clussifiention Code oo Qrpanizaton

Fullelress of prncijal Office Unit B-29020 P5SE Cented, Exahange Road,
Pasip City

Regiserant's pdeplsor aumbae, inchading are code ¢ 16306345114 750

Roroer. ta, Spemer sdtbeess, end foomcz Haal yoar, it elmuged since Jagt report
Sucueitiar sephirened passusnt to Seetions ¢ ut B of the SRC

Title aof Bach Closs Fumbre of Shares of Comuson
Stock Outstanding awd Amovnt of
Dbt Quigianding
Commpn Stock, PLOD parvatus 1,195,200, 000 ghares

T Are gy arpl these secudities Bxtod on thy Philippine Stock Exchange?

Yes (x) Mo {)

Cheel: whather thi reglstrant:

t2)  has fled £ll reporty sequind to be fled voder Revised Seoweites Code of the Philipaes and 147 of
Cowpowtion Cosde of fye Philipgines ducing rhe poesoding 12 months.

Yos ) No ()

(b Fas been mbjecr tosuch filing requicemnents for the post 90 daye.

Yes {x) N ()



Ttem 1. Financinl Statemeniz

The consolidated financial stzremerits oze fled a3 part of this form 17.0), sompanies ineluded in the
conselidatian are First Abocos Finenelsl Holdings Comporation RAFHC, the pyrent company), Abacus

Capiml and Tevestment Corporation, Abseus Securdtics Corporation and flie Vists Flobdings Cogposstion.

Item 2. Mansgement Discussion snd Sunalysis of Financlyl Condition and Rosuits of Operntiose,

Financial Figldighes
In thousend pepes excwpl for Risnarcial zadon
' Perloi ended June 30
; % Change
iy 212 | Imc. {Dec) |
Revemacs wsg27)  2nmms| (e
Teasl Crorr anct Expenses 17675, 169857 8%
M- irieons (lss) 18,328 B (537499)
BRITDA 116481 130712 (089}
Unaudined | Andicd % Clange |
o 30, 2003 | Boc, 31, 2062 | Toe, {Decy |
Bulance Steest D :
“Tortal dssnts 5306476 5021889 56
“Forad Dbt 271102 o skl TH44% ‘
_Frta) Mockhudden' Myuity 2305, 47 3588954 [L24%

The fgtlowing see e sajor performancs mensvoss thar sbe Company mer, foidyics ace employed by
coqupatison and mesmeement on o consuliduted basis basod un the Fussi] dae on the pedads indicated

oo
o ‘ - Tz dod Audived ]
Jume 50, TOE3 Dier, 33, 2012 4
Liguriclivy: !
Cureear Tatio 1.05:1 1h6it |
Coverngrey Sohvency tmtiog:
Pusut ' BEquhy 20481 | Babe]
Debt to Bquity Rado 1.04: &0

[



; June 30 Tuee 3
| 2013 2012
Qpecating Eifricnoy:
Rovenue Growrls — Iieecass | Diocronse) {1.63%) S %
Preeigahiliey « Increase { Decrzse) {55, TH%) {18.5%5)

The mannec by which the Company siocates the-above ipdicatoes oo folk:

Key Perdformance Indicator Faratisha
| Casevenl Ratin Lupenr assecn/ Canrent Tinbilies
| sact o Bapuity Radio Assers / Lol srockholders' cquity
| Bkt io Beuity Radio Taedt lakilleizs ) Towl srockboldesy'
| Rovenue Growth Corgent prood  iotal revesues/Pdor  period (ot
; pevDHLeES
| Mee Ineomflorsh Growtl Cuetenr Peripd Net Incoime/ Prios Perdod Mes Tisonme

Tz couneny’s scrang fuadamentals cominned to greevil ns coractendc goowahy contintod Hne e seood quate: of
the you 2003, Growth was deiwan by seecayy houssinbd eossamprtion, kigher govecament sperding, mned incressed
enpiie] formastion supported by beaipn inOaton of 2.7% a0 low inteiest oows. Blection spending likewise buoyed
e growth momentum s maofpctucing cuepet cotived s wsorgtnce, growdng vobiemes by sboor 13,5% in de
wocoand qaztber, Thic ahowe avcoage pestosmance of the Philippioe econouy, hewever, Balled to sveet thee loead stock
pradker’s desceirs ingo “beac caregary fos the fest time in foor peres. Glabal jinee wvar o eredit erawch in Ching,
and, he gonounesd tapetng of quantisative easing a5 the Lrdied Sweee coonoayy showed signs of seoovzy sen
Foreien imvestass o the ddelines, The mneker siw o eevesal of what wak previously seen us 20 exubezant flow of
proetbolio funds juke emesglng madkees socly ak chat of the Pdlippines. Altdwough the fall b stock prices and the
salbisequertt deprecistion of ke pestwers 110z soen {o signaficantly huce the natiood] seonony, te seecnd ganses of
2013 was particulady challzngiog 1o the local capinl mndesn,

Despite the mised gignabs dn the kepee economis savizpnumnt and the contimung dowoweasd spiml in te lozal
capited markels, He Company rmisget 0 post modest gaine. For the second guaner of 2013, the Company's
comolidated reveue s100d 6 Phadss, million, e inorcase of. 253 over the Popsll million revenues realized for
rwe seme pedod it peas. Bioliers. conmmipsion posted duadap the quarter reacknd Phpd23 oo, up by Php?
million from the Phpdthd milllon oulized dadag compactive paded. o sdediton, the compory coadbeed Plydb
midlion gain in investmaenrs in Fuancial assas st Bie vahes theouph and besy anel dn dts available-foe-sale
Girneial assess, also hipgher by Phpi 2 million 2 compared to the Php23 million sodlized lagryeaz,

Ap of tw 1 hatf of ithe yens censolidated mveowes ampuaied to Phpd?5.6 million, Thore was o docrsare pomd
amauning o Phpl miling or 13,3% s compared to the Php2l T8 mifllion repockd for the same pedod hst pear,
"Tha deessse it consolidared cevenmes ax af the repoeting petiod can be artributed to the Jower mansyzement 0id
wnderwriting Fees geneented diwing the pedod smovntog o Php2l? millioo s compueed o Php$1.2 miilion
puaced lost poks,

Tigring bl secami quarber, the company spert o o] of PhpSR24 million, Phpl2® mdlioe ighes campagped & the
Php?5,3 million totzl cost aod cxprnses poated fog Hie same peried last year

A6 of the fegr balf of rhe yeoar, vodal coste angd esipenses smawcted W Php T2 million Togher than the Phpl 6.5
rilion posted Gor e srone pedod bt yeae, The inceease v broaghn abowt by the additions] costs due o highae
vekaenes of trensncrions. As dn Wee past, w Taepe bk of operasing expenses wes allootted Ry doba servicing i
heoplng with Mo companys commitmeat w bane i obligatioar.

Swmmiop up the Company's pedboraee for the scosod qaines, the Company is repocting 8 mst koss of Db

oullian feom last yeae's oot meome of Thy?.6 mdlion, For cbe &t half of e year, the Compnny &5 seponizg 2
coosdklited et inonaie xmaunting o Phpls.d million, o deermse of Plp2d million or 55,79 a5 companed 1o the

Phypt |4 million repostedt lest yeze



“Dheee wns Al fnctedse iis total assets aod [nbiities nuped 25 of the firse hall of the pexr ameunting o PhpZs natlion
and PhpR78 eospectively. The incpesss was heeught dlenuc by the edditionsl far collection trade secahables, pacdally
offset by the addititoal made papaises tnd acemer expenses

T increage in spockholdens” vouity of Phpa2 millan wax doe tio the et et 25 of the year less the sale of the
Coenpany’s financkl assets.

The Comproy gemain highly ogeicivic tat s finsacial pacformancs wil conrie £ improve moving foewsnd to
acpount of Bembie conditions in the geneol opesitiog envirpament and the midierm eleotions.,

The campnay has consistently mainegined it strang presonee in dhe meacket all these vess aned semaios in 2 beteer
patition 1o ke advaimage of expocted upenme In B mnrbet, preicokarly aF iowestments coptinue o be divertad
b1o Asi from Burope and the. dmedicss,

T Compnrry, however, will condiniac to keey 30 efftetive bakinee borween svanagiog dsks and oppornices and
wdll ot Jut e pased down, The Cmpm}' shali contipue: 1o solbdify s niches and expond mezcher ceach, Ar tho
#eme Time, the Company shall consinie v be Ien without seedficing abiity to peovide the best value to customess,
As it hes continoed to do so i the lxse four yenrs, thre Coapaity wilk keepr w0 gye o nummqu, b:»am, and
subserently, disberest oot s expenss, Anda i the past, the Congrany shall devoe sueopth snd inspiction from
fhe suppoet andd comminment o ity vadows stekeholdess,

Agidle From the dvosisinne sbene, there de nbd marera) affcbalunee shogl grsactions, sesmngements, abligetines
(ioclodiog comtingen) obligationgy, ail other reladondips of e company with vocansolidated grrilis o other
pergond ercued dusing the reposting pedad.

“The Comopsey and. i Subsidinde: bave not knewn off Ay trends, demands, coempitnipeits, cVenms o grecrtintbs
shiwt will have 3 matera! impace o the compang®s liguidiog Aoy reads, events or wikekesintics st soe reszanobly
expecied o bave a materis] ficorable or vafavorsle mpat on the opembons af the Jeswss Aoy sippificint
skements of inoemse and loss thar did noc adse From the beuers continuiay epvcations; The Company sod s
Suleeidinrias hvee 150 comaultnents Tor crplak expeaditness,
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Figst Abaous Financial Holdings Corp, and Subsidirrles

Congolidated Balance Sheots

ASSETS {Uneudind) Audited
June. 50 December 31
2045 2ot
Cash R G HIS BII0335,384
Fananint Assees ar Faie Waloe Thenogh Profic o Los(Mote ) Fiid, 380,227 A87T,759,055
Available for Bile Binsneil ArsetsINore B 2,550,870,695 208251, 240
ReceivablleeNote 6) 1,797,349, 513 130,667,156
Propeay and Boaiperent (Naote 7) 83,590,146 BOS1O492
Tavwsemismr Peopertes ~Ner 9,622,863 10854,5M
Fedezred Ty Asset 95 410,277 VS 19,27
CHhce AssorsN ote 81 130,263,721 L17.567 855
H5,306,476,.850 BE 0 BES 008
JIABILCTIES AND STOCKEOLDERS BQUITY
Aeexurts Payable 2od Ot Lighilities(MNote 0 BER2, 377,256 P20,850,857
Jateeest-hearinp loanr snd bomowingzddate 10) 2028052 150 2,012 060,534
2,711,329, 386 2,455 950,872
STOCKHOLDERS BEQUITY
Capiia! Stock 1,193, 200,10 LE9A.200,000
Adddlitioend Baitk Iy Capplial 3,104,500 3,104,800
Treamaty srogk, at costioce 113 (385,510,562) (A5 70,3813
Chianges in faix vahue of svadlglie R gale finoncial stseis 2,398,223 917 240,342,966
Tieficit {13, TI0,6 {G32,039,028)
3,595, 147,445 2 SHR A58 001
5, 16,4710, 850 H5,D2LARE TS

For M twar pre Freomesa] S teorermer



FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
OOMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREMENSIVE INCOME(LOSS)

RENEMNLIES

(onsfsdion

Gajn o wle of financis] oxeoe
acagrmene/ Underiting foce
Fviamand

Uyl erd

Dithews

COST AMD BEXTRMRES

PFlmnee Cosy

Looss b valea of imosomentin TWVTTHL

Cormmisiore

Bolbicicy snd wagss

Tauix dad Lesneas
Dizprezistion and amccizvion
Sak excbropgzeand MCR fier
Ot opeaing expoRras

ENCOME (LOSE) BEPORE TAX

ERCOME T8
WET FROTIY

OTHER COMIRETENSTVE INOOME (EQ58)
TOTAL COMUREHENSIVE INCOME {LX¥55)

i3 ]
Tor ke Quarer Tenr'Te Duke Par the Guuier Yenr To Duane
Aprii—Jume  Jnuuery—[une : anmane funs

P40 I45,454 108,735,013 P ATEAD «PO3LT DBG
35,154, 5E5 63489770 LN FDLT SUALLBES
“ L ABAI0S oA, 200,757 54,254,767
170,368 314,708 s IR A2L
- - - S8
43,351 TERB7 35,120 55081
TR 198,506,737 GTOTI 0 Z1L, 95064
A0 ALT NI02870 34, M558 0,585
IBAPRALS - TLSAH 24 L3R ]
14,6335 298065000 [Eelipy ek b b N
11,394,148 iAW G184 0TI nss
LR L05 BA2T5S 2B TR
4077783 pLErL AR R DOOG?
7Lt AR 4,455, 5RE 35D 7483527
3,905,528 Ly 50,805 0,082 15N R
GBI TRETRAA BYRREES LG BT
1,098 ,443) ;05 AL T £L I8
LEL2 5P} 2,522,860 Blapis 54,088
EASGLMY) TEIeRAD T FL LIS
[PRASOE34Y) LK IZE NS BB it 4135




First Abacus Financial Holdings Corp and Subsidiaces
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
June 30, 2013

CGusmerBided Sl Moot QuanerBoded  Six Montbe
Juce 3}, 2313 lume M, 208 Tuoe 30,92 Tose 30,2000

CASTY PLOWS TROM OPERATING ACITFITIRS
@MY PIRIBFD RSN RIS

Py Entewsionn)
Ndjuziments foc .
Pl ety MM BLHZEN MATEE  T2IGAL
Dreprocistinn ind savtivythn 407 PALLEES 4ABEDEE  BODGHT
Beir alus 2 i i walue o€ Tinencial asesis 17,290,679 » {15 4408,984) fe
Loty (g L b vt o tnsselel aiders (38354506 (63880, 900) (HL140.5858)  (EOALZBT}
Imcasst oo M348 BN (250, 372) FTRAZN
Cperating Incoac befinne weabteg apiird dinngs: ‘ TINGT AELI0 TESHIS  BUIATSAE
Tncorase i firoacth wseets ax i vilus hrosgth yuufid oo s 5, TSR 45,570 062 Zxoehen $ A0
Do frivecivables (A6 (ISESBLETT) (B4, 775 T™) (64081450
Exceenarn in sccounikmytils dml seeiel capeme WEADRAGY  2BATDSI0  ALLhITLOW  (TARYART
Cash poorited by s iH) opeaing netivlie AR {550 A T G T Y
Enueoew voosheed XT38 384,719 LI L ) ATgtaL
Hiwoa! et (Ymeh  (sa28s00)  (ISMITSS) (SRASRMG)
A5000,PE) {95 AMRIEY $10T65% L8517
CASH PLOWS FROM INVEFTING ACT FVITIRS
Fcaddhr B he il et ey 510,564 Rt {1575) {28007y
Bor-fincenons) Sasreanain propenty and souipmee (1,531,115 10,364,800 (24897 L0530
Moy {loenveny detraasein cohereeres (3,056 4511) (2405858 kJie Ay §1.950,635)
Died sk proldod by {usadin lnvesdeg actidsics 1,506,638} 06,370,292 TR (0%0,2%)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACITVITTIES
MARANT  IGBIRQSE IR (TSI

ek byan wvioscnia frapminnd

Biec cash poovided by (vasd) Gnexing aetivi: _ BBsA5T) mmfm LIRS (LT NISATT)
NEY TNCREASE [ CASH ANTD CASH BOURVALENTS (RMTA) (RSTG DI (EEISHISY
GABIL AN SASE) BORBVALERLS, BEGINNING L TWESEE ARG 355,354 134,455,711 1TTA 58
LASE AN CASE FQLEVALENTF AT TEHE SND TALBGLIOE  PHABLWE | BGLISE00] R




First Abacus Financial Floldings Corp and Subsidiatics

Steements of Chanpes in Equity

Qmuzrier Endpd Six Monithe Qruaiter Bnded Sdx Manthis
~ Tune M, 2013 ~ June 30,2003 Junc 30, 2012 _ Juns 30, 22

Capiitn] Stock « 7100 par vakue B PI108 300000 B B 1493500000

Anthotized ~1 BEQM0 000 shrares

Jemaced ang Duesznding -1, 193,200,000
Adiconst Prid Tn Caplea 3,104,800 - 3,104,500
Trensury Slmmes {SHE 670,53 - {385,670, 581)
Cllrangres fn Walwe of Finkraial Asgets 2,358,203,007 . P55, 674
Ferainee Banings

Balance beginning »

(622,03003) (621,075,242}

Dz Snceme (24,561,543) 18,328,422 7,597,389 $1,413,915

Balames atoand of quxtigr (24,561,393} (623,710,670 7,591,300 {579,616, 316)
TEYPAL BT POAS61,343)  PLEBEASYA65 P 7597380 B ZA00A255




FIRST ABACUS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CORP, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

1.

Figst Abacos Financisl Folbings Comaration (e "Pavenr Comopay) was intoupocated in (he Phikiprines and
Tug zubsondal investcns in 1he Folipwing subsidiancs, 2l of whish iz incgrposared in the Frillpplnec

Percentape of Ownership
Junw 3, 2013 Bee. 31, 20132
Abazcus Capits] snd Investment Caip. 100 1040
Abgows Bpenrities Corporation 100 160
Vistn Haldingk Corporation 100 104

The Paccor Company ned s enbsidivdes (the “Goup™ s pdrsrily mvolved do wivestmeent baoldag,
maeagement advisory services and seewdties bmokermge. The Paccar Cotipaoy's shanss of srock see Tisted o tee
Thilippine Stock Bxchange.

SUBSMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The signiBowr accoundng polivics that e beep weed in fhe prepamtion of these consolidited fAmancial
statervenits npe summneizad below. The policies bave heen consittently npplied 1o All peres presuied, wibess
arherwise shated.

\donti Sy  BER
Consolidueion Sundxnds

The Geoup is cumely seviewing the impact oo fs consdlidsted faaocsl stuaneots of die following
enmstabiduiiarn siendasds which witl be effertive feom [avvary 1, 2013

PERS 10, Conalfaed Tinensiod Stovgwws, This standard builds oa existing prindples of consulidmion by
icleniifying the concept of canteot us the derermining Fuobxe inwhetheean oodey sheuld be Enetuded withie die
carstlideted fmancial stutements, “Fhe stzrdand Wi provider wddfitonal puidance o sadst dn deseeningag

conzed witera fhds br dlfaale 10 wascae

BERS 12, Disafarwre of Intirenss i Oher Eafitier. Thls atudazd indupzater zndl nntker comsisiont th disnlosare
reguisements fir 28 foous of eercs in alher esmities, incloding jedur mng-:mmm.asmm, Speeirl, R e
vehicks and nbcossolidated atmechuod eotitics, This alio introducns new Jisclome quisements aboar the
fisks o whick an embisy 3 exposed frorn s mvolrement with shrestuned i,

PAS 27 (Amcodment), Feerve Finwal Stwrmews. This rovised stendond now coverr the requdrements
pretxining solely to sspamte fnancisl statements gfter the relivare diseusslone on conredl and consolidsbl
Anaocis] steteaniats bave been toaneterred aml nelsdad n FERS 10, No new mgjor chanpes slaling to separabe

fencii] statoaents ave bees intedoced a5 o aesalt of b sevisian.

H



PAS 28 (Amendmen), Joutimnts i A snociate and Jeinr e, This revised soandard includes the seuinemeits
Lo jolne venpeeee, o6 well v fesociates, (o be weconnend fue udlng wuicy mathod foliowing the issosnce of
PREE 11, folut Armisgemest,

Subaeguem o the ls::umce of e foregohyg consolidstion stmdacds, the BASE msde some changes 1o the
brasinoaal provisioos in Infecmafivnnt Binsogisl Repoding Scestland (IERS) 10, TERS 1t Gulml Armngunicnt)
and RS 12, which were plso m.inq:-:uti L'cy the BYRSC. The guidince confimns fhat an ontlty is ot coquized 1o
npply PEIS 10 retrospectively b docain drtomstances sod dadfes the coguirensoies 1o present ndfusted
eoupeatives, The guddenne also mades chnuges to PRRS 10 and FERS 12 which provide dimilar celief trom the
pmsmmmn o AdjuEmsns of mnqwmnw information Ser petudc pdac to e somediately poecedang peeed,
Fuzther, it provides zelief hy .n:mu'nug the cequiremiet o present comgaeives for disckosures ecdutiag o
upenmxalidated styctured eatiies for any pedod before the fratannoat peoosd For whicl PRRES 12 5 applid.

TERS T (Ansedmnny, Firranel Tocrarrs: Direfmees — CQfatine Fimaniatolee o Fingwdal Liotofier felfesive
feem Jonewer 1, 2003 The svmodment seqpices qualiiative am q.mnumuw diselaseres obliitg fo gros uud
nzi qmonnts of recggnizsd Gusnelsl inseowovnts that ae seteoff in sccorlinee with PAS 32, Fiavwde!
brasorpnenis: Preseatotion. The pmcnedment dlin eenulres disclosaee of Information ¥bous reeoprized Rnancial
instoumments whieh s sibject o enfaceeable master netting arringements o similas sgoecments, ¢ven i they
ase not #21-08F o the smasement of financial pogition, inchuding those which de ot mear saowe ar 2l of the
offvittng cotedz undes PAS 32 end amainess mibaed o 3 forels] pdllabzsl. Thess disclosoces wil] #llow
caosolidated Fnancial statemont wxes to oviloss dbe cffect or povendal cffeer af netting ummgumnts,
including gy of str-olf asaccinted with tecogaired financial ssyets and financml Gsbilides on the entiny's
fnangial pnﬂb.un The Geoup his iddally assessed that che adoprion of the ameadment will nor bhave &

sl pifienny imper o o sslidsred nninis] veanas,

PERS 13, Palr alve Maaowrenns feffeotive Feam Janooey 1, 2085), This stentkazel aime w6 iapaove cosisency
183 meduce sampbedty by peovitling e precise defindion of fabr wilae and » single sonzos of fir value
enepstremnat and dieclosurze mqui.nemwm foc e serots PERS, The retuizsosents do nat wstend the uee of B
wahwe grcounting but provide galdanee on bow @ should be appBed whese it wse iz sleendy sequined or
pemitted by wiber stanibeeds, M;magrmmt & It proosss of cevivwdop its wilaabon methadologies for
conformity wiih the aew ceguiremenss xod has yes fo astesz the lopast of e tew soadaed on the Group's

comsolsdnied fnnneid siceements,

TAS 37 (Amendment), Foronca levesedls: Brviation — Offecty Flwande! dunte aad Finewia Linbilis
{{:fmculm frean Janusay 1, 2004}, The pmwafmens provides guidanse ro sddeesy nooadaeneies in applying the
criteris foar oE'Esa;ung ﬁlmaml zsxets and finandial lisbiliGes. Tt chudfies that a qghl of sex-off is requived to b
legrliy enfocceable, in the pomal conske of butineks; io che svent-of dofxls sad in e cvont of insolrency o
tankiuptey of the eotity and af of the countespaies, The amsndment also cadfics thy principle behind a
sedemant ol provides chneacteristios of % gross sertipment wystem tht wouk! wiBly te aiedon foe e
sestlemens, The Group docs oot exprect this aensndment 1o have g signifeant iogact on it Fesmcial sacemants,

PERS 9, Flwawse! Tastrimeats; Clergfeation awd Mewomeest (effective from faouary 1, 2018}, This i e Bar pare
of o new randsed on financis) instouments thay will teplace PAS 38, qu:m' Tvctrmeends: Reenguitiow s’
Mesrsrramenr, i its r.nun.l.].r “This chapter covers the dassificadon snd mosweement of Missncis] seselx aord
Brelsl Habilides and dt deals ith rwno messarcmene citepadies for financia) nssen: pmortiosd cozt aadl 53
valoe. AR equily imterumedns will be messured of fic wlae wbile daly bogbenenents will e measvet ac
smaprtixmd cost ondy F the extity i holddig de o colleot caneactual eusly fows wldch wepeesent pagpmens of
prrincipal and interest, The soentfing for eesboddod dageatives in liost conumats tial 20 Hrancial moets i
gicerplified by semoving e mqtm:::mm w0 consider whether or not they ace elosdy exkeeed, and, in ooeet
RECAERELAL, docs not pexqoirs separation From the host conacs.

For fabilider, the stundird rezaing mose of e PAS 39 regwicements which include amartized enst sccouciting

(o et Guanch] lisbilites, witl bilfuecatizan of embedded derivatives. The maia chaoge e tha, $n caae whie
Hie: Take wahibs option is taben fox Gaancial liabidites, the past of & foir valee change due oo +n eauey's own ensdit
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rish ix reconded in pifer composhengive ngpme wither thon in peodic oc Leas, wolexs ehix crestes an sccounting
msmzgeh,

T dlam, othet cheaprers of PRRS 9 dealing with, impaieneent vorthadslogy sod edge ascouning see il buing
eomplered. Fucther, in Sovensber 2011, the TASE axntslively dezided to conskder sozking ¥mited] modiBlentions
b IRRS 9's fingncind xxset chassifeatinn mode! toaddres orrtain application isus.

The Geoup dote nat expect 00 kyplement and adape PERS 9 wnil 5t wffective date oranil £ chapiess o ghis
aew stanelaed bove been published, In addition, manapement is carrenty asreseing the impact gf PERS § an dhe
comolidarsd Bnancil statements of Uhe Gooup snd it plans w condus § cumprebensive saady of the pobauinl
impaet of this stentlard prir to its mandereey whaption dnte to asses the dmpzet of afl dhaoges,

(il 20052011 Aqnonl Ingeovnoeacs w PERS, Annual fnprovements m PRRS 2009-201 Cpcde) mada
minoe smeadments tos numbere of BERS, wiich ate effective for siaal pedad begionlng onoc sfer Janvag
1, 2013. Arwong Hsoar bmjicoveticdty, the ifowdig asnondiaests Ao edlevans wo e Gooup bat manngement
d'ma naC expet 2 atais] bmpact on e Gooup’s consolidared Enaucial smeemmenss:

(@) PAS 1 (Amendmont], Preresition 8 Pineony’ Shvements — Chwilerben of the Bagodreasty fr Comprorarise
Infewordow, The smendment clasifies e requirements for prossncing compemtive infocmetion for by
Following:

Requiremenis fox ppening staemant of financiz] ppsiton

IV an eotity applies 40 sccopnting policy mspcc;ia\ni}', o Makes & petesopertive msntent or teckislfondet
oF itzrns that bren -maneckyd offoet oo the infoomatsn dn the sttecnens of Aol peidon so e beginsing of
thr prcmxlmg predod (e, opening 2tatenent of Duencn) positon), it sl posent apdh thisd sretement of

Fincisd pasitean.

Other than distlosure of corals ppeificd dnfocmation in accosdence with BAS 8, Awsmvwileg Pofie, Chawger in
naning Ertestr o Errees, rilared aorss o the epening seareonent of Buancisl pewidom axar the beginuing of
the pewossling pertod are nat requined tocbe pyoesenked.

Reguisenyenes foswikditloaal compaeadve infornation beyoad mdnimum regquirements

T s gastily pressniey] sompaasiive infsmgion o g Boaocis] stuements beyond the minimem compamtive
infgprmation coquicements, the sddisional Hnanckl statements JrEommation shovkl be peesested in. sccoedsmoe
with PFRS Inelnding diseloswee of sompacative infaration in the telsted potes for thar additionat information-
Peatestting wddidont] cospaniive Information volonedly woukl nor wpper # coqufzemenr fo peovide 2
samplers sei of Boandsl staeements,

). PAS 36 (Arsodesent), Frapots Fhoer awd Egeisaey — Closifestion of Jowlsing Egefers. The smendment
nddresees: o, porgeirad incomsistener in the clussitieatdon rguinsmenr foe sesvicing squipment which sesalied in
ehestilifag servicing equiperent ss part of inventooy wheh 2K wied for more den o pasod, T ckfics b
drcens vacks as space paoes, sand-by squipment and sereicing equipraent shill be scooprized as penpecty, plat
Ao eguipmentohen they most 1be definition of property, pleer and equiprmenr, atbeowize, theseare daglfied
#¢ Inveenmcy.

(g} PAS 32 [Arnendment), Fiasods! Tndwwens — Meaewtoton - Tax BEfiet of Dinefbetions fo Slaldrr of Bouly
Iﬁ.trmmw The nmeniment clasifica that the ooasouences of income MX celating fu <distributiony to holdae of
o equily inftumert xod j0 tmaseciion coste of wn equity o e shall Do sceouned foo in sccondinoe wih
F:’LS 1 m:xlmg]y, anzbent ik ribiting to diEdbadess o heldes ol an cquu}' tRTmL A ds x;mgmt-d in
profit oeJoss wile income wx echiced (o thie tanmoion costs ol oo <quity oinsaction 3 cecognized Inequity

12



Basis pf Preparation

T consolidzsed fnencid stetemonts hove boon peepared oo 2 historical besis, cxcept Foe the movabantion of
certhln Hnaness] nesem ac Fsie vatoe, The sseseaeernsns tases ame awee Fally deseaibed & the apconnting police

below:

The poeparstion of the consolidated fonsciasl statenoms zogquises the groas to male cstimancs nind aesamptinns
that wécct the reported amsoants. of 2ases, Heblities, incorme and expenses, Fature events may osour which will
crus e thie nssamgtons wses] o rsdving ot ihe estienter & change. The sffeces oF sy chinpes I egdmnres will by
refincied in the Groupts conmbidite] Branci] sirements s dhey boecomn roaspnably detecminakls.

The eonsalichated (nsneial saasemsitts ke presenied in Philippios pescs, the Gooup's fenctinnal suceney, and
#ll. vlaer. srpoesent shaolate noounis except when otheowies Irblcated,

Lrinciples of Consolidation

The-accompanying coneobilared finencixl htements comprise the fnnpelzl atanapents of the Pacear Compaay,
1l whollp-owned subsidiades, ACTC, YHC, et ABSEC, 22 pfand for the years funs 30, 2063 2o Decoendyer
3, 2012, zfrer ellsteiion of ooteda) ineccompanty wapiactons ang wcconnr babinos:, Subsidizics aee
comolidsted o the Jite the Preent Company abisiins. conpmb uatil such sima that contre! ozases

“The excess of the carrying velue of the Perent Company's investuents in ACIC AND ABSRL wyec th it
e fn the Sl valwe of e undazying sseaw of ihe subsidinries i recogaveed as Goncbadll and shopm as pant
afl the Other Azssis accomst.in the constlidabed balaee shiuts.

Business Kegrminnts
The GEremp i caganized Bt the Eollowing business sepmonts
1} Becuuities brokeceae -handics buging sad selling of sharer of stock, bonds and otfuer wecoriiBes,

2) lovestment banking -peoviden dooices wlich indade wderpriting of financhl instrements aad Finencid]
adwiRDey services,

) Oihers oeludes oooapeoeyr advisory seevioes and Jexdng of combomninim apits, pope of which
edmetilites & sepasiely aeponable segmen,

Trnssctions beowesn the business yegmonats pez on oormal commerdal teems and conditions,

Funds nee osdinndly alloested bevownn sogemucts, sesalting in cindiog co rransfses diselossd in ppemting income,
Intaeeest elveged For taeses funds & bassd o the Greap's weighted aveonge banl: loke oates.

Tnner-sepment sevennes pob cxpensies Koo mclade matds foore the apecatngy kasee on condiminiuom wits managed
by omctain segpuaents, These ace 150 ol mateds] iteres of droomn of sapense bitwenn the bsiness sepments.

Sepment assers and liabilites comprise opembng assets and lisbilies dnclodlap iteme such 05 taaton awd
bocrowings.
Casht

Cish intludes et ¢ Jand ond baak depodin whidh s swbjest 1o bnsiprifieat rsk of cheryges o valuz, Gash i
initaily and cobeoquendy mesanzed at Gir veloe,



Janancitl Aveeor

Tinxncial assers indliade exsh and foancis) inskramenis. The Goowp clessifics its fnancizl aseets inw fhe following
ettepodity: Arrencial pssets st Erlr voloe theoogh peodis or loss, bans and receieabies, hold st mannity inrestngnts
and arsailnble-foe-gele Snancel neers

Finxnegial assets aze sevigned o the different crrepodos by mamgeotent oo inidal escopnition, dependiag o the
purpose for wideh the Evesments weee acguired. The desigpation of finamcid assats ds cranmlogtsd at owegy
sepaciiag dete ¢t which dave 4 ehoice of tlatsificarinn ar accounting toearment 19 available, fubject (o obemplisnce

with gpeeifie provisieas of applizable acooonting sramdacde

Al faxeciz] mesets are meognised on their tde date, AR financkl asseks that wee nod cknsifed as ot faie valie
through peedit or ogs azi indiadly recogrdsed at fi-value, plus transaction eosh,

“The Group has designared i Angocial aspers g thie following cargoties

Fipngig? Assets gt Fair Vedpe through Frofit-or Lops. Tiis eategrry Schide finmncal

nsiees El dor vithier elasgilied 2t beld for wmdisg or are desiyinssl by vhie oodiy 10 Te exesicd a1 Bl valae
throwgl peolic or logs wpon Inkgal cecognidon. A msncial »eeet js chussified in dbis caregray i noquieed
prmzipalle for die pucpeac of selling in the shomr teom. or if 5o desipnated by manapement, Dervktives ano alwo
entiporized s hedd For trading® ynless they g degignated 32 heiges.

Gubsopoert o inidal cocogrition, the fnancial sssens incloded I this caregoey a0 measeed 2t Gir walye with
chsrpes in faic valse pecopnized o proft or s

Fimancial apsewe cciginally desigysiud ax Bnancigl sisers ot fic valoe theough profit ar ks may ool subseqoerty
be sedinssified.

Loeny wnd Becehvaides. Leany and receivmbles are noae-dedvatne finnncial assers with fixcd or dotcrmivabic
paymesits that aee ook quoted i ze actee market They nise when the Geoop preside oy, poods o2
sirviess dieethy tn o detitor with solmendon of tading dw recebbles,

Loans wnd seotivaliles ate subsuquently meamae &1 amorized cost nsing the effentive nterest method, bess
impaizmens besses. Any cange in iheix yzlne s reongnized in profit orloss,

Laaar sl roceivrller wee paescared a5 Receivables in the oonscilidaied bhaluvoe ghes,

Impaicment foss & provided when Hieoe 18 objociive avidenee Uiar fhe Greoap will noz be able to oofleet a8
wrnoums due to B in accatdance with the ocigianl weres of e pecgivables, The smeunt: of the impakement s
15 dotermined o5 the differonce bween the asan’ cienping amoant woil e presen wmbe of ssimuced cxh
T, .

Armilrlefor ek Finzncialdsseer. Thise ooy oonalegeative Snoncial arsers thar e aithar designated to
Uiy cinegory or do o tpralify for imdwion i sy of iz otboe camprdss of fivaneinl asosts.,

Al financial wssets within this category ase sobseyueety measred st fieewlog, ualess oeherwise dipdosed, with
changes in velne rocopnized dp eguity, oot of aay effeen neking Erom dnsome wxes, Halne and logses atising
fratn seearite: chysifind oy avalkihle-fxeonle we rroogoiied o e congolidaled stnrerments af iucome wiven
thay wve suld ne whien the investnaen s impsined

In thi case of ionpairment, asy lass previotigly recopalzed in oqudry is texnsfitoed o the consolideted sextempts

of ivcornn, Losses ssopgnized in the consolidsted sarsments nf income oo equily investmonnts ae ol rovessed
tsreugh the consolidated strtements of Encome. Lasse recogetzed ln priee peded consalidared sacements of
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incume resubting from the Impefrment of dobst inpmmenrs are fveesed theough the consolidnted stabomoms of
Lneine.

Fioe bavgscenenss that ase actively tmded o orgonized Buaneli] morkes, B vabee is deccomines) by sefermos w
quosed madept ik prices b the cheee of bowlness on the consolidsxd balance sheed dare. For owstaents
wheze tlwze B 130 guoded madear prley, ke wilis is eteemingd by refocenee to e coerent maxdeet e of
anothes Ensteonscar wivich i sulsomialy tbe serme or B calarlated baned o the epeated cash flows of the
andedying net sssot hase of the invevkmsent.

Hon-compoundiogr o sid otboe cash fows comltng from hwlling Gnancial sxeks ae :rcoc-gmmd k) ‘pI’LTﬁI:
at koas whin eamed, exoept IF the pmln':;ah;y of the ecopemic benchies asociaied with e wanractian s not
contnin o the Group and repardficss of oo the sulutedd carcying amouitt of fnancial assereds megsussl

Deerecognlims of Gnancid] assors occre whan the fghs o el cash o from the skl oswarnents
expice o s tonelereed and solstantially sk of the mitky and sewards of owncmbip have been teansfeorcd,

FPropersy end Egiprent
Tropeery and cquipmeat foe croned 2t oost less zcournmbaned elepeeciatinn ami irmpeinmyens s edle,

“The cost of wn seet comgreises 3 pacchase peice 2nd dicootly ateribumble costs of beingiog the asser wo wodking
coaditin for its iended use. Expondinees for additions, majoc improvements and senevals nae capilalizods
expandlmree Gor repaiss 2od maintorsnoe: a5 changsd o expense ax incurred, Wl wsscls ave sobd, setived or
errervise disposed of, their cost aml elated accumularsd mmm and impaitngnt Tnsses rre somoved
Iream ehie acenungs and any maalting min or logs 33 roflaceed in inenme for the prdod.

Dprorinbinng de casmpared ueng die steaipho-lne metlodl gver the sstirated asefiel ivee of the ssets ar follows:

Condmmlniuem waits 1525 yours
Ballding isepecrcimenss 5 years
‘Transpoaiation équipenent 5 yeary
Coengmtior e nipewmt 3 o5 yenies
TPruentrtare, Folares and equipment 3- 5 porsy

Leaseholt impoorements soe amoctized over the exdmarad Bvee of the aseets oo the verms of the leass, wlhdcheser s
Shercoe,

An assels caping amount is writien down immediately o #r meovesshbe arsewe I the assors caorying ament is
prcamey than its estimated secoveoble dmsidit,

Thi sesicinl vaiacs aod epimaned aseful lves of property nod equipmeit aee rovdowed, sl adjusied iF sppropriane,
st epgh conslidared balanoe sheet dare.,

An et of peopeay and squipment Is derergyized upon ﬂn.qmﬂ or When oo fanite cconormis beosfits ace

expecred to ase from the camtiooed use of the ssct Any fain o Jow #dsing on desecognition oF gl aspet
(ml:u'l:m:d 5 thediffersnce botween the et dispess! procseds s e eraying smonnt of the e i included in
thet comasilidarad sruensants of income in the year the itm 85 Senosognized.

Inpepireit Properties

Inwestonent peopertiot peztain to conduntiliun units held For Tease and Eor nppreciaticn in value, Tie Growp
adiperd the eear rande) in mcaswmg fts Invzsrment mup::uus Accueeiygly, invesisiot pmpmm are cerred at
COBT Jeag accumulated dupreciution and sey imprimment i wuloe. Tha oot of investment progreriies compriscs fts
pusccisare paioe gnel direcely atedbutnble costs. Ivetinent propodtics ate depeeciated on » siraightline basis ovar the
esifmsted uxefiol Ofe of 15 m 28 YERDk.
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Tnsrngitils Axxces
Tnsargikde mset Inctude grodwil, emcing dght and gequiced coempater softwace Hoenses, The eose of tha szetls the

anuot of aab or cash equivakents paid oc the fale valoo of the other consilearions givea T Acquine al Lrset 3] the
tirme: oF its Romuisition o prodicction,

Coodndt!

Goodus] repreyents the excess of the cogt of ar:qt:lsmltm of the investoent ovee B Siv value of Ideatifizte oot
masets of 2 xubsittiaoy ar date of zoqulsition. Goodeill & @roed Ak ameetizod et up e e date of traition o
PERY dess srry boypdicenenit i viloz., Gombelll, shewe under-the Othez Assers aecount i e consolidarsd balanss
shress, Tk o bonger smoriized by subjeer o mrma[ geat For imgaiement whedher thaee i sn objective evidence of

mqmmmt e mc,

Fruding Right

“Trrding dght repsesents the value of the uﬂmn,ge sent which ellois she Growp to wade in tho PSE. Trading efgleris
aggeenl ax Laving an indefinite vseful e anil i ested stumilly fae impalodsenn 2o eaied 9l cortlers aceamuliced

impabcmentilnss

Campaier Sofeare

Asguined congter softwsire liomsos ure eaplialisesd on tbe basis of Cyes coss incued 10 aoquive and Inseall the
#peeific softwans. Cnats.assockted with mwinbaining computer softwire aoe expensed we neured. Caplullzed cor
e #moniimd on 2 stoeightofine basis over the cebimared weofid 1ife of these s fe thess intanpilde ssseis oo

comzldeced Galoe,

Defeeved O Exploration Costr

‘The Crroap made reptkia investments in-ollexplostios projros, The cost of saplettion

welutlng e geevice coneact oc biogk xcen wlith is s@ in the explombary stape /re capitedized ax defereed ol
exploation eosts (hown under the Otler Asretz sosount in the copsollsred balnnce sheets), Wien 1 sorvics
conteaer of block ases. s permanently nbandoned, the related defecred o] sxptoration coet s weiteen off. Sorvice
Eortenets o Woak nteas ace consifered not parmanenty abaodonsd i the spevice conmmets have not pet expined

Al oz there 2re onpoing oegesiuions foc fuiher seplosation.
Impatirnedt of Nov-fnarcisl Asso

The Grug's propecty and equipment, investment peoperty, deferad off atplostion oot and intangible assos ace
siibject o impetoent wexbng sheaemr cvents o changes: it circnstandes isdicste thae the caceying smmune may
mt be rocovenalile, Intanpfde asors with an indefudte vaesl il and poodwill nee taswed For impramment ot lease
arernazlly.

Far pagpoess of agsessing bmpaiceent, mcsers s grouped il the lovesl bovels for which ibeee am sppacovely
intemstifiable cash Alows fmshegencesing wiite), Se # cesudr, mme nssets ace tesssd indivichadly for dmpaierannt awd
sofye K tovted b exth-pon e G vnie level .

An impaivtent Joe i recoguized for dhe nooant by sdich the 2ssed or cxsh-penemiinp unil's oxooybay smeadt

exceeds irs reeovenble smoant, ‘Uhe recovesble st Js tihe higher of fairvalor, sefocting nadcor conditions less
eosts. to vell and valoe jn vse, based on an interasl dEscawted cosh Bow eveluation. Impsisment loss i checged pooe

ek to the prher ndsets In the eesh generd Bag voir,
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AT ngiry, éxeept Sosdwdll, oo wbﬁ&qlmﬂy wenspessed Bor indications that an imprinment loss poeviously
:ngﬂ.becd sy i Janpes et and the ourrpmg amckant af ths ssset is adjieted 4o the recoveclhe wmount reswltieg
ns thoe rverssd of the impaictscnt loss, Tmpakonient losscs recopalzed an Goodwill aze not rovessed,

Fiasnelel Linhilitiey
Finmateln tigtdliries incdude dntecese-bencirg losig aned boceomdogs acd sceownts papable and ather Lobllides

Fimancial Babdlides are cocopnived wihen the Growpy becomes & parly to the conoretua) agneements of the
drsstoernent, Al dnterpst oelsted chrpes are pecognized.as an expense in the cousolidated siarements of income.

Yespeerearsbogrleyy loaee und bazeoalag aoe abeised 0 suppace the laagr-eon Fundlap, peeds of the Geoup, They ate
recopiizad ot poooeeds vecefved, ver of divecr jegwe voss, Fimenee charges, indwding peurniwme prysble on
gotthyment oo vedemption snd diccer dssue costs, are chaspsld to proft or loss onna scoeas] basis weing the ebfective
itsterasr method and geradded m aby curving smmins of tig insmament to the extent ther ibey soe not settbed in the
prexiotl in which they ndse.

Aenowne peyable and othe UsbiBSes are seeopedsed inbtiglly a1 thekr nomioe] wefpe and sulissquenily mmenwced at
emnetizd cost s setiemeat payrmenes.

Fioyncixl lishiBiics see desoccgnized from whe consolidared Dakince sheots oly when the obligntioes eoe
exlingished eithes tieough digchacge, eancelliioe or expizcibon.

Provizioms

Provisions afe mengaized when poesent obligatiom will peobolly demid o an catllow of etontmic ressacecs and
ehey curt be estimued pdigbly even B the timing ar senoust of M sutllow oy il be -uncoisin, A proseas
chligrtion wrisex from the prescece oF o doge] o congtractivs combaimsent that tias resalted. Teom pnst swernts, for

wrumple, Jogal diapiiea o opEratL SoNmLeTR.

Provisione ere mensured ot e estiomed expumbEiaee sepaived to sode the present obligstion, hasel on the most
walialils whiduoce avaibible xL the consoliduled hadusonshest date, inclwding the risks aod wncestmintes aspeisted
with the present obligation,

Aoy releakwpement axpecked 1o be veosived In thi covnte of pilzment of e present ohbligation isecognized, i
wizgunlly eociuin, x5 o pagraesiie sescrat an amount noe exceeding the balance of the related provision, Wihere theos aee

# tnber of gimtie obligadons, te likelihood that an oniflow =il be mql.ilmd in setferienr i dorocenined by
consedng the ¢lass of oblipatnns ws 2 wiole, In wdilitien, lodg-tecn prenions ase MHecounred ro tieie poesent

viliees, where thse ellue of monoy is macedy],
Prerisioms. e reviewod atsach coasalidehs] baknce sheet dube mdd sdjusted vo reflest e cuceeie boic estioace,

I shose cres wheee the possible outliow of cootiinic resonree % 2 eesult of present alilignions i conddoed
improbable oo temors, g the amonng g0 be peniderd foc cennot be measueed relinhly, oo bty i cccognized in

thye oonsolidates! freancial statomunts,

Peobabbs inflowe of cconomic benefite that do ot et weet e sesognition crtedy of un went axe congidered
contlnguenn resets, hunot, a5e not pecoprized in the consitida e Arzncdal satemens,

Revenue Recagrition



Rewotar 8 recopnived 10 tbe extests tha it is probeble thot the economic bepefies will Dow w die Geoap sod the
sexuoue oxt br oelishly mensaced. The Gallowdng epecific ecogniton sftwds mues also las aeet Tefooe veveow i

geoupried
Renpdorieys of acevices (eotnminsions, financial advisay fees spd underwridng feeth -when cotizacnasly sprecd tasks
bt e sabistavitzlly endeped,

Tritewest v Ut dentesest pocenss (kiog bnte socount i effecrive yidld nn te asse).
Drividends -whin the stozkboldens' ght 1o reccive the pryment s estehlished,
Renral- oo o geeabgh line basls over the least eom,

Costs and cxpenses vos wecpgnized in the consolidated stitemnants of Income upon nelization of the service oc ar thy
deye of their foyin, Bindnes tome nee teported o 1o soemd bneis.

Seepiriies Fenmeacifons
Securities tovnsections of ABSEC fand selared comnsdssion neames and expenss, i spplenbls) am recosded on 2
rennsaction date basie,

Lonses

Comminy w3 bessor ~Lewpes, witich do not tansfoe to the Company sibstondally &l the dabe sod beoefin oF
awsesalin of the sssctace clrisifed 99 opemting lusses.

Legae ivnome fenm operting boases is seooguised as income iis the stitement of incame ne 4 sersighs-line busis cvge
de Jease weam. Todieor costs incuresd by fbe lemor in gegotinting and arnging for an opeguing lease is added w
the cazgyisg amonar of s leasei asser aol cecopaized os sxpstise over Bz laase om,

Comgpany s lossre -Operading leass payvsints aie coenpnized 25 axpease In the coasalitared staternit: ol ingome
a0 9 strgdphtling hasis over the Jease teom, Setegciated] st Buch 03 Moinmensnes amd osmngs, we expensed nx

incoesed.
Fuenctiooal Currery #ad Poccign Curaray Tmpsaations

* Fravthosad o Presation Chmpesey

Tern2 dneduded dn tdoe coneclidared foknelsl sitecens of the Groap are mursired using the currency ol te
primary ecopDmiz envisonpent in whid the endy operatee {the "fancBonnl curcency™), The consolikured
fenangial starcmicnes xees peessaned in Philippioe pesor, which i the Group’s funttives) camanay,

* Yromraienr awd Batrers

The scecuoting seenpds of the Gronep ane outmisined du Fhilipplee poses, Fossdgn cuxengy feansaetions daring
the yeur s translzted into e fnetiom] tummey a1 exclange sross which appeoaimaie those prevadliog oo
tramsaetin g dakek,

Foucige. cxchrope pains ond losses seaulring fom fhe peetferniont of puch angsntons 40d fom the tsbaion
s yenesend exchaoge rbes of meonctaey seson wod GBI denomingeed in foceign crcrenries am recognized
in the comsolidated gtstements elincome.

Ernployes Bemelis

»  Rastremnias Broghir Obfpaton.



“The Cooup hos po Forrmal roticement o pension plan, thes, the Geonp detennined its pession. kabdiey in
nevacdance with the provisons of Repuldic Aot (RA) 7641 Joetimoenane Pig Laor which gelaves to 2 defined
benefit pengivn plan. The Labilky reopniced in the comsolidaicd balinee sheets For defined bepnfic penséon
plans 5 the present valwe of the defince bowsfir eldigation 2RO} ar the consotidered balinee sloaes date kess
the Fale watoe ol P asess, copeter with adfustments Gor urm‘cngmr&ﬂ sptnadal gias o Josess and pant
service vogts, The DBO is caleulared by independent potyodes wing the pmjccrodxumt-‘.,mdu soethiel. Thae
paeaenrystoe of he DBO jc deteconined by discanmilig dig sirtoe] fopes cagdt aotfiows uxing, intecest rates
of ligh quality corpotate Bbonds thve are dosominaied in the roereney inwhich the benebics will be pabd 2ad thar
haxe terms to mwtwty sppeoxintig the reens of ferelsnd pension ehdlity.

Actuag] gaing nad losses e pot sectgnized 8 20 aepeise Lk the o] pnsesognized grin or loss exceeds
W of the greater of the obligntion and refated plan mrsats, “The srmount exceading this 10% torddar 13
chasped e ceedived @ profir oo loss vves tie cropess’ oxpeaed xveryge remaining wocking Jive., Acuarial
s and losses withine e 10% congdar wre disclosed sepamtely. Prdt-eeevdoe cosls aie epcognilzed Emmedingély
in the consolidered swatements of incorme urdets the chages o the penson phan are cowditional oo the
eripleyers remzining in gecvice fora 2pecified pedod of s [ westing pedod). o this case, the past seeviee
ooy e Anoptizet an w steright-Fing basis over (s vesting preriod.

Tie Groqp slso pacticpates in the defined contibution peosion plan menkged by the Social Seeurivy Sysem, &
defted comdbution pln g oz pension plan under which the Group juys Feed zonttibiiens into an
Inbepenident eariny, T Group has oo legal or consioctive obligntions o pz]r Fuxlier contdbutbons afber
payascit of the fxed sentrfbution. The contriboions pecognized in cespoer of defined conrdbudon plsps axe
expensed 75 diny fall doc, LinbiBdes wnd aesen mmvy br recapnized if wodegpayment oe prepiyment bae oooweoed
il gre ineladed in eursent linblkitie oz caceenr assazs ay they spz noomglly wfu shon -tern nane,

*  Coamunsatred. A broms

Compengated shoences are meengnized foc the qunilsee of paid leave. days (nclnding boliday sniidement)
semnining st the consolidated bulinee shoet dae, They axte included in Soconpts Papable sand Cibes Llablliies
weconnl ot the vadiscounted amovnt that the Gagw) expects tn pey 05 4 2eudt of e uoussd engitlsment,

Ineonre Liaxes

Cnreent inoodee tax wssets of lishilities comprise thoge €lsme from, or obligatons to, fiscxl antiinrites ndating Lo de
ocoens oF prinr sepoting peodsd, that pre voeollsered of unpaid ot dic conselidapst hadence sheet dare, They are
caboaluted soecoding to ta o ontes amd s s applicable 1 the el pedods (o widch thep relab:, baserd on e
saxatbile profit foe twe yoar. All changes [ cunent tex axsers oo Babilitict are cecognized as 4 componons of tx
cxpense i the conanlidnied statements of inttami,

Dhalereed] 1ax bs poovided, wsing dlc balsmcy sheet Babifip mediod oo domporeey differeaces ar e consolidaed
palapcs shees date bebeses thie mx base of wsseds xsd Tnbilises noo thedr enoopiog amounts for Sinancal epocting

PRCROEeS.

Ut dlve balmwne shiset Jisbiliy muctlsoxl, wich creain ceceptions, deferred tix Nabllitles ane zocopaized for all
tnwabile Jempocty diffemmnces and deforred tax wswels aos ecopedzed for afl dedwotible seonparagy di ferences and the
caesy Boroand of tmsed ox bops and wnised tax cosdis to the oxnen that it i pasbable that meble poufix will be
n-mlzhlr. s tygmingt-webibeh thoe defersed pex asses qun be wstilized,

The earzyiag amonnt of defeesed tnx axaets 35 ceviewsd 51 cach consolidated balsoce sheet date 2l wedured 1w the
exxpetr hnt it ix probable thar enficdont woelde poofin witl be sxmiilble w dliow ell or prot of thie delecred s sect Lo

be utilized.

Prafrered tax assers sl lishifitieg are owcaviseed 21 e tax rates tlar sxe exposted 10 apply to the peelod when die
asser i realized ov the [abillyy is sertled, based an mx rmtes snd tnx Jows that bove bean ecrcied or subslantivety

enncted ok the oonesidied balees sheer dans.

&4



Mare chinnges i dederced b xeneb oc lablBfo am recopuized a5 0 componeat of dix axpease in e somralidaced
atavemnensk of income, Quly lsoges in defeered tw assein o lisbilitics that rebae to 2 chiwnge In wahur of assers ar
Eahilities that bs chasged dinecily 1 equity s changud nr coedinedd dlinecily vo equity.

Burnings por Shxee

Eaaings per shace b doteemined by dividing nec ingome by the wedphied sveeage mumiber of common shices
sibpcribid and ouganding decng the yeae, afier etepacive sdjusonent for any stk Jlvidend, s sl o
aeverse stock split declared during the year

Lqraity

Capital stoek & ducermined usig e wombel vabae of shaces it Iave been deswed. Additions] peid-in enpical
Inelndes wny peemizmg received on 1he issuxnce of capinal stock Aoy transaction. cosms asrociued with the ssuance
nf shages 200 duducted from addidonat paidsn capisz, nes of any rolated incame px banedts,

Trowsucy svoeks aos atod al the cost of toxeqoiding such, slryres.

Cliange it Brir vafne of avallable-foe-sxle finnncisl sssets pomaing to the exoes oo defidiency of muk-1o-omher
vatoation, of svalisble-forsale foancidl 2e6ite ovar thecodt
abibe agiet.

Dahidrinclodes 2| enrant and peine peziod resal ax discboseil in the consofidard smtemonis of inotme,
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION
"Uhe geowp's opeonting busioess axe organboed ane masiged sepazaecly aconediag v the Ransee of prodners el

setvices prewrdied, with cach segment seprosenting # seanegic business ualt tht offers different produers s sorvos
difteaedie ks,

Iiu Sollevaringy tubles prement revernds and pmﬁrlnfmmmnn regrding indusney sepmens Eor fhe pexr ended Jone
2013 and, Lerrriber 31, 2012 wnd sermin weacts and bt iofoemation regweding ivdasimy segmenis at June

341 2013,
June. 30, 2015 ) -

U GeER Liveimont Lirasimg Bliminetior Grawp
Brokernge ‘Badhiong

Hevemee ) ) j

Bxiemmal B61,407,119 33400 S48 TaLAM - 105 LTATIT

leAseaeganent - 35,521 554,120 fL30804ly -
"ol seyenues . G0 HERATY A 4 TR M) 193 SBETY
Rapronses

Foueroal - (AR (¥SA3,012) (9,508, 7411) * [V14,675,454)

Jntoragpmcnt . fazesay - - CRINRSHLY b
Tgtal ceprmite [P5.001, 988 TS ATLI1S (OB o) &,308,741) (AT 675,184)
Dpaming e B AR50 {61,130, 015 {505 1, My - 05,8
Net soanue LN LE {6 37 243) 1536700 - 19,328,423
Srpmbolnksot 1,405,007, 353 £ 528 S50 08  MARISAD {LETLONELTG) 5 300,476,550
Hemment lixhiEiey 1003, 734,013 LABNAIPARY 201,537 4357 posET 710385




Decomber M, M2

{ St Enrestnenn Eliwination Growy
Brodumwpa Bamking . bmamopy L }
Rrsenues
Basbesrmal 05, BTG N kAL perfl Ml FEAAY A
Mieegependan . 5 gy S T, 505 16, 8H. 150 CHADTY LK =
ol yovenies G40 TO0 ﬁ;&n A4 A6, 11903 AT 0 TGOS
Expenax
Hwneam) T E06, 7T (-7 der L8 18650, 482 Mg 085 R32
Nitoeryimeni _ oS MEY AN UG — - [T ELE ki
Tl grpenacr R LR T EGE AT T2 515) SOREEIL
Clptrating mttme 13,8008 258, 50 o0 BEEENY LIME0EN18T) {1952 AR
Frefit Far theyoar it | W6, 500 el | s (50 8ET 18y (0,969,631
o), AT BMEE73,671 BMEILATE ~ S10761,455 (1524057 35 5,001, 458,083
" et B EY340).002 2800 ] 545 161 H1.507 . VAN 00,34 TAAOSOHTI
4, FEJANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFLT AND LOSS
The acoonnt sansisiz of the fnzncial axiets keld for trading cguity neenrilieg,
5 AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Avzilabile foc sehy fnancial assors peetain 1o Invesement i the ahzmms of stock of the following
Juasee 30, 2013 Peenber 31,2012
Ax fxirvalue :
Primec Garsing Plule, ng. B2 573 6905805 Bz ErL FTL,240
Orbiors= Sk shones T.180,00) 7,680,000
2,580,879 595 2,508, 351.244
A cost
Tiniwarssl Rightiishls Prog. 144,510,128 144,510,134
Fhdlippine Conral Thoirository 2RO 28800
144,932,930 BHLI32,030
2,728, 812,525 274528417
Jdiowanes fof impatrment opres {144,932,930} {1 992 0
2, 5887505 HE, 598, 351,240

The fuicvalisez of genilable Ry saie inanial asseis candvd at fric valie have beeo detecodreed dicoerly by
riference to pulilished peices in %0 sotive nagdeet.
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A

B

REGEIVABLES

Thic seoouol eonsicts of

Customers fbrokerk

Eygubtios Margin and other losns
Ascount: receivable

Motes recalvablc

Enterest receivables
Manggement fee receivable
Oithera

Allpweance for lmpeicment bosste

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

June 30, 2013 Depember 31, 3012
R0E,203,153 P03 27,60
680,008,482 633,765,504
FRGB90,256 LA ST
107,250,351 107,739,254
ok By lreli] 02,854, 154
44,838,381 19 ANEO0
15,952,304 1635400
2,014,864,230 1,545, 181,500
(213510424} 3751447
BL797 340,813 VLA EAT. 16

This account coosits of Caadominiim  Waits, Compuater Ecuigment, Lexseheld  linpsovements,
“Trangposiatian Bquipment, mnd Facbware snd Feomees, As of June 30, 2003 uod Decesber 31, DR, Propery
nivd Bauipmene amomnier io B83.Imillion acd P8RS willbon, respeetvely {net scmamminned depreciation).

OTHER ASSETS

The breakdawn of this aceaunt follows :

BGoodwil]

Creecinnble withholding taxes
Diofezred nil sxplogrtion costs
Buput VAT
Trading oght
Otlsees

Abivwasce for om-tocoverabibity of defernul
axplaration caar
Abowsnce for impaizment nfsnodwdl

Tune 30, 213 Diecrender 31, 2012

F§Y,5RA,U51 T1hs, 584,951
79,611,569 75,335,763
15,418,503 15415,003
2,495,217 1,590855
N 1,408,000
11,423,580 38908900
199,542,526 152,246,504
{15, 418,003) {5 418,005
(A,261,596) 19,360,596
msu,iﬁsml "3 17,567,805
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¥ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Thik srcount reprisents the compams’s curtear Habdides snd payables ro rede creditors, clients, pension
ebllivics, and (e wocens) oof expentes sueh gs dmerest, xes, commiztiens snid bovieses,

Jure 20, 2013 Descaber 31, 2002
D 03 Casstoaiess 587,357,500 D B15,850
Acerued cxpenacs 33,115,982 88,120,572
Retirement bencfit obligation S2A20,0618 32,470,618
Dithers 20483140 25 458 17
W8T 377,200 420,800,857

it INTEREST BEARING LOAMNS AMD DDRROAWINGS

Loans payaiRe congists of shoprazem borsowing: obiadued fom local bankp and shost-tesm aotes payobiles
Eeom vazious fonders, Short-temm bocowngs hexe wemest dt sates sunging fom 5.0 o B25% in 2053 and
Froan 50% to $:30% In 2012

5. TREASURY SHABES

Tewagury giares peagin o the Company’s stodk beld by ACK. (hbacns Capiul and Investmeont Corp,) sof*
VEIL (Mista Holdings Cosp.} 2t cost.

12, PINANCIAL RISK I¥MSCLOSTIE .

The Grotp 1k exposed to s variety of Oonnwis] deles which cacult from beah i opeadng, franciog and
investiog sofvities, The dek manapernent actvicies st the bevel of eel company in the Gooup & eoosdinaked
with the Pamnt Company, in close coopertion with the Baasl of DiscerossBD0}, and foouses-on sctively
secucing the {Zooup's shagtvte-medium-teeon sash Bows by wikimiziog the expesure to Honselal modiers, Long-
tenn fnaneial nvestoenits see managed to-genseans ksking welums.

Jrntorest Rave Rivk

The Growp has 4o significant exppsuc & chonges i Rieeker orueess 216895 most oF s shocreren financial
agsoty el linbiliBes wre non-lnserest luadng and it baok Josos have fixed aomual inteoest e,

Foreien C-‘a;;wmy Risk

Forem clicrency ek ardses from poreatis] losses fooo the changes in the exchanpes mtey of the Group’s
foreiy cucvency Senonatoated aisels and labilities,

The Groups seclt mitigete the offecr of is foodgn cucrency oxposwes by Eimiting itk Foreign cwoency
wansactions to the exient presilile. The Group dors not entwe inte forvensd qunircts v hedging trnssgtion,

The Geoup's Unitell Starer (US) dolisc-demmnioated fnancial instoumess, peeeidne ooly 10 cash o bank,
warlxied o Phflippine peses # the cloging mbes, scnountingy 1o FIB4,817 ia Juny 2043 2nd BISLEM In
Drecomber 2012,

The aschange oote wred aee PALIMLUS and F21.22 as of June 38, 2013 and 2002, respestively.



Coeelie Bk

Generallp, the eoaxienuen ceedit sigk wmposswe of farpcinl assers ds the cueryiny acoeant of the faonacal
arsets ns shown on the ficy of the consobidated balonce sheets {oc s te derslled auityaly prosided i ths notes
to the consolidaterd Finenciil statessenis) ns somanarzed bebae:

Cazh in buol: & 764908 B 15026038
Receiveblessnet LIEROAS L4007 10

PLISVIGTY  ALEE0,927,520

rrterieepe e A B e e e

T Group combnouly mepisses defaults oF comtomer and other counteepretics, identified sither inelividual
ne by greenap, atvd ineapoadte this informatian ino its. credit ek contrmls, The Geaup's polley iy te dead ouly
with aeditorarchy coanberpaitics.

s port of geoap poliey, bank depenite sl shoo-teem phcementeam oaly maintrined with ceputalle finsnelal
Insatntions, For She dolatoninatian oloredic sk, cash do not inclade the cash o haed ameoaetzygy Bhts s
oF Junc 30, HK5. The Gronp's st in baal s covered by # oo imsuenes of PRS00, repaesenting
fammace covemps in the depositacy barlk of the Geoug, 21 peovlded foc undes R NaR302, Chacter of
‘Philippioe Depotit s ce Corponimion

Cerfain seeiivables of the Gooup goe pordally seoad by bocsoass” collarursls aod cocarer srocks weaed i
thw PEE due are hald by the Greip, Dby Fiasngial assers are. ot secured by calletesad or athee 2eeddt
cailraosnLnLs.

Mnrpgeonen balioves that the amoet of tho pest due or individealiy Smpired :Lcmmm-u, which is shown e
of allovance, Aremil recowesabl g5 thh: Gaoup's managemens hies répulur eomaandisiben witly the feldors foe
the setllement of the seceivaisie:.

In regest of weceiwhlog, the Group is not exposed o any sipaificant coedit ol exposuze 1o any sinple
COLTMMPAZEY ©of MY Eroup of conRkpactivs having similer chierasteditics,

Lagesictiey Biske

The groug mannges its liguidiny resds by ceoefully monitering schedubes debnt servicing paymsems for lang-tesm
financinl BabdiHes ox wedl we cash sflows dop in o dey-to-day business, Liguidity nesds s monined do
vasionns b s, ona day-to-thy wnd weck-to-werk hasis, 55 well an on e baais of solling 30-dey peolection,
Fengteens Byuidivy nesds foca G-month and eorsgesr preod o jderified momnily.

The groug maktin: cazh to meer i gosdiny vegulonsurnts for Lprto-G0-day peciods. Exoess caxly are tnvested
b tense depeivs, twns] Fawls or shool-1eom mackerable secnmities. Funding for bung-term lispaldity needs io
addiienally secucet by e Growgs abiity to:se)l loggsteem Brendal amet,

Oeleer Murkar Riak

The Growups marker peler odk ariges froes i dnvestments exeded st S valor {Hnanchl goess chigelled ne
Snnrciel nseery 41 fule value daowgh peofic and loss. snd mwailibde for sl fnuncial seetdd, T8 amwiveges s ook
neilop Brom dhe Clanges in mackey price by monitodog the deaoges n die madket price of te vestmens.



13,

CONTINGEMGLES

Asg oF Tune 30, 2013, theos qee i pending wlaims nod legal acdons by fhisd pacties npeinat oo bneobving the
Comspany waiwd ive subsidiades addsbnp foom the aoimal cousss of busdness wiich see not peflecicd In the
accompanying {inancial stetements. In fhe opinivo of the Company’s mangemant, 25 of Jume 30, 2013,
Yiabilities arisng fom these clams, if sny, would not bree 3 materal cffect oo the Company and s
subeldiaries, Ay Exbdliey oc Inse arising fveeefrom waould be 1aken up by the Companysnd s subsidingers when
the final mechuton of the caims sadaetians xoe determangd.
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